ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital - CCC Project

Street Address: 1650 Luther Lane (new CCC) and 1700 Luther Lane (existing CAC)

City and Zip Code: Park Ridge, IL 60068

County: Cook Health Service Area: 7 Health Planning Area: A-07

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital

Street Address: 1775 Dempster Street

City and Zip Code: Park Ridge, IL 60068

Name of Registered Agent: The Corporation Company

Registered Agent Street Address: 600 S. 2™ Street Suite 104

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Springdfield, IL 62704

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Allison Wyler

CEO Street Address: 1775 Dempster Street

CEO City and Zip Code: Park Ridge, IL 60068

CEO Telephone Number: 630-275-1901

Type of Ownership of Applicants

= Non-profit Corporation Ol Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Allison Wyler

Title: Hospital President - Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Company Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Telephone Number: 630-275-1901

E-mail Address: allison.wyler@aah.org

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Myndee Gomberg Balkan

Title: Director, Health Facilities Planning

Company Name: Advocate Health

Telephone Number: 847-721-0376

E-mail Address: myndee.balkan@aah.org

Fax Number:
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Additional Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Roberto Orozco

Title: Director, Central Chicagoland & North lllinois Regions, Design & Construction

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:

Telephone Number: 773-308-4474

E-mail Address: roberto.orozco@aah.org

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Beth Hickey

Title: Vice President, Finance, Lutheran General Hospital and North Chicago Area

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Telephone Number: 847-723-2220

E-mail Address: beth.hickey@aah.org

Fax Number:
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Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital - CCC Project

Street Address: 1650 Luther Lane (new CCC) and 1700 Luther Lane (existing CAC)

City and Zip Code: Park Ridge, IL 60068

County: Cook Health Service Area: 7 Health Planning Area: A-07

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Aurora Health Inc.

Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive

City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523

Name of Registered Agent: The Corporation Company

Registered Agent Street Address: 600 S. 2" Street Suite 104

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Springfield, IL 62704

Name of President: Gabrielle Finley-Hazle

President Street Address: 2025 Windsor Drive

President City and Zip Code: Oak Brook, IL 60523

President Telephone Number:

Type of Ownership of Applicants

= Non-profit Corporation Ol Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Allison Wyler

Title: Hospital President - Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Company Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Telephone Number: 630-275-1901

E-mail Address: allison.wyler@aah.org

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Myndee Gomberg Balkan

Title: Director, Health Facilities Planning

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:

Telephone Number: 847-721-0376

E-mail Address: myndee.balkan@aah.org

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Roberto Orozco

Title: Director, Central Chicagoland & North lllinois Regions, Design & Construction

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:
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Telephone Number: 773-308-4474

E-mail Address: roberto.orozco@aah.org

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Beth Hickey

Title: Vice President, Finance, Lutheran General Hospital and North Chicago Area

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Telephone Number: 847-723-2220

E-mail Address: beth.hickey@aah.org

Fax Number:
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Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital - CCC Project

Street Address: 1650 Luther Lane (new CCC) and 1700 Luther Lane (existing CAC)

City and Zip Code: Park Ridge, IL 60068

County: Cook Health Service Area: 7 Health Planning Area: A-07

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health Inc.

Street Address: 1000 Blythe Boulevard

City and Zip Code: Charlotte, NC 28203

Name of Registered Agent: The Corporation Company

Registered Agent Street Address: 600 S. 2" Street Suite 104

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Springfield, IL 62704

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Eugene Woods

CEO Street Address: 1000 Blythe Boulevard

CEO City and Zip Code: Charlotte, NC 28203

CEO Telephone Number:

Type of Ownership of Applicants

= Non-profit Corporation Ol Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Allison Wyler

Title: Hospital President - Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Company Name: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Telephone Number: 630-275-1901

E-mail Address: allison.wyler@aah.org

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Myndee Gomberg Balkan

Title: Director, Health Facilities Planning

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:

Telephone Number: 847-721-0376

E-mail Address: myndee.balkan@aah.org

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Roberto Orozco

Title: Director, Central Chicagoland & North lllinois Regions, Design & Construction

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address:
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Telephone Number: 773-308-4474

E-mail Address: roberto.orozco@aah.org

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Beth Hickey

Title: Vice President, Finance, Lutheran General Hospital and North Chicago Area

Company Name: Advocate Health

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

Telephone Number: 847-723-2220

E-mail Address: beth.hickey@aah.org

Fax Number:
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Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence after permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE EMPLOYED BY
THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name: James Kokaska

Title: Vice President, Planning, Design & Construction

Company Name: Advocate Health, Inc

Address: 2025 Windsor Drive, Oak Brook, IL 60523

Telephone Number: 708-473-4692

E-mail Address: james.kokaska@aah.org

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a/ Advocate Lutheran
General Hospital

Address of Site Owner: 2025 Windsor Drive, Oak Brook, IL 60523

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site: Advocate Lutheran General Hospital 1650 Luther Lane

(new CCC) and 1700 Luther Lane (existing CAC), Park Ridge, IL 60068
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statements, tax assessor’s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

= Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or
entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating in the
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial
contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.orqg. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov). NOTE: A
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION
FORM has been added at the conclusion of this Application for Permit that must be

completed to deem a project complete.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b)]

Part 1110 Classification :
O Substantive

X Non-substantive
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2. Narrative Description

In the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in
State Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street
address, include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification
as substantive or non-substantive.

Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Lutheran General Hospital,
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. and Advocate Health, Inc., the applicants, propose a
comprehenensive outpatient Oncology project on the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
campus.

This project will include a two floor addition attached to the Center for Advanced Care (CAC)
building on the Advocate Lutheran General campus. The existing CAC (modernization) is located
at 1700 Luther Lane, Park Ridge, IL 60068. The new site (CCC) will be attached via a walkway,
and will have the address of 1650 Luther Lane. The addition to the building will create a
Comprehensive Cancer Center (CCC) and will relocate and expand outpatient Oncology services
to create a comprehensive location to support patients, providers and expand access for
services.

e The Comprehensive Cancer Center (CCC) project will relocate outpatient
Hematology/Oncology and Transplant and Cellular Therapy (TCT) clinic and infusion
services to create an integrated and expanded TCT Program and Oncology Service Line.

e Services will include Transplant and Cellular Therapy (TCT) clinics, apheresis services,
outpatient TCT-related infusions, non-Oncology infusions, Chemotherapy and
Immunotherapy Infusions, Blood Transfusions, Multispecialty Surgical Oncology clinics,
Hematology Oncology clinics, and a relocated Cancer Survivorship Center. New and
expanded laboratory and pharmacy services will be fully dedicated to Oncology patients.

The project will also include modernization of the outpatient lab on the Advocate Lutheran
General Hospital campus located on the first floor of the existing CAC located at 1700 Luther
Lane.

The project’s total square footage will be 77,605 gsf of new construction (52,348 of clinical and
25,257 of non-clinical) and 5,813 gsf (1,350 of clinical and 4,463 of non-clinical) of
modernization. The project cost is $99,146,720 with an anticipated completion date of
December 31, 2028.

The project is classified as a non-substantive project, as it does not establish a new category of
service nor facility as defined in 20 IL CS 3690/3.
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modernization Contracts

Contingencies

Architectural/Engineering Fees

Consulting and Other Fees

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts)

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs to Be Capitalized

Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding
land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

SOURCE OF FUNDS

CLINICAL

NONCLINICAL

TOTAL

Cash and Securities

Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related)

Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER

THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

LGH CCC
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Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that will be
or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project [ Yes X No
Purchase Price:  $
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

[] Yes X No
If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including operating deficits
through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target utilization specified in Part
1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ NA

Project Status and Completion Schedules

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
] None or not applicable [] Preliminary

X] Schematics [ ] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): December 31, 2028.

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer to Part
1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.

[] Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the contingent
“certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language related to CON
Contingencies

X] Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

State Agency Submittals [Section 1130.620(c)]

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable?
X] Cancer Registry
X] APORS
X1 All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted
D All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being
deemed incomplete.
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be
identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any
space is being reallocated for a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the
departments or area’s portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated
space.

Not Reviewable Space [i.e., non-clinical]: means an area for the benefit of the patients, visitors, staff, or employees of a health
care facility and not directly related to the diagnosis, treatment, or rehabilitation of persons receiving services from the health care
facility. "Non-clinical service areas" include, but are not limited to, chapels; gift shops; newsstands; computer systems; tunnels,
walkways, and elevators; telephone systems; projects to comply with life safety codes; educational facilities; student housing;
patient, employee, staff, and visitor dining areas; administration and volunteer offices; modernization of structural components (such
as roof replacement and masonry work); boiler repair or replacement; vehicle maintenance and storage facilities; parking facilities;
mechanical systems for heating, ventilation, and air conditioning; loading docks; and repair or replacement of carpeting, tile, wall
coverings, window coverings or treatments, or furniture. Solely for the purpose of this definition, "non-clinical service area" does not
include health and fitness centers. [20 ILCS 3960/3]

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

Gross Square Feet That Is:

NewW | Modernized | Asls | vacated

Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON-
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert the chart after this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for
the latest Calendar Year for which data is available. Include observation days in the patient day
Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the
application being deemed incomplete.

totals for each bed service.

FACILITY NAME: Advocate Lutheran General

CITY: Park Ridge, lllinois

Hospital
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: Jan 1, 2024 to: Dec. 31, 2024
Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical * 370* 17,753 111,353 - 370*
Obstetrics 51 4,020 10,176 - 51
Pediatrics 48 4,180 14,722 - 48
Intensive Care 85 4,962 21,906 - 85
Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation 45 907 12,632 - 45
Acute/Chronic Mental lliness 55 1,153 8,852 - 55
Neonatal Intensive Care 54 134 15,820 - 54
General Long-Term Care
Specialized Long-Term Care
Long Term Acute Care
Other ((identify)

TOTALS: 708 33,109 195,461 - 708

*Includes bed changes (additional 22 M/S beds) approved by the HFSRB/IDPH to be

operational 6/2026

LGH CCC
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist).

| o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a scle proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of Ad e Hea ] .
Lutheran General Hospital* in accordance with tho rnqulrenwm and pmcedures ol' the llllnols
Health Facilities Planning Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute
and file this Application on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the
data and information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of
his or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this
application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

fj —
W A
¢ 'lrp",:',-" _’___:].
SIGNATURE SIGNATURE
Dia Nichols Jim Shnkman
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Presidant Assistant Secratary
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization
Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me

this day this day of
F’ > hv P o i et
Signatlsaifiotary # ) Signature of Notary
Sepl gl OLGA RAMIREZ Seal
=% OFFICIAL SEAL

b, | Natary Public, State of 1linois

A AR ofican
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist).

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate
Lutheran General Hospital* in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois
Health Facilities Planning Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute
and file this Application on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the
data and information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of
his or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this
application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

-

A OpAm

PRINTED NAME

President

PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this day of

Signature of Notary

Seal .

*Insert the EXACT legal name of the applicant

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE \
Dia Nichols Jim Slinkman

PRINTED NAME

Assistant Secretary
PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: A
Subscril and sworn to before me -
this '53' dayof oy 2025

.

Signature of Notary

Seal

LGH CCC

PP s P o
“OFFICIAL SEAL” i
SARAH COSTANZO
Notary Public, State of lllinois
Commission No. 595167

My Commission Expires February 01, 202.?,5
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

in the case of a partnership, two of its general pariners (or the sole general partner, when two
or mare general partners do not exist).

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries {or the scle beneficiary when two or
more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.* in accordance with the
requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act. The undersigned
certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this Application on behalf of the
applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information provided herein,
and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her knowledge and belief.
The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this application is sent herewith or will be
paid upon requast.

¢ S
A;ﬁr o

SIGNATURE L SIGNATURE

Dia Nichols Brett J. Denton

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Vice President Secretary

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Motarization Motarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before Subscribed and sworn to before me
this day of
Signature of Notary

OLGA RAMIREZ
Seal OFFICIAL SEAL Seal
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SECTION lll. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. Alisting of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in lllinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

3. For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility
is considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted, or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the conviction, and submit any police or court records regarding any matters
disclosed.

c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or
governmental agency.

4. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

5. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant can submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.
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Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facility projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board Staff Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost.

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes.

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality, and financial benefits in
both the short-term (within one to three years after project completion) and long-term. This may
vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT
COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE
PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

LGH CCC Page 21




SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:
1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and
the methodology applied.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility’s Medical Director.

b. The existing facility’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions, or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area, or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

There is no shell space in the proposed project.

ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:
1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service

involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Not applicable.
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M. Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
categories of service must submit the following information:

2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):

# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms Key Rooms

[

[

3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation
for the criteria:

Project Type Required Review Criteria
New Services or Facility or Equipment (b) — Need Determination — Establishment
Service Modernization (c)(1) — Deteriorated Facilities
AND/OR

(c)(2) — Necessary Expansion

PLUS

(c)(3)(A) — Utilization — Major Medical Equipment

OR

(c)(3)(B) — Utilization — Service or Facility

1APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 31, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

e Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
e Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
e Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VIl. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document those financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated
total project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the
following sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]:

a) Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters
from financial institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project,
including the identification of any security, its value and
availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be
earned on any asset from the date of applicant's submission
through project completion.

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges
showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of gross
receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising
experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any
conditions of use, and the estimated timetable of receipts.

d) Debt — a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt
time, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time, and the
anticipated repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent
financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the
authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount
of the issue, including any discounting anticipated.

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the
specified amount and interest rate.

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to
the expectation of making the loan in the amount and time
indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and any
conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital
improvements to the property and provision of capital
equipment.

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all
terms and conditions.
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e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance
accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental
unit. If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a
resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent.

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms
of the amount and time of receipt.

g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other
funds that will be used for the project.

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION ViIil. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding, or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. “A” Bond rating or better

2. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the
facility is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the
system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the
system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years

Enter Historical and/or Projected
Years:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance
Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another

organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION
FORM.
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SECTION IX. 1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A.

B.

C.

Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance
sheet asset accounts to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available.

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing
costs and other factors.

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:
1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost

and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Department Total
(List below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.” Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (BxE) (G+H)
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no

more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of
salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION X. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE
PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 3960/5.4]:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including the
impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in each
community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by
the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent
with the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients
and Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source"
as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
QOutpatient
Total
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
QOutpatient
Total
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient
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Outpatient

Total
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in Illinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care"” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect
to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care must be
provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.

CHARITY CARE

Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care (charges)
Cost of Charity Care

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 39, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION XI -SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EO 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board (HFSRB) must
determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is in a mapped floodplain (Special Flood Hazard
Area) or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required to ensure that before a permit, grant or a development is
planned or promoted, the proposed project meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including compliance with
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.

1. Applicant:
(Name) (Address)
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
2. Project Location:
(Address) (City) (State)
(County) (Township) (Section)

3. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA Map Service
Center website (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home) by entering the address for the property in the Search bar. If
a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go to NFHL Viewer tab above the map. You can print a

=,
copy of the floodplain map by selecting the icon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon
and place a pin on your site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial photo. You will
then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and use the Make a FIRMette tool
to create a pdf of the floodplain map.

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: Yes__ No ?

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN?

If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact the county or the
local community building or planning department for assistance.
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

FIRM Panel Number: Effective Date:
Name of Official: Title:
Business/Agency: Address:
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
Signature: Date:

NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or a 500-year
floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that the property will or will not be
flooded or be subject to local drainage problems.

If you need additional help, contact the lllinois Statewide Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428

LGH CCC Page 33


https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home

Floodplain Map Example

The image below is an example of the floodplain mapping required as part of the IDPH swimming facility construction
permit showing that the swimming pool, to undergo a major alteration, is outside the mapped floodplain.

X pﬂH/l/)lll'J
) ! ‘/, -

National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette @ FEMA  Legend

B8°926'W 41°4§SB N SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED m“g::m:)m
SPECIAL FLOOD x&éﬂmmmmmmm
HAZARD AREAS Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance fiood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mile Zone X

- Future Conditions 1% Annual
L chance Flood Hazard zone x

r!j Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes. Zooe X

FLOOD HAZARD |~ 4 ' Area with Flood Risk due to Levee zae 0

NO SCREEN Area of Minimal Flood Hazard  zone x

] Effective LOMRs
OTHER AREAS Area of Undetermined Flood Hazard zooe 0

GENERAL | = == == Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer
STRUCTURES [1111111 Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
n n :‘_ ; ! —175  Water Surface Elevation
AREA OF MINIMAL: ELSOD HAZARD - ‘ 2 e e oo om0
)’ ZoneX . | == Umit of Study

I3 . Jurisdiction Boundary
..... — Coastal Transect Baseline

'I

Clty 3
170713 . fel x ‘ R ' . OTHER |. —— Pprofile Baseline
Uk y . FEATURES | wydrographic Feature

Digital Data Available N
No Digital Data Available
MAP PANELS Unmapped
9 The pin displayed on the map is an approximate

point selected by the user and does not represent
an authoritative property location.
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After paginating the entire completed application indicate, in the chart below, the page numbers for the
included attachments:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant Identification including Certificate of Good Standing 36 — 39
2 | Site Ownership 40-41
3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be 42
identified with the % of ownership.
4 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of 43 -45
Good Standing Etc.
5 | Flood Plain Requirements 46 — 48
6 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements 49 — 58
7 | Project and Sources of Funds ltemization 59 -61
8 | Financial Commitment Document if required 62
9 | Cost Space Requirements 63 — 65
10 | Discontinuation -
11 | Background of the Applicant 66 — 70
12 | Purpose of the Project 71-83
13 | Alternatives to the Project 84 — 86
14 | Size of the Project 87 -91
15 | Project Service Utilization 92 -94
16 | Unfinished or Shell Space 95
17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space 96

Service Specific:
18 | Master Design & Related Projects -
19 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU
20 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation -
21 | Acute Mental lliness -
22 | Open Heart Surgery -
23 | Cardiac Catheterization -
24 | In-Center Hemodialysis -
25 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery -
26 | Selected Organ Transplantation -
27 | Kidney Transplantation -
28 | Subacute Care Hospital Model -
29 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center -
30 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital -
31 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service 97 - 105
32 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services -

33 | Birth Center -

Financial and Economic Feasibility:

34 | Availability of Funds 106 — 135

35 | Financial Waiver 136

36 | Financial Viability 136

37 | Economic Feasibility 137 — 142

38 | Safety Net Impact Statement 143 — 149

39 | Charity Care Information 150 -151
Flood Plain Information 152
Appendix 153+
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Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ] Other

Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and address
of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Illinois Certificates of Good Standing for the applicants are provided as Attachment 1

Provided for Attachment #1:
Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation
IL Certificate of Good Standing
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.
IL Certificate of Good Standing
Advocate Health, Inc.
IL Certificate of Good Standing
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File Number 1004-695-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH AND HOSPITALS CORPORATION, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON SEPTEMBER 12, 1906, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony WhGFGOf, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 1ST
day of DECEMBER A.D. 2025

Authentication #: 2533503650 verifiable until 12/01/2026 4& * ﬁ . d
Authenticate at. hitpsiwwwilsos.gov

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 7155-851-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC., INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED
TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE ON APRIL 03, 2018, APPEARS TO HAVE
COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS A FOREIGN

CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony WhGTGOI‘; I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 1ST

day of DECEMBER A.D. 2025

£ G_ &, | o
Authentication #: 2533503702 verifiable until 12/01/2026 4 g N d . z
Authenticate at: hitps/wwwilsos.gov

SECRETARY OF STATE

LGH CCC Page 38 Attachment 1



File Number 7376-313-4

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

ADVOCATE HEALTH, INC., INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED TO
CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THIS STATE ON JUNE 28, 2022, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS A FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD
STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO CONDUCT AFFAIRS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof; I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 1ST

day of DECEMBER A.D. 2025

1 5 e
Authentication #: 2533503720 verifiable until 12/01/2026 4& N ﬁ . d

Authenticate at: hitps:weewilsos.gov
SECRETARY OF STATE
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Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a/ Advocate
Lutheran General Hospital

Address of Site Owner: 2025 Windsor Drive, Oak Brook, IL 60523

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site: 1650 Luther Lane (new CCC) and 1700 Luther
Lane (existing CAC), Park Ridge, IL 60068

Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of
ownership are property tax statements, tax assessor’s documentation, deed, notarized statement of
the corporation attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE
OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

The proposed site is on the campus of Advocate Lutheran General Hospital. Advocate Lutheran
General Hospital is located at 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068.

The project will include a two floor addition — a new building (CCC) with the address of 1650

Luther Lane and be adjacent and attached to the existing CAC (modernization) located at 1700
Luther Lane, Park Ridge, IL 60068.. Please see Attachment #2 Exhibit 1.
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% Ad\’OCalE Health Care’ Advnente Henlth Care T (R30) 572-9793

hicnn sr i ol ; i 2025 Windsor Dnve F {530) 990-4752
riow part of o ADVOCATE HE AL TH Oak Brook, IL 60523 advocateheslth.com

Wovember 5, 2025

Mr. John Kniery

Administrator

llinis Health Facilities and Services Review
Board

525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor
Springfield, lllinois 62761

Re: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corperation dfb/a Lutheran General
Hospital - Comprehensive Cancer Center (CCC) Project

Dear Mr. Kniery:

This attestation letter is submitted to indicate that Advocate Health and Hospitals d/b/a
Advocate Lutheran General Hospital owns the site of the hospital located at 1775 Dempster
Street, Park Ridge, lllinals 60068,

We trust this attestation complies with the State Agency Proof of ownership
reguirements indicated in the Permit application = June 2024 edition.

Respectfully,

7
ey
AN

Dia Nichols, FACHE
President, Advocate Health Care
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.

Subscribed and sworn to me
This S day o ¥ 2025

I/ BN
Nutﬂ?ﬁhlyz’ ’ —

dAdvocate Heakth Care (@) Atriumibeaith €D Awora Health Care (1 M/ ity

OLGA RAMIREZ
N OFFICIAL SEAL
Jilg [ Hotary Fublic. State of inois
My Commission Expires
March 06, 2027
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Operating Identity/Licensee

[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital

Address: 1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL 60068

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership

] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental

] Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship ]
Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good
Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with
the % of  ownership.

Illinois Certificates of Good Standing for the applicants are provided in Attachment 1
and are incorporated in Attachment 3 by reference.
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Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person
or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating in
the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

See Attachment #4, Exhibit 1.
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Advocate Aurora
Health, Inc

Advocate Health and
Hospitals Corporation

*Note because Advocale Health, Inc. has certain governance, management and operation oversight
of Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. through a Joint Operating Agreement structure, it is also included as
a co-apphcant. Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. and Atnium Health, Inc. are the Corporate Members of

Advocate Health, Inc

Advocate Aurora

Health. Inc. Atrium Health, Inc.

Advocate Health, Inc

D = Nt o Premt

100% Ouwrecship Uriess Ofheratse Noted
Jarsary 25, 2023
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Advocate Aurora
Health, Inc.

Advocate Health
Care Network

Advocate Children's Hospital Advocate Health and
Advocate Christ Medical Center Hospitals COprfa"on

Advocate Good Samaritan Hospital
Advocate Good Shephord Hospital

Advocate Luthoran General Hospital
Advocate Southland Health Network
(AGvocam Trogy MospLat ACGrocate S0uth SudwrDan Mo

Advocate Medical Group

Red » Operstrg Divscors

100% Owmerstg Urfess Ohermne Noted Noverster § 2022
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Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of Illinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5 (http://www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

By their signatures on the Certification, the applicants certify that the site for the proposed
project is not in a flood plain, as identified by the most recent FEMA flood plain hazard map for
this area. This project is not in a special flood hazard area and therefore complies with lllinois
Executive Order #2006-5. Please see Attachment 5, Exhibit 1.
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Advocate Lutheran
General Hospital
1775 Dempster St.
Park Ridge, IL 60068
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Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

A letter was sent to the lllinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR), the Historic
Preservation Division on December 8, 2025, requesting a determination letter for this project.
The IDNR, the Historic Preservation Division, is in the process of replying to that request.

The Historic Preservation Letter request is provided as Attachment 6 Exhibit 1.
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:,% Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1776 Dempster Strect || Park Ridge, IL 60068 || T 847.723.2210 || advocatehealth.com

December 8, 2025

Carol Wallace, Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer
Illinois State Historic Preservation Office

llinois Department of Matural Resources

One Old State Capitol Plaza

Springfield, IL 62701

RE: Mational Historic Preservation Act

Dear Ms. Wallace,

Per the Certificate of Need, the guidance is to provide documentation regarding compliance
with the requirements of the Historic Resources Preservation Act. Identified as Attachment 6 to
the CON application form; below is the following information provided with supporting
documentation:

1. The project’s county, street address, and municipality.

1700 Luther Lane
Park Ridge, Illinois 60068, Cook County

2. Complete description of your project, including any proposed ground-disturbing activity.

The project includes an expansion to our Center for Advanced Care with a new facility that
will be identified as the Comprehensive Cancer Center, the address of the new facility is
1650 Luther Lane, Park Ridge, lllinois 60068.
¢ The expansion includes the consolidation of our cancer programs within a new
77,600 sf facility. The expansion includes the Transplant and Cellular Therapy
program that supports a comprehensive cancer program.
¢ The modernization of approximately 5,800 sf for the ambulatory lab services and
lobby within the existing Center for Advanced Care.

3. The names of state and/or federal agencies and entities that are providing funding,
licenses, permits, or approvals for your project
a. |lllinois Department of Public Health Licensing Code #0004796
b. lllinois Department of Public Health, Div. of Life Safety of Public Health
c. City of Park Ridge, lllinois
Building permit
4. The name, email address, phone, and mailing address of the project contact:

Roberto Orozco, Director

roberto.orozco@aah.org

& faith-Dased health system serving individuals, Tamilies and commiunities

Raripiant af tha Magnet saand foe pecalfanes o uvsing srrdoes by tha Amarican Nureas Cransntiading Centar
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+ Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1776 Dempster Strect || Park Ridge, IL 60068 || T 847.723.2210 || ad tehealth.com

847.723.8520
1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge lllinois 60068
S. Previously assigned SHPO log numbers associated with your project (if any):
IHPA Log #009022421 - see Attachment A
6. Total acreage involved in the project?
The total acreage is 2.2 acres.
7. Year of construction for each structure on the project site
The Center for Advance Care was renovated/expanded in October of 2006.
8. Description of any prior non-agricultural ground disturbance in the project area
Not applicable, the area of expansion is a parking lot.
9. Any known historical information, architectural significance, significance to community,
or association with a significant individual for any cultural resources within the project
area.

Not applicable, no known historical significance.

Maps & images to include with your submission:

1. A map showing your project's location
See Attachment B
2 For projects that propose ground disturbance, please provide both a USGS 7.5-minute

topographic map and recent aerial imagery with the project limits clearly outlined

See Attachment C

3 Newly taken, color, digital images of the existing site and of all structures within.
See Attachment D

4. Representative interior photos of any structures over 40 years of age
See Attachment E

A faith-nased health system serving individuals, familles and communities

Racipiant of than Magnet awaed for excalianen in nursing sarvices by the Amarican Nursas Cradantialing Centar
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lﬂl_ Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1776 Dempster Street || Park Ridge, IL 60068 || T 847.723.2210 || advocatehealth.com

5. High-resolution digital scans of relevant historic photographs and previous architectural
plans (if applicable/available)

Not available

If you have any questions, please contact me at roberto.orozco@aah.org.

Sincerely,

Rabento Onozca

Roberto Orozco
Advocate Aurora Health, Director, Planning, Design and Construction

A faith-based health system serving individuals, families and communities

Racipiant of tha Magnet award for pxcalianca in nursing sarvices hiy tha Amarican Nursas Cradentialing Centar
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:'"‘; Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1776 Dempster Street || Park Ridge, IL 60068 || T 847.723.2210 || advocatehealth.com

Attachment A:

ILLINOIS

[llinois Department of

Natural Resources IB Pritzkes, Governor
| One N,;;,mfnl’ Resources Way - Sprirgfickd, lllinois €2702-1271 Collcen Callahar, Director
NATURAL wwwanrillinosgoy 5
FATURAL & Mading Address: 1 Owd State Capitol Plaza, Springfield, iL 62701

FAX (217) 524-7528
Cook County

FPark Ridge

CON - Modernization of Surgical Department, Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
1775 Dempster St.
SHPO Log #009022421

March 24, 2021

Roberto Orozco
Advocate Aurora Health
1775 Dempster St.

Park Ridge, IL 60068
Dear Mr. Orozco:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided conceming the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no histaric, architectural or archaeological sites exist within the project
area.

Please refain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of the Illinois State Agency
Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et. seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years
from date of issuance. It does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please call 217/782-4836.
Sincerely,

ks, ol

Robert F. Appleman
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

A taith-based heaith system serving individuals, families and communities

Raciptant of the Magnet award for axcaliance & nursing sarvices by the Amarican Nursas Cradaentiaing Centar
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lk Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1775 Dempster Street || Park Ridge, IL 60068 || T 847.723.2210 || advocatehealth.com

Attachment B:

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

‘J:‘inﬂa Glen Oan.J. b o -~ wocal Hlinols M.
E “ en| mdlnl Cnm
lw:‘- ) 5 [ i m‘d ‘ Elrhurst)-— s & ..Ev \ :i.h"m Snox + 1‘
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hryen | V

A faith-based health system serving individuals, families and communities

Racipiant af tha Magnat sward for pxceliance ln nursing services hy the Amearican Nursas Cradantlaling Centar
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lﬂ! Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1776 Dempster Strect || Park Ridge, IL 80068 || T 847.723.2210 || advocatehealth.com

A faith-based health system serving individuals, families and communities

af tha Magnet award for In nursing services by the Amarican Narsas Cradantlaiing Centar
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4“; Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1776 Dempster Street || Park Ridge, IL 60068 || T 847.723.2210 || advocatehealth.oom

Attachment D:

A faith-based heaith system serving individuals, families and communities

Raciptant of tha Magnet sward for axcellanca i nursing sarvieas by tha Amarican Nursas Cradentialing Cantar
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# Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1775 Dempster Street || Park Ridge, IL 60068 || T 847.723.2210 || advocatehealth.oom

Attachment E:

Existing Waiting Room

Existing Exam Area

A faith-based health system serving individuals, families and communities

Racipiant of tha Magnet sward for axcallanca in mrsing sarvieas hy tha Amarican Nursas Cradentialing Centar
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E,'}l_ Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

1775 Dempster Street || Park Ridge, IL 60068 || T 8247.723.2210 || advocatehealth.oom

Existing Infusion Area

A faith-based health system serving individuals, families and communities

Racipiaat of tha Magnet sward for pxcellance in nursing sarvicas hy tha Amearican Nursas Cradentialing Centar
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be
equal.

PROJECT COSTS AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NON-CLINICAL TOTAL
New DGSF 52,348 25,257 77,605

Modernized DGSF 1,350 4,463 5,813
Preplanning Costs $ 315000 $ 195,500 $ 510,500
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $ 12,000 $ 283,400 $ 295,400
Site Preparation $ 167,500 $ 2,895,930 $ 3,063,430
Off Site Work $ 414,053 $ 2,506,000 $ 2,920,053
New Construction Contracts (CCC) $ 27,427,940 $ 30,896,505 $ 58,324,445
Modernization Contracts (CAC) $ 762,912 $ 2,599,317 $ 3,362,229
Contingencies $ 2,810,000 $ 3,350,000 $ 6,160,000
Architectural/Engineering Fees $ 2,575,000 $ 3,050,000 $ 5,625,000
Consulting and Other Fees $ 2,649,358 $ 329,000 $ 2,978,358
Movable or Other Equipment (not in $ 3816381 $ 165,250 $ 3,981,631
construction contracts)
Bond Issuance Expense (project related) $ 488,344 $ 530,526 $ 1,018,870
Net Interest Expense During Construction $ 1,715,880 $ 1,864,090 $ 3,579,970
(project related)
Fair Market Value, Leased Space, Equipment $ B
Other Costs To Be Capitalized $ 4,369,308 $ 2,957,526 $ 7,326,834
Acquisition of Building or Other Property $ R $ - $ -
(excluding land)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $ 47,523,676 $ 51,623,044 $ 99,146,720

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $ - $ - $ 16,618,226
Pledges $ - $ - $ -
Gifts and Bequests $ - $ - $ -
Bond Issues (project related) $ - $ - $ 82,528,494
Mortgages $ - $ - $ -
Leases (fair market value) $ - 3 - $ -
Governmental Appropriations $ - $ - $ -
Grants $ - $ - $ -
Other Funds and Sources $ - $ - $ -
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $ 99,146,720

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER
AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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Itemization of Costs

Pre-Planning $510,500
Site and Facility Planning 192,500
Programming thru Conceptual Planning 318,000

Site survey (investigation, titles, traffic) $295,400

Site Preparation $3,063,430
Site - earthwork, stormwater detention, utilities, paving 2,553,430
Earthwork, drainage, stone, foundation prep 510,000

Off-Site Work $2,920,053
Grading & Concrete 990,000
AT&T Line Adjustments 294,500
Water/Drainage Adjustments 740,250
Gas (Metering thru construction) 470,250
Misc. Street Upgrades 425,053

New Construction $58,324,445

Modernization Contracts $3,362,229

Contingencies $6,160,000

Architect/Eng. Fees $5,625,000

Consulting and Other Fees $2,978,358
Reimbursable & Other fees 802,391
Zoning Consultants 75,000
MEP /Envelope, LEED Commissioning 585,000
Sustainability 195,000
Parking/Traffic Studies 350,000
Miscellaneous 970,967

Movable / Equipment $3,981,631
Exam Room Equipment 990,600
Recovery Equipment 850,500
Infusion equipment 900,531
Cancer Examination Equipment 485,000
Misc. Equipment 755,000

Bond Issuance / Finance Expense $1,018,870

Net Interest $3,579,970

Other Costs to be Capitalized $7,326,834
FF&E 2,658,334
Security Systems and Head End Equipment 898,000
Site Signage 960,000
Interior Signage 205,000
Data Infrastructure, wireless, telecom 835,500
Miscellaneous costs 825,000
Costs CON, City of Park Ridge, MWRD 945,000

TOTAL $99,146,720
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Attachment 7 - Financial Review Standards Cost Details

Preplanning Costs:

Meets Standard

Site Survey and Soil Investigation:

Not Applicable

Off Site Work:

No Standard

Site Preparation:

Meets Standard

Off Site Work:

No Standard

New Construction Contracts:

Cost Exceeds Standards due to:
» Challenging condensed site and logistics
e Sustainability goals: LEED Silver to be pursued

¢ Advocate room standards to be implemented based on operational and support
best practice committee input

« High functioning exterior envelope
e Inviting public spaces to accommodate community events
o State-of-the-art technologies and future ready infrastructure

¢ Phasing / sequencing of the work increases costs, but allows for continuity of
care through construction

e Infection prevention provisions - applied to such a small project area, this
strongly influences the overall cost per sf.

e Renovation includes retrofit of main reception area millwork and feature
components, driving a higher to maintain the elevated standard of finish in
these welcoming spaces.

¢ Pharmacy work requires extensive support for complex ventilation equipment.

e Pharmacy clean room environments carry an associated premium cost to
achieve regulatory compliance.

« Site location requires a finished appearance on all sides, including the back of
the building, which faces the public roadway and adjacent high school, which
elevates the project cost.

e Stormwater infrastructure requirements establish a significant cost to address
best practice requirements on an overall site basis.

Modernization Contracts:

TBD

Contingencies:

Meets Standard

Architectural/Engineering Fees:

Meets Standard

Consulting and Other Fees:

No Standard

Movable and Other Equipment:

No Standard

Bond Issuance Expense (project
related):

No Standard

Net Interest Expense During
Construction (project related):

No Standard

Other Costs to be Capitalized:

No Standard
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Project Status and Completion Schedules

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
[] None or not applicable [] Preliminary
[X] Schematics [ ] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): December 31, 2028

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer to
Part 1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language
related to CON Contingencies

X Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The following CON/COE applications have received permits from the HFSRB and are in process
of development. These projects are expected to be completed on time and within budget
without any changes in scope.

Advocate lllinois Masonic Medical Center #22-009
Advocate ASTC — Chicago Webster #23-007
Advocate Outpatient Center Westmont #24-001
Advocate Naperville ASTC/Cath/Outpatient Center  #24-008
Advocate Lutheran General Hospital #24-029
Advocate Good Shepherd Hospital #24-015
Advocate Trinity Hospital #25-002/25-003
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross

Square Feet (BGSF) and cost.

The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be

identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any
space is being reallocated for a different purpose.
department’s or area’s portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated

Include outside wall measurements plus the

space.
Department Gross Square Amount of Proposed Total Department Gross
Feet Square Feet That Is:
CON New .
Dept. / Area Total Costs Existing Proposed Const. M(E(ézngied As s Vsacated
(CCC) pace
CLINICAL
Hematology Oncology
Clinic & Infusion Center $21,316,864 17,135 26,511 26,511 0 0 17,135
Outpatient TCT Clinic & $3,426,568 2,810 4120 | 4,120 0 0 | 2810
Apbheresis Services
Outpatient Infusion Center $7,027,507 3,700 7,910 7,910 0 0 3,700
Multispecialty Surgical $6,604,865 3,745 8,065 8,065 0 0 3,745
Oncology Clinic
Dedicated Oncology Lab
(CCC) $2,206,399 0 1,683 1,683 0 0 80
Hospital Outpatient Lab
(CAC) $1,514,386 1,510 2,315 0 1,350 965 80
Dedicated Oncology
Pharmacy (Level 2) $3,156,216 605 2,420 2,420 0 0 605
TCT Non-TCT Pharmacy $2,270,870 0 1,639 1,639 0 0 0
(Level 1)
Total Clinical $47,523,676 29,505 54,663 52,348 1,350 965 28,155
NON-CLINICAL Non-
Reviewable
Staff Support $3,912,474 480 1,690 1,210 480 0 0
Conference Room $605,432 0 622 622 0 0 0
Reception/Waiting/ $15,566,826 3,587 14,721 9,838 3983 900 547
circulation/building support
Mechanical/Electrical, IT $27,022,641 4,250 14,827 10,577 0 4,250 0
Cancer Survivorship Center $4,515,671 2,145 3,010 3,010 0 0 2,145
Total Non-Clinical $51,623,044 10,462 34,870 25,257 4,463 5,150 2,692
Total $99,146,720 39,967 89,453 77,605 5,813 6,115 | 30,847
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The proposed use of the vacated space is outlined below.

Current Dept. / Area

‘ Uses:

Gross Square Feet

Clinical

Hematology Oncology Clinic & Infusion

CAC- new clinic development 17,135
Center
Outpatient TCT Clinic & Apheresis Services CAC- new clinic development 2,810
Outpatient Infusion Center CAC- new clinic development 3,700
. . . . MOB (Parkside) and CAC- new clinic
Multispecialty Surgical Oncology Clinic development 3,745
Outpatient Lab CAC — Redevelopment to public circulation 160
Oncology Pharmacy CAC — new clinic development 605
TOTAL- Clinical 28,155
Non-Clinical
Cancer Survivorship Center Building has been/will be demolished 2,145
CAC — Redevelopment to public circulation
CAC Lobby and existing outpatient lab 547
TOTAL- Non-Clinical 2,692
TOTAL 30,847

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.

The use of the vacated space will be determined based on Master Planning needs of the
Hospital and clinicians. No cost to modernize the space was included.
These will be used by hospital-based services or leased to physicians and other clinical

providers for their clinic offices.

If vacated spaces are used in the future for clinical services that require a CON permit, a CON
application will be submitted to the HFSRB for approval.
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The chart below provides only the modernization in the existing CAC.

Department Gross Square | Amount of Proposed Total Department Gross Square
Feet Feet That Is:
CON New .
Dept. / Area Total Costs Existing Proposed Const. Modernized As s Vacated
(CAC) Space
(CCO)
CLINICAL
Hospital Outpatient Lab (CAC) $1,514,386 1,510 2,315 0 1,350 965 80
Total Clinical $1,514,386 1,510 2,315 0 1,350 965 80
NON-CLINICAL Non-
Reviewable
Staff Support (CAC) $913,000 480 480 0 480 0 0
Reception/Waiting/
circulation/building support $4,422,885 3,587 2,883 0 3,983 900 547
(CAC)
Total Non-Clinical $5,335,884 4,067 3,363 0 4,463 900 547
Total $6,850,270 5,577 5,678 0 5,813 1,865 627
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SECTION lil. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. Alisting of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in lllinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

3. For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility
is considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted, or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the conviction, and submit any police or court records regarding any matters
disclosed.

c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or
governmental agency.

4. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

5. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant can submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.
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1. For the following questions, please a listing of all health care facilities owned or operated
by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if applicable.

Attachment 11, Exhibit 1, is the listing of all lllinois licensed health care facilities owned by
the applicants. Exhibit 2 is the current state hospital license for Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital. Beyond those listed in Exhibit 1, there are no other lllinois hospitals owned by
Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. in lllinois. lllinois Certificates of Good Standing for the
applicants are provided in Attachment 1 and are incorporated in Attachment 11 by
reference.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated
by the applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the
application.

By the signatures on the Certification pages of this application, the applicants attest there
has been no “adverse action” (as that term is defined in Section 1130.140 of the lllinois
Health Facilities and Services Review Board (HFSRB) rules) against any lllinois health care
facility owned and/or operated by the applicants, during the three-year period immediately
prior to the filing of this application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary.

The applicants hereby authorize the HFSRB and the Illinois Department of Public Health to
access information that may be required in order to verify any documentation or
information submitted in response to the requirements of this subsection, or to obtain any
documentation or information which the HFSRB or lllinois Department of Public Health find
pertinent to this subsection.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for
permit, the documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill
the information requirements of this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall
attest that the information was previously provided, cite the project number of the prior
application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the information that has
been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data

All licensure and accreditation information required with Attachment 11 is attached and the
applicants are not relying on a previously filed application.

5. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including
licensing, and certification if applicable.
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lllinois Hospitals owned and operated by the applicants.

Facility Location Iﬁlgense Accreditation No.
’és:;’:fte Christ Medical 4440 West 95th St Oak Lawn, IL 60453 315 HCO ID 7397
Advocate Condell Medical 801 South Milwaukee Ave Libertyville, IL 5579 HCO ID 7372
Center 60048
AdvoFate Good Samaritan 3815 Highland Ave Downers Grove, IL 3384 HCO ID 729672
Hospital 60515
ﬁi‘s’gictztle Good Shepherd 450 West Highway 22 Barrington, IL60010 | 3475 PRJC-369027-2012-MSL-USA
Advocate Illinois Masonic . .

. 836 West Wellington Ave Chicago, IL 60657 | 5165 PRJC-529782-2015-AST-USA
Medical Center
ﬁ:\slgict:e Lutheran General | 1 2c o nster St Park Ridge, IL 60068 4796 PRJC-369033-2012-MSL-USA
Advocate Sherman Hospital 1425 North Randall Rd Elgin, IL 60123 5884 PRJC-496379-2013-MSL-USA
AdVOfZate South Suburban 17800 South Kedzie Ave Hazel Crest, IL 4697 HCO ID 7311
Hospital 60429
Advocate Trinity Hospital 2320 East 93rd Street Chicago, IL 60617 4176 HCO ID 7311

Additionally, AHHC has ownership interest of 50% or more in the following licensed health care facilities

Facility

Location

Joint Commission
Accreditation No/
License Accreditation

No. Association for
Ambulatory Health Care,
Inc.

Dreyer Ambulatory Surgery
Center

1220 N. Highland Ave, Aurora, IL

7001779 AAAHC
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Plac

Cincinnati, OH, 05 June, 2024

DNV

HEALTHCARE CERTIFICATE

This is to cedify that the management system of

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
1775 Dempster Street, Park Ridge, IL, 60068, USA

has been found to comply with the requirements of the:

NIAHO® Hospital Accreditation Program

Pursuant to the authority granted to DNV Healthcare USA Inc. by the U.5.
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, this organization is deemed in compliance with the Medicare Conditions of
Participation for Hospitals (42 C.F.R. §482).

e and date: For the issuing office:
DNV Healthcare USA Inc.
4435 Aicholtz Road, Suite 900, Cincinnati,

OH, 45245, USA

CMS =

Management Representative
CENTERS B MEDHARE b MEGICAIR SRVICES

Lack

of fulfilment of conditions a5 set out in the Certification Agreement may render this Certificate invaliid.

ACCREDITED UNIT: DNV Hoalthoars USA Inc., 4435 Acho bz Road, Suite 900, Cnannat, O, 45245 USA -TEL: +1 S13-847-8343. wwwe. drviwalShoam com
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«t——— DISPLAY THIS PARTINA.
CONSPICUQUS PLACE

i ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF

@8 PUBLIC HEALTH HF13546¢

The person, frm or corporation whose name appears on this certficate has complied with the provisions
of the linois statutes and/or rules and regulations and is hereby authonzed 10 engage in the activity as
indicated below.

Issuad under e authorty of
e Ko Depatment of

Sameer Vohra, MD,JD,MA i 1
l SINOCIor | o b | Exp. Date 12/31/2026
T 12/31/2026 . T 0004796 ) Lic Number 0004796

General Hospital ; Date Printed 12/31/2025
Validation Num

Effective: 01/01/2026

Lutheran General Hospital - Advocate

Lutheran General Hospital - Advocate i, 1775 Dempster Street
1775 Dempster Street ) ParkRidge, IL 60068
Park Ridge, IL 60068

The face of this license has a colored background. « Printad by Authonty of the Stase of lincss « P.O. #4025007 2M 4725

FEE RECEIPT NO.
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SECTION Ilil - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.
Criterion 1110.110 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

1110.110(b) — Purpose of Project

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be included in the State Board Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

1. Document that the Project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-
being of the market area population to be served.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital is proposing a new construction and modernization project to
continue to provide comprehensive Oncology services to the patients in the service area. In 2018, a
Master Facility Plan was developed that addressed the future of the ambulatory care services for
the key destination services at the hospital and identified space and programming deficiencies.

For the outpatient Oncology services, the plan identified a campus plan for current and long-term
facility needs to continue to provide access for the Hematology and Surgical Oncology clinics and
infusion services and create a full service TCT (Transplant and Cellular Therapy) focused center in
one convenient location at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital.

This project is designed to meet the growing need for innovative cancer care as well as the

projected demand for these cutting-edge treatments in a coordinated, fully integrated location with
increased space and resources.
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The new construction in the project includes a two-floor addition (CCC) to the Center for Advanced
Care (CAC) building on the Advocate Lutheran General campus to relocate and expand outpatient
Oncology services to create one comprehensive location to support patients and providers and to
expand access by consolidating all services within the OP Oncology program.

Level 1 includes the relocation and expansion of:
e TCT clinic and apheresis services
e Qutpatient TCT infusion service, Blood transfusions, Oncology and non-Oncology infusions
e Multispecialty surgical oncology clinic
e Dedicated phlebotomy lab for oncology patients
e Dedicated pharmacy to support TCT and Non-TCT infusion centers
e Survivorship program and healing garden

Level 2 includes the relocation and expansion of:
e Hematology Oncology clinic and infusion center
e Dedicated pharmacy to support hematology oncology infusion center
e A conference room for staff and educational programs.

These will be developed providing the appropriately designed space with contemporary standards
and functionality for comprehensive outpatient Oncology services focusing on the patient and their
families.

The project will also include the modernization and expansion of the Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital outpatient lab located on the first floor of the existing CAC located at 1700 Luther Lane.

Outpatient TCT Center and Infusion Service

The Transplant and Cellular Therapy Program (TCT) at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital provides
advanced treatment options and access to cutting edge clinical services to serve the needs of
transplant and cellular therapy patients.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital has been performing autologous HSC transplants since 1991.
HLA matched-related allogeneic transplants began in 1994 and unrelated stem cell transplants in
June of 2015.

The program is recognized as a Transplant and Cellular Therapy Center at the same level as other
nationally recognized centers. This includes recognition from the Foundation for the Accreditation
of Cellular Therapy (FACT). The LGH TCT program is recognized by the Commission on Cancer in the
academic category and is only one of the 10% of TCT programs that are community based; offering
a TCT program in the service area to provide access that does not require travel out of the service
area.

The program has been accredited with National Marrow Donor Program (NMDP) and has been an
approved collection center since 2003. It is an authorized treatment center for CAR-T cellular
therapies since 2019 and is the only CAR-T cell program in the Northwest suburbs.

The proposed CCC will provide updated and contemporary space to relocate the current TCT
services that are located in three separate areas on the hospital campus. The components will
include the TCT clinic, examination and procedure rooms, apheresis rooms, pharmacy, staff space
and infusion bays.
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The design will provide appropriately sized rooms and configuration to create a comprehensive
outpatient care model, expanded clinic rooms, greater staff efficiency and a cohesive patient
experience to support the collaborative, integrated program.

Hematology Oncology and Infusion Service

This project includes relocation and expansion of the current Hematology Oncology service located
on the second floor of the existing CAC building on the hospital campus. The relocation will
accommodate an increased number of exam rooms and infusion bays to improve existing access to
Hematology Oncology/Infusion services and to sustain future program growth. An improved design
will provide appropriate room sizes and configuration/proximity to nurses’ stations to ensure
proper line of sight for clinical care. Additionally, the relocation will allow for the significant
expansion of a dedicated oncology pharmacy to better accommodate existing volume as well as
future program growth.

The expanded space will accommodate the required number of rooms to support current and
projected volume and be designed to meet current best practices and Advocate Aurora Health room
standards.

Modernization of the Hospital’s Outpatient Lab

The project will include the modernization and expansion of the Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital outpatient lab. The modernized space will be designed to accommodate the expanded
space needed to support the increased volume that these services experienced over the past few
years and the additional access to care with state-of-the-art equipment needed to serve the patient
population now and in the future. The outpatient lab is integral to Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital continuing to provide complex state of the art, high quality, and outpatient laboratory care
to the communities in the service area.

Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant’s definition.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital is a major provider of health care to the residents of Suburban
Cook County and surrounding areas. The hospital was founded in 1897. It is located in the IHFSRB
Planning Area A-07 as shown in Attachment 12, Exhibit 1.

The Hospital’s service area includes fifty-five zip codes that comprise 70% of the hospitals’ IP and OP
surgical cases. The majority of the hospital’s inpatient and outpatient oncology patients reside in

the service area. Attachment 12 Exhibit 2 provides a map of the hospital’s service area.

With a population of 1,371,128, the service area is a diverse community with 21% of its residents of
Hispanic ethnicity and a racial distribution of 61% White, 14% Asian, 4% Black and 21% other.

As outlined below, older adults (65 and older) represent 21 percent of the service area population.
The demographic population information for the Lutheran General Hospital is provided in the table

below. Although the total population in the service area is expected to be flat, the 65+ population is
projected to grow by 8%, expecting an increase of over 21,000 additional older residents.
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Advocate Lutheran General Total Service Area Demographics
Age Group | 2025 Population 2030 Population 2025 % of Total Population Change
0-17 280,125 260,923 -6.9% (19,202)
18-44 444,362 422,965 -4.8% (21,397)
45-64 359,124 345,223 -3.9% (13,901)
65+ 287,517 309,064 7.5% 21,547
TOTAL 1,371,128 1,338,175 -2.4% (32,953)

Source: Esri 2025

The population for the entire Planning Area A-07, similar to the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
service area, shows that the 65+ population is the age group projected to grow over the next five
years.

As the multicultural aspects of the community change, the Hospital is committed to meeting the
social and medical needs of the population. The hospital has continued to adapt to the changing
health care needs and provide the continuum of health care services to families that live in the
hospital’s defined service area.

2. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and
appropriate for the project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.] add
deficiencies of the existing unit

The project addresses the need to create contemporary space to accommodate all components of
the Hematology Oncology infusion service and TCT programs. The components of the Lutheran
General Hospital Service Line are provided in Attachment 12, Exhibit 3.

The proposed plan will create a Hematology Oncology infusion space to provide updated room
sizes, corridor width, and staff space in an appropriate configuration to support the current
Hematology Oncology services.

The expansion and reconfiguration for the Outpatient Hematology Oncology infusion program is
needed due to clinical advancements and to accommodate modern clinical equipment and
resources. The existing room sizes and configuration limits the throughput and access for the
infusion services. The room sizes are often too small to accommodate the patient treatment, and
the corridors are often too narrow for patients in wheelchairs or with others providing assistance.
The newly designed space will address the room size and corridor deficiencies and provide the
adjacencies needed for provider collaboration. There will be increased clinical visibility for infusion
patients and increased privacy for patients.

The TCT program will relocate all services to a contemporary integrative space that will be designed
with the number of rooms needed for each component in a configuration designed based on the
needs of the patient. The room sizes will be brought up to current standards, and the number of
rooms will increase based on current and projected volume. The first-floor infusion space will offer
private infusion rooms for the privacy and infection control required for TCT patients with
compromised immunity. The design will provide increased visibility of patients and increased
support space. The co-location of all services will support the coordination of patient care and
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improve critical collaboration between their team of providers. Current TCT services are located in
three areas on the hospital campus and are a distance from the parking areas and from each other,
as shown in the campus map provided as Attachment 12, Exhibit 4. Patients need to be transported
from building to building and this is often a hardship for patients that are undergoing this
treatment.

3. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

e Clinical, administrative, and financial data from Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation
and Advocate Lutheran General Hospital

e Advocate Lutheran General Hospital Strategic Master Facility Plan

e |lllinois Department of Public Health Hospital Licensing Code

e |llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board (HFSRB) Administrative Rules

e |HA COMPdata

e AIA/FGI Guidelines for Design and Construction of Health Care Facilities

e |lllinois Administrative Code, Title 77, Chapter I, Subchapter b, Part 250, Section 250.2440
General Hospital Standards

e Esriand the US Census Bureau demographic reports

e HFSRB Hospital Profiles

e HFSRB Inventories and Data

e Health care literature regarding current Oncology trends

e City of Park Ridge Building Code, International Building Codes, National Electrical Code, State
of lllinois Plumbing Code, Accessibility Code and State Hospital Licensing Standards

e Sg2 Inpatient Surgical Forecast; Sg2 Impact of Change Inpatient Procedure Expert Analysis

4. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the
population’s health status and well-being.

The primary purpose of the Project is to continue to provide the highest level of Oncology services
to the patients in the Lutheran General Hospital service area.

The Oncology Destination Program at LGH includes a comprehensive service ranging from Inpatient
Hematology and Surgical Oncology to Outpatient clinical services and support.

Hematology Oncology Infusion Services include:
e Chemotherapy

e Immunotherapy and other infusion services
e Clinical Research Trials

TCT Procedures include:

e Autologous procedures - chemotherapy, immunotherapy and other infusion services and
clinical research trials

e Allogeneic procedures — matched related, haploidentical, matched unrelated, umbilical cord

e Cell Therapy — donor lymphocyte infusion

e CAR-T Cell Therapy
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The proposed CCC will be designed for flexibility to support the growth of Oncology and infusion
services in the future. This space will be able to support future clinics such as lipid and iron clinics
and procedural services such as vascular access services.

Sg2, a national Consulting Firm, forecasts that Transplant and Cellular Therapy (TCT) services will
continue to increase over the next ten years. This is in part due to the increasing incidence in the
older population and these patients may not be good candidates for other interventions.
Additionally, TCT is being used for a wider variety of diseases to include autoimmune and genetic
disorders beyond just blood-based cancers. These services include Stem Cell Transplant, and
Immune Effector Cell Therapy (CAR-T).

e Sg2 is forecasting Stem Cell Transplant procedures to see a 38% projected growth in the
outpatient setting driven by improved care coordination and the use of more effective drugs
for managing complications over the next 10 years.

e OQutpatient Immune Effector Cell Therapy procedures are forecasted by Sg2 to increase by
19% in the next 5 years and 41% in the next 10 years. Growth for immune effector cell
therapy will accelerate as new drugs for blood and solid tumors are introduced and
expanded into earlier lines of therapy.

As provided in Attachment 12, Exhibit 5, Sg2 forecasts an increase in outpatient oncology of 10%
over the next five years and 18% over the next ten years. Outpatient chemotherapy is forecasted to
increase by 12% over the next five years with immune effector cell therapy to increase by 19%.
Strong growth in outpatient volumes will be driven by minimally invasive diagnostic and surgical
procedures; clinically guided infusions incorporating neoadjuvant, perioperative and combination
regimens; radiation therapy; increased access to screening; and continued reliance on imaging for
diagnosis, staging, and treatment monitoring. Updated screening guidelines will expand eligible
populations, supporting volume growth over the next three to five years.

The improvements in the physical facility will create a comprehensive, coordinated space to
accommodate all of the services that are part of the Hematology Oncology and TCT programs. The
rooms will be right-sized and configured to meet the Advocate and current industry standards.

5. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate
to achieving the stated goals as appropriate.

The principal goal for this project is to invest in and develop a modern and updated infrastructure,
to allow Advocate Lutheran General to continue to provide the highest level of Oncology care to
residents in the community. The construction phasing plan was developed to keep the services
operational within each phase of the modernization process. This project will be LEED certified and
carbon neutral, a leader in environmental sustainability.

The entire project is expected to be completed and operational by December 31, 2028.
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G) Planning Area A-7: Cook County Townships of Maine, Elk Grove, Schaumburg, Palatine

and Wheeling.
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Advocate Lutheran General Hospital — Oncology Service Line

At Lutheran General, we are committed to bringing academic level care to our patients and families
in a personalized, community setting. We offer a myriad of comprehensive cancer services from
diagnosis through treatment through survivorship.

The following services are offered on our campus:
e Dedicated TCT Program

» Inpatient Oncology and TCT Unit
Apheresis Center
Cell Processing Lab
TCT Program Coordination office
Outpatient Infusion Center
Advocate Research Institute

» Carol St. Apartments/Lodging
e Interventional Pulmonology

YV VYV VYV

e Advanced surgical services, including robotics; our lung cancer surgery program, which was
ranked #40 by U.S. News and World Report

e US News and World Report rated as High performing in the following areas for Advocate
Lutheran General Hospital in Park Ridge, IL - Rankings & Ratings:
» Leukemia, Lymphoma and Myeloma
» Colon Cancer Surgery
» Gynecologic Cancers
» Lung Cancer Surgery

e Cardio-Oncology

e Gynecologic Oncology

e Survivorship Center: It includes social work, nutrition services and other support programming
to promote health and wellness for cancer survivor patients and their families

e Rehabilitation services

e Palliative Care

The following services are offered in the Center for Advanced care dedicated to bringing specialty

services to our community in one convenient location on our campus:

e Caldwell Breast Center: includes advanced breast imaging, breast surgery clinic and
multidisciplinary breast clinic

e Advanced diagnostic imaging

e OQutpatient laboratory services

e Fertility Services

e Genetic Counseling

e Hematology Oncology: includes chemotherapy, targeted therapy infusions

e TCT Clinic

e Radiation Oncology: includes SRS/SBRT, brachytherapy

e Neuro-Oncology

e Nurse Navigators
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Outpatient Cancer Forecast
US Market, 2025-2035
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Outpatient Cancer Procedures Forecast
US Market, 2025-2030
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Outpatient Cancer Forecast by Service Line
Subspecialty, US Market, 2025-2035
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SECTION Ill - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs.

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives
READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A)  Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;
B)  Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or entities to meet all
or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing alternative settings to meet all or a
portion of the project's intended purposes;
C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of the population
proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The comparison
shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial benefits in both the short term
(within one to three years after project completion) and long term. This may vary by project or
situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE
REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.
3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

As part of the overall Advocate Lutheran General Hospital Master Planning process, it was
determined that there was a critical need for expansion and modernization to address space
programming for the Hematology Oncology and TCT services on the hospital’s campus.

Several alternatives as outlined below were evaluated based on the recommendations of the
Architects and the Hospital’s administration.

The project includes the expansion of the Center for Advanced Care (CAC) to relocate and expand all
outpatient TCT services creating an integrated TCT program; co-located with the relocation and
expansion of the outpatient Hematology Oncology service providing one coordinated location with
appropriately designed space and contemporary standards for patients receiving Oncology care.

Alternative One — Maintain services in current locations

The option to continue to offer the outpatient Hematology Oncology and TCT services in their
existing locations was not a reasonable option. This would not address the infrastructure or space
deficiencies of the current units. This option was rejected as it would not provide for the TCT
services to be in one location that would allow for clinical collaboration, patient safety as they
traverse between treatment areas, and the needed co-location of services for patient care.
Additional spaces on the hospital campus would need to be located, at the expense of other Clinical
programs.

Cost: No construction cost
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Alternative Two - Propose a Project of lesser scope and cost

This option would involve choosing either to relocate and expand only the outpatient Hematology
Oncology infusion service or to relocate and expand the TCT program. This would not address the
imperative needs identified to modernize and expand both. The project would either improve the
room sizes and configuration of the outpatient Hematology Oncology infusion service or provide
coordination, increased capacity and access for the TCT services. It would be a challenge to prioritize
one over the other and would be significantly costlier to complete these projects separately and
extend the timeframe for completion. It would be more disruptive for the patients and staff to
complete these as two separate projects.

Cost: $71,600,000 Medical Oncology only
$70,700,000 OP TCT only

Alternative Three - Propose a Project of greater scope and cost.

The option to build a free-standing larger addition to accommodate all inpatient and outpatient
Oncology services was considered. The current hospital building does not have the space within the
hospital to accommodate all outpatient services adjacent to the inpatient services.

The hospital campus does not have the space needed to build an appropriately sized building for all
inpatient and outpatient services and doing so would relocate key clinical services needed on the
campus. Building a multi-use facility instead of ambulatory only building would require compliance
and regulatory requirements adding to the cost. The cost to build this type of building would be
significantly higher than this project cost. Although this would address the clinical program and
space facility infrastructure issues, as good financial stewards, it was determined that the CAC could
be expanded to support these services and would provide the appropriate space needed for these
clinical services.

Cost: $350-450M

Alternative Four - Develop alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended
purposes.

Unlike other Outpatient services, these Oncology services are outpatient hospital services that need
to be located on the campus for patients during their treatment. Patients are often scheduled for
multiple oncology-related visits, i.e., lab, provider visit(s), treatment(s), in a single day; therefore,
alternative settings off-campus would not be conducive to offering a convenient, patient-centered
experience and would ultimately be burdensome for the oncology patient and their
family/caregiver. Allogeneic patients are very tired and immuno-compromised, and it is not ideal to
have them travel to and exposed to multiple environments.

The expansion of these services on-campus increases access to outpatient cancer services, and the
coordination of these services allows patients to receive clinic appointments and treatments in a
coordinated fashion. There are some services utilized by both IPs and OPs that are only offered on
campus (i.e. surgical services) that cannot move offsite. Other services such as radiation oncology
and surgical services are located on campus as well, which offers patients access to the major
specialties involved in cancer care.

Cost: $ 150M
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Alternative Five - Utilize other health care resources to serve the population proposed to be
served by the Project.

The option of referring Oncology patients to another hospital in the service area was not feasible.
The physicians seeing these patients are principally located near and on staff at Advocate Lutheran
General Hospital. They are providing tertiary level Oncology services for patients that live in this
community and have a long-established pattern of coming to this hospital for their comprehensive
care. Patients will benefit from all of their services staying in one health system to optimize
continuity of care and care coordination.

Lutheran General is the only hospital in the northwest suburbs offering TCT, CAR-T Cell and
apheresis services, therefore patients would otherwise need to travel out of the area for these
specialized services. The other hospitals in the area do not have the capabilities to provide TCT
services at their location.

Cost: No construction cost but would experience significant loss of patients and lack of continuity
of care.

Alternative Six — Creating a new two-floor addition (CCC) to the CAC to create a comprehensive
Outpatient Cancer Center on the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital campus.

This option was selected as it will allow the hospital to create a comprehensive outpatient cancer
center on the hospital campus providing the appropriately designed space with contemporary
standards and functionality to include all OP Medical Oncology and TCT services.

The project will expand the Center for Advanced Care (CAC) to relocate and expand all outpatient
TCT services, including clinic visits, apheresis services, infusion, a compounding pharmacy and
transfusion services to create a fully integrated TCT program. This building will co-locate with the
critical Hematology Oncology services including clinics, infusion, pharmacy and lab for patients
undergoing OP cancer care.

The project will continue the investment in the Oncology Institute to provide the critical services
and access for Advocate Lutheran General Hospital’s patients and the community into the future.

Project Cost: $99,146,720
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IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:
3. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not excessive.
This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and the
methodology applied.

4. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility’s Medical Director.

b. The existing facility’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an architectural
design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE STANDARD | DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD?

The gross square footage identified in this application for the proposed project’s new construction is
77,605 gsf, that includes 52,348gsf of clinical and 25,257 gsf of non-clinical space. The gross square
footage was developed based on AAH guidelines for oncology clinics and provider offices and is
appropriated sized and consistent with the standards identified in Appendix B of 77 Illinois Admin.
Code Section 1110.

Clinical Components

The proposed project includes the new CCC for relocation and expansion of the following
Outpatient Cancer Services at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital. The clinical components include
the following services:
e Hematology Oncology Clinic & Infusion Center
Outpatient Transplant & Cellular Therapy (TCT) Clinic & Apheresis Services
Outpatient Infusion Center providing:
o TCT Infusions
o Oncology Infusions
o Non-Oncology Infusions & Injections
o Blood Transfusions
Multispecialty Surgical Oncology Clinic
Dedicated Oncology Phlebotomy Lab
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Hematology Oncology Clinic & Infusion Center

Hematology Oncology Clinic

The clinic space for Hematology Oncology patients will include 26 exam rooms (an increase from 19
rooms). These rooms will support all provider visits, including new patient consultations and follow-
up visits. The additional rooms will increase patient access and sustain future program growth.
These services are currently housed in the CAC, now combined with infusion in one location.

Hematology Oncology Infusion

The infusion service for Hematology Oncology patients is co-located with the clinic and will provide
49 bays for Hematology Oncology patients. (an increase from 36 current bays). Infusion services
include chemotherapy, immunotherapy, targeted therapies, injections, and other infusions. This
space will be designed for privacy, increased clinical visibility and for infection control. These rooms
will be designed with the Advocate Aurora standard infusion room to include appropriately
designed patient zone, provider zone and family zone.

Outpatient TCT Clinic and Apheresis Services

TCT Clinic

The proposed project includes a total of 6 exam rooms (an increase from 5 rooms) to be used for
provider visits, including new patient consultations and follow-up visits. Exam rooms will be
designed for flexibility and to provide ample space for accompanying visitors and/or caregivers.
Additional rooms will be utilized for TCT procedures, including bone marrow biopsies and for
patient education visits. The additional room will increase patient access and sustain future program
growth.

Apheresis Services

This procedure is for healthy donors for patients who receive allogeneic transplants. Apheresis
services are also utilized for patients undergoing autologous transplants or CAR-T cell therapy. The
rooms are designed for this special type of procedure where blood is collected, part of the blood
such as platelets or white blood cells is removed, and the rest of the blood is returned to the donor
or patient.

There are 3 apheresis rooms in the proposed project are designed to support the current and
proposed patients requiring this service.

Outpatient Infusion Center

The Qutpatient Infusion Center in this comprehensive space within the CAC location will include 24
bays (an increase from 13 bays) to support TCT Infusions, Oncology Infusions, Non-Oncology
Infusions & Injections, and Blood Transfusions. The Outpatient Infusion Center will provide services
to TCT patients, non-AMG oncology patients, and non-oncology patients, such as patients being
referred by Rheumatology, Gastroenterology, or Infectious Disease.

Infusion services include intravenous and catheter-based infusion for chemotherapy, targeted
therapies, immunotherapy, fluids, blood transfusions and antibiotics.
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The infusion space will expand the number of bays to support the current and projected patients
and is designed for privacy, increased clinical visibility and for infection control. These rooms will be
designed with the Advocate Aurora infusion room standards and will include appropriately designed
areas for patients, providers and families-

The co-location of infusion to be directly adjacent to the clinic space allows TCT patients to receive
all care without having to travel throughout the hospital campus or return on a separate day.

This newly constructed expansion is being developed to include the required number of spaces and
appropriately sized rooms to accommodate patients and providers. The number of clinic and
infusion rooms was based on Industry standards used by the Design and Construction and architect
team. The guidelines used are determined based on the time patients are in the rooms for each
type of service and scheduling efficiencies. Current and projected volume was modeled to provide
the appropriate number of rooms to continue to provide access to these services.

The proposed square footage for the clinical spaces is outlined in the chart below.

There are no State Guidelines for square footage for these types of clinic rooms or infusion bays.

Other Clinical Services

The expanded space will support a 12-exam room, multispecialty clinic space dedicated to Surgical
Oncology practices, including fellowship-trained surgical oncologists, gynecologic oncologists, and
neuro-oncologists. In the current state, these practices hold clinics in various locations across the
LGH campus. This requires patients and their caregivers to visit multiple locations on campus, often
in a single day. Consolidating these practices into a single location will bring a more patient-
centered approach to cancer care at LGH.

Dedicated Oncology Lab

The lab dedicated to Oncology patients provides improved lab services, increasing access to stat
orders to allow the lab visit to be part of their clinic visit to receive care on the same day.

Stat orders will also decrease time to infusion as the infusion medications require lab testing
immediately prior to the infusion.

A dedicated lab will help to protect the immuno-compromised oncology patient population by
separating them from general outpatient lab patients.

Dedicated Oncology Pharmacy

The CCC expansion will include an outpatient pharmacy dedicated to supporting hematology
oncology services and patients receiving care. The dedicated Compounding pharmacy will serve
patients and provide timely and on-site specialty medications to be developed for the infusions in
the hematology oncology department. The pharmacy will include storage and staff preparation
space for the preparation of specialty medication for TCT and non-TCT infusions. The pharmacy will
be constructed to follow USP/ISO 797/800 rules of pharmaceuticals which require enhanced
mechanical and electrical services rules (including emergency power). The environment will require
the clean room rules related to donning and doffing with airlock technology. This pharmacy will be
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clinical facing only and will not include an outpatient pharmacy for medications that patients fill for
at home use.

TCT and Non-TCT Pharmacy

The CCC expansion will also include an outpatient pharmacy dedicated to supporting these infusion
services and the patients receiving care in this hospital-based program. The dedicated Compounding
pharmacy will serve the patients to provide timely and on-site specialty medications to be
developed for the infusions on the first floori The pharmacy will include storage and staff
preparation space for the preparation of specialty medication for TCT and non-TCT infusions. The
pharmacy will be constructed to follow USP/ISO 797/800 rules of pharmaceuticals which require
enhanced mechanical and electrical services rules (including emergency power). The environment
will require the clean room rules related to donning and doffing with airlock technology. This
pharmacy will be clinical facing only and will not include an outpatient pharmacy for medications
that patients fill for at home use.

Hospital Outpatient Lab — Modernization

The hospital’s existing Outpatient Lab located on the first floor of the current CAC will be
modernized and expanded to continue to provide outpatient lab services to other patients that
require services as part of their clinical care.

SIZE OF PROJECT

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

Hematology Oncology Clinic & Infusion 25,511 NA Yes
Center
Outpatient TCT Clinic & Apheresis 4,120 NA Yes
Services
Outpatient Infusion Center providing: 7,910 NA Yes

e TCT Infusions

e Oncology Infusions

e Non-Oncology Infusions &

Injections

e Blood Transfusions
Multispecialty Surgical Oncology Clinic 8,065 NA Yes
Dedicated Oncology Lab 1,683 NA Yes
Hospital Outpatient Lab — CAC 2,315 NA Yes
modernization
Dedicated Oncology Pharmacy (Level 2) 2,420 NA Yes
TCT Non-TCT Pharmacy (Level 1) 1,639 NA Yes
TOTAL 54,663 NA Yes
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Non-Clinical Components

The non-clinical components of the proposed project’s new construction total 25,257 DGSF of
space. This includes physician offices, research team offices, patient education rooms, staff support
space, storage, public waiting, registration, circulation, building support, and the lobby.

The staff and support space will provide additional space needed to support these clinics. The
adjacency to the clinic and infusion space will allow providers to be available for patients and
remain in this location. The registration area will be designed for privacy to schedule appointments
and discuss insurance information for preauthorization, scheduling appointments and pharmacy.

Space is included for patient education and additional programming to establish a TCT survivorship
clinic in the program for patients past 100 days post-transplant. This will be a monthly clinic led by
an APC and continue at regular intervals for long-term follow-up care.

Cancer Survivorship Center

The relocation of the LGH Cancer Survivorship center will improve patient convenience and access
to services. This space will support the expansion of all existing Cancer Survivorship programs, such
as multispecialty room holding 70+ monthly activities, a quiet space for massage therapy, consult
rooms for social work and nutrition visits, and a wig boutique. All of the above activities are free of
charge and participation is open to any and all active cancer patients and survivors in the
community.

The expanded space will also include room to allow for future program growth and expansion, such
as the introduction of an Integrative Medicine program and other services that the existing space
cannot accommodate. Finally, the new space will allow for further growth of the Adolescent and
Young Adult (AYA) cancer navigation program by providing a space for the AYA Navigator to hold
both virtual and in-person visits.

There are no State Guidelines for the non-clinical components of the project.

Non-Clinical Department/Areas PROPOSED DGSF (in project)
Connecting Circulation 871

Entry Vestibule Main 489

Public Circulation 8,478

Survivorship 3,010

Staff Support 1,210

Building Support (Mech/Elec/IT) 10,577

Conference 622

CAC Lobby & PSR 0

TOTAL 25,257
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PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 15, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The proposed Project includes relocation and consolidation of all outpatient Oncology services
within this new CCC building Project.

The utilization for each clinical service has been projected to 2029, the first year the project is
scheduled to be completed.

The proposed project includes relocation and expansion for the following Outpatient Cancer
Services at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital. The clinical components include the following
services for the Outpatient Hematology Oncology Services, TCT and Infusion Services:
e Hematology Oncology Clinic & Infusion Center
e Transplant & Cellular Therapy (TCT) Clinic & Apheresis Services
e Outpatient Infusion Center providing:
o TCT Infusions
o Oncology Infusions
o Non-Oncology Infusions & Injections
o Blood Transfusions
e Multispecialty Surgical Oncology Clinic
e Dedicated Oncology Phlebotomy Lab
e Dedicated Oncology Pharmacy
e TCT Non-TCT Pharmacy

Hematology Oncology Clinic & Infusion Center

Over the last 5 years, the Outpatient Hematology Oncology clinic and infusion volumes have
increased year over year. Based on the projected growth in the service area, and the continued
growth of these hospital services, the utilization Is projected to increase by 5% due to continued
increase in survival with palliative immunotherapy treatments and continuing rise in cancer
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incidence overall. The modernization of this area will be designed to increase the number of rooms
in this service to increase access for the Hematology Oncology patients.

Outpatient TCT Clinic and Apheresis Services

Based on the increasing need for the TCT services and these infusions, utilization is projected to
increase by 60% over the next five years. The TCT program at LGH has grown from one to three
practicing physicians to accommodate the increasing need for TCT services. The development of this
expanded area will include an increased number of clinic and procedural rooms to accommodate
the growing number of provider clinics.

The historical and projected utilization for the outpatient TCT Clinic exam rooms, Apheresis and
infusion services and multispecialty surgical oncology clinic are outlined in Attachment 31.

Outpatient Infusion Center

The Outpatient Infusion Center provides a variety of services, including TCT-related infusions and
other oncology-related infusions. As mentioned above, oncology infusions are projected to increase
due to increase in survival with palliative immunotherapy treatments and continuing rise in cancer
incidence overall. Additionally, outpatient TCT procedures are expected to increase significantly
over the next 10 years as certain therapies, such as CAR-T therapy, will become more common in
the outpatient setting. The expansion of the Outpatient Infusion Center is designed to provide an
increase in the number of infusion bays to accommodate such growth.

Other Clinical Services
The consolidated multispecialty surgical oncology clinic, and new outpatient oncology lab will
contribute to improved patient access in a new, expanded environment that offers closer proximity
to all other cancer services.

Modernization and expansion of the existing hospital outpatient lab (CAC) will provide continued
and expanded access to all other outpatients requiring lab services.

The historical and projected utilization for these clinical services is outlined in Attachment 31.

HISTORICAL
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE UTILIZATION :'II:(L)IJZI;C'I.:E)?\I ST/S\L?).I.:RD STAI\“IAI;E:RD?
(PATIENT VISITS)
2025AY Year 1- 2029
Hematology Oncology Clinic Visits 39,946 40,726 NA Yes
Hematology Oncology Infusions 32,399 33,179 NA Yes
TCT clinic visits/treatments 3,752 6,044 NA Yes
Apheresis visits 729 740 NA Yes
Oncology Infusions 7,357 7,555 NA Yes
Thoracic surgical oncology clinic visits 5,058 5,188 NA Yes
OP Lab visits 65,434 71,977 NA Yes
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Although there are no industry standards for utilization of outpatient Oncology hospital clinics or
infusion, the architect facility planning team with hospital leaders developed room ratios based on
current patient volume, the time for each procedure or service and the number of days that the
rooms would be utilized. The clinical services will be designed to be co-located with the other
required services that are part of the care of these patients.

There are no state standards for utilization for the clinical services in the project.
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area, or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Not Applicable — no shell space.
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ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Not Applicable — no shell space.
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Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
categories of service must submit the following information:

2. Indicate changes by Service:  Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):

# Existing Key Rooms # Proposed Key Rooms ‘

Service
|:| Hematology Oncology Clinic & Infusion Center 19 clinic rooms and 36 26 clinic rooms and 49
infusion bays infusion bays
|:| Outpatient TCT Clinic & Apheresis Services 5 clinic rooms and 2 6 clinicrooms and 3
apheresis bays apheresis bays
[] Outpatient Infusion Center 13 infusion bays 24 infusion bays
[ ] Multispecialty Surgical Oncology Clinic 4 12
Dedicat I L
[] Dedicated Oncology Lab 0 1 lab (6 stations)
[ ] Hospital Outpatient Lab — Modernization (CAC) 11ab (5 stations) 1 lab (6 stations)
|:| Dedicated Oncology Pharmacy 1 1
[ ] TCT and Non-TCT Pharmacy 0 1
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation
for the criteria:
Project Type Required Review Criteria
New Services or Facility or Equipment (b) = Need Determination — Establishment
Service Modernization (c)(1) — Deteriorated Facilities
AND/OR

(c)(2) — Necessary Expansion
PLUS

(c)(3)(A) — Utilization — Major Medical Equipment

OR

(c)(3)(B) — Utilization — Service or Facility

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 31, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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Hematology Oncology Clinic & Infusion Center

c) Service Modernization
The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets the following:

2) - Necessary Expansion

The Cancer Center at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital, established in 1990, currently provides
Outpatient Hematology Oncology services in the Center for Advanced Care (CAC) on the hospital
campus. The Outpatient Hematology Oncology Program provides an integrative care model that
includes hematology oncology clinics and infusion space for these patients. This model provides a
multidisciplinary team to deliver integrated care to patients.

The proposed project (the new CCC) will address the Hematology Oncology Clinic and Infusion
capacity issues in the current location. The Outpatient Hematology Oncology service was developed
in an existing space designed for another clinical service and does not provide adequate room sizes
and number of rooms. This project will include the infusion space within this footprint to be
designed to meet the needs of current and future Hematology Oncology infusion services.

The infusion bays will be designed to improve patients’ privacy and satisfaction. The design of this
area will right-size the rooms to current standards and improve the layout of the rooms for the
increasing number of Hematology Oncology patients and services in the Lutheran General
community. This will include:

e Increasing the number of chemotherapy bays

e Increasing the room sizes to accommodate disabled patients

e Improving patient viability

e Improving and separating patient and staff flows

e Improving and increasing nursing work areas

e Redesign for supply drop off and clean supply storage

Significant growth in the Hematology Oncology outpatient clinic and infusion visits at Advocate
Lutheran General Hospital has occurred over the last 5 years.

The current number of 19 clinic rooms will increase to 26 clinic rooms to increase the number of
patients that can be seen each day.

There are currently 36 infusion bays for the Hematology Oncology Center. This project will provide
the number of infusion bays needed, increasing to 49. On average, there are 55-60 patients each
day receiving infusion services. In addition to Chemotherapy, the number of patients receiving
immunotherapies as part of their ongoing treatment has grown as the number of immunotherapies
has increased and expanded uses of these therapies to improve quality of life.

Infusions take on average 5 % hours and each chair can accommodate 1-2 patients per day. The
additional 13 infusion bays will improve access for the current and future patients.
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Efficient care coordination between our clinic and infusion services is vital to the efficient delivery of
care. Patients often see their provider in clinic and then receive treatment in our infusion center,
which is in an adjacent space.

Sg2 forecasts an increase in outpatient oncology of 10% over the next five years and 18% over the
next ten years. Outpatient chemotherapy is forecasted to increase by 12% over the next five years.
With cancer cases expected to continue to rise, an expansion of the cancer center is necessary to
continue to serve patients with outstanding clinical care in a contemporary setting.

3)(B) -Utilization — Service or Facility

The Outpatient Hematology Oncology Infusion volume is provided below. Over the last three years,
clinic and infusion visits have increased by 16% and 23%. Additional space is needed to support
projected increase utilization.

Based on projections outlined, utilization is estimated to continue to increase over the next five
years. The projected year-over-year growth outlined is due to continued increase in survival with
palliative immunotherapy treatments and the continuing rise in cancer incidence overall.

% Change
2022 2023 2024 2025AY 2022-
2025AY
Hematology Oncology Clinic Visits 32,422 35,862 39,808 39,946 23.2%
Hematology Oncology Infusions 27,805 30,009 30,454 32,399 16.5%
% Change
2026 2027 2028 2029 2026-2029
Hematology Oncology Clinic Visits 39,946 39,946 39,946 40,726 2.0%
Hematology Oncology Infusions 32,399 32,399 32,399 33,179 2.4%

In order to accommodate the increasing demand for infusion services in the Hematology Oncology
Service, it was determined that an additional 13 infusion stations will be needed, increasing the
number to 49 total stations. The number of clinic rooms will increase from 19 to 26 to increase the
number of patients that will be seen each day.

There are no utilization standards for Outpatient Hematology Oncology clinics or Infusion.
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Outpatient TCT Clinic and Apheresis Services

c) Service Modernization
The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets the following:

2) - Necessary Expansion

The Outpatient TCT Cancer Services at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital, established in 1991, are
currently provided in several locations on the hospital campus. This patient care is fragmented
requiring patients to transport themselves (or be transported) between buildings for clinic and
infusion services.

The Bone Marrow Transplant and Cellular Therapy Program (TCT) at Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital provides advanced treatment options and access to cutting edge clinical services and
research trials to serve the needs of transplant and cellular therapy patients.

The Outpatient TCT Program is an integrative care model that includes clinics, apheresis, and
infusion services for these patients. This model is designed to include a multidisciplinary team to
deliver integrated care to patients and provide patients with all services at one location without
having to travel through multiple buildings and floors at the hospital. Support services of financial
navigation, social work, and nurse navigation will be included. All of these services are vital to
contributing to positive clinical outcomes for our patients.

The newly constructed space (CCC) will be designed with appropriately sized rooms and the
configuration to allow for efficient or collaborative care. The project will right-size the rooms to
current standards and improve the layout of clinical rooms to be designed to better align with the
needs of transplant and cellular therapy patients. The patient rooms will be private rooms with
adjacent bathrooms to support the privacy and infection control required for this patient
population.

The TCT program will include the clinical staff space needed to support patient care and be designed
to enhance collaborative care. The providers often need to see patients prior to treatment and staff
need to travel between two buildings on the hospital campus. This causes delays for patients and
added time on campus creating increased anxiety and fatigue for patients. To allow patients to have
all services at one location without having to travel through multiple buildings and floors at the
hospital will increase patient satisfaction and safety.

There will be a dedicated compounding pharmacy on site for the infusion patients. This will ensure
that the medication is available without delay and no longer requires clinicians to travel to the
hospital Pharmacy and lab to obtain medications and deliver labs. Patients will have access to a TCT
pharmacy expert who can supplement the education that they receive from providers and nurses
regarding their treatment regimen.

Private registration and consultation space will be part of the design, as sensitive information is

shared during the registration and discharge process. The design will promote privacy for our
patients during those interactions.
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The outpatient TCT clinic visits and the outpatient infusions at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital
have grown over the last 5 years due to the increased need for services in Advocate’s network and
in the northwest suburbs. This program has been able to provide services closer to home for
patients who do not live close to Chicago. This is especially important for some transplant patients,
who need to stay close to the medical center for 100 days after their transplant to ensure care is
proximal should they experience complications within that critical period.

Sg2 forecasts an increase of 38% in outpatient Stem Cell Transplant procedures, and outpatient
Immune Effector Cell Therapy procedures to increase by 19% over the next five years and 41% in

the next 10 years.

With cancer cases expected to continue to rise, TCT services are an essential component of the
cancer care services.

3)(B) -Utilization — Service or Facility

The Outpatient TCT clinic and Infusion volume is provided below. Based on the forecasted
projections outlined, utilization is estimated to increase in the service area. The number of patients
in the TCT clinic is projected to increase as the number of transplant patients at Advocate Lutheran
General Hospital will increase over the next five years.

The historic declines from 2022 and 2023 were due to physician changes and program changes. As
outlined, the new space and the additional providers will increase the number of patients that will
be able to receive care.

The TCT program has recently grown to a provider panel of 3 Physicians and 4 Advanced Practice
Providers. The projected utilization is based on the historic volume and projected growth for these
services over the next five years.

Patients that have completed their TCT treatment will transition to their primary Oncology
physicians for follow up care. Additional programming will be developed in this space to establish a
TCT survivorship clinic in the program for patients past 100 days post-transplant.

% Change
2022 2023 2024 2025AY 2022-
2025AY
TCT clinic visits/treatments 6,056 3,447 1,703 3,752 -38.0%
Apheresis visits 267 158 137 729 172.9%
% Change
2026 2027 2028 2029 2026-2029
TCT clinic visits/treatments 3,752 3,752 3,752 6,044 61.1%
Apheresis visits 729 729 729 740 1.5%
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As the volume of infusion services and TCT clinics increases, the projected utilization outlines the
need to have 6 exam rooms to continue to support patients in the service area. In order to
accommodate the increasing demand for infusion services at the TCT Service, it was determined
that 24 infusion stations will be needed: increasing the number from 13 stations.

Industry standards were used by the Design and Construction and architect team to develop the
appropriate number of rooms. The guidelines used are related to available time in the chair and
scheduling efficiencies.

The TCT clinic was based on operating 8 hours per day; 5 days a week. With the average exam time
at 90 minutes, the rooms can provide 5 exams per day per room at the highest level of efficiency.
Based on current volume, applying a 55-65% utilization rate used by Cancer centers with these
types of services, it was determined that 6 exam rooms, 2 education/consult and 2 procedure
rooms would be needed for the TCT clinic services to support current and projected patients.

The apheresis service is designed to have separate rooms to provide infection control and privacy
for these patients. This service will also operate 8 hours per day; 5 days per week with patient visits
lasting 4- 8 hours per treatment. Based on the current and projected patient volume 3 bays was

determined to be needed to provide timely access for patients needing this service.

There are no utilization standards for Outpatient TCT and apheresis Clinics.

Outpatient Infusion Center

c) Service Modernization
The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets the following:

2) - Necessary Expansion

The Outpatient Infusion Center in the project will relocate and expand the number of bays to
support the current and projected patients and designed for privacy, increased clinical visibility and
for infection control.

The current TCT and apheresis clinic is located in a separate building from the infusion center. This
fragmented physical footprint is challenging for our patients and clinical care teams to navigate for
their infusions. For our patients who may be physically challenged due to their disease, this
presents another barrier for them to overcome.

Additionally, the current infusion center has a challenging physical layout. The rooms do not meet
current Advocate standards, making it difficult to navigate mobility devices such as walkers for
patients, and again presenting another barrier for our patients to overcome. Furthermore, the
infusion center also accommodates non-TCT patients, and is at capacity, which causes additional
waiting time.

The co-location of infusion, adjacent to the clinic space allows TCT patients to receive all care
without having to travel throughout the hospital campus or return on a separate day.
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This newly constructed expansion is being developed to include the required number of infusion
bays and appropriately sized rooms to accommodate patients and providers.

3)(B) -Utilization — Service or Facility

The Outpatient Infusion Center volume is provided below. Based on the forecasted projections
outlined, the number of infusion visits is projected to increase as the number of transplant patients
at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital increases over the next five years.

The Infusion services will operate 5 days per week for 9.5 hours each day and 2 days each weekend
for 4 hours to accommodate the patient volume. The average TCT infusion is 4.5+ hours and non-
TCT patients are longer with 5.5+ hour infusion time. Based on the infusion time and the current
and projected volume, it was determined that 12 private infusion bays for TCT infusion and 12 open
bay spaces for non-TCT infusion patients would be needed.

% Change
2022 2023 2024 2025AY 2022-2025AY
Oncology infusions 5,926 5,780 6,707 7,357 24.1%
% Change
2026 2027 2028 2029 2026-2029
Oncology infusions 7,357 7,357 7,357 7,555 2.7%

There are no utilization standards for Outpatient Infusion Centers.

Other Oncology Clinical Services

c) Service Modernization
The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets the following:

2) - Necessary Expansion

The consolidated multispecialty surgical oncology clinic, and new outpatient oncology lab will
contribute to improved patient access in a new, expanded environment that offers closer proximity
to all other cancer services.
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3)(B) -Utilization — Service or Facility

The multispecialty surgical oncology clinic visits, and lab volume is provided below. Based on the
forecasted projections for Outpatient Oncology patients, the number of visits for these services is
projected to increase over the next five years.

% Change
2022 2023 2024 2025AY 2022-2025AY
Thoracic surgical oncolo
C e 8 &Y 4,538 4,956 4,538 5,058 11.5%
clinic visits
% Change
2026 2027 2028 2029 2026-2029
Thoracic surgical oncology 5,058 5,058 5,058 5,188 2.6%
clinic visits

There are no utilization standards for these clinical services.

Modernization of Hospital Outpatient Lab (existing CAC)

c) Service Modernization

The applicant shall document that the proposed Project meets the following:

2) - Necessary Expansion

The proposed project will address the space needed for outpatient laboratory services. This
modernization and expansion are essential to strengthening patient access to timely outpatient
laboratory services and ensuring the continued delivery of the hospital’s high-quality, safety-
focused diagnostic care. The enhanced capacity and updated infrastructure will support growing
demand within the Lutheran General Hospital service area and maintain the reliability and
excellence patients expect. The significant growth in outpatient laboratory collection volumes has
exceeded the capacity of the current space, creating bottlenecks that impede accessibility and
timely service for patients. Modernization and expansion are essential to improve workflow
efficiency, reduce wait times, and ensure patients receive faster, high-quality diagnostic care.
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3)(B) -Utilization — Service or Facility

The hospital OP lab volume is provided below. Based on the forecasted projections for hospital OP
lab patients, the number of lab visits is projected to increase over the next five years.

% Change
2022 2023 2024 2025AY 2023-2025AY
Lab visits (encounters) 75,107 59,175 63,117 65,434 +10.6%
% Change
2026 2027 2028 2029 2026-2029
Lab visits (encounters) 67,070 68,705 70,342 71,977 10%

There are no utilization standards for this clinical service.
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for funding
or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from Fitch's or
Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed within the latest
18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

e Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria

e Section 1120.130 Financial Viability — Review Criteria

e Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VIL. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document those financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]:
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$16,618.,226

$82,528.494

a)

b)

d)

e)

Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters from
financial institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including
the identification of any security, its value and availability of such
funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on
any asset from the date of applicant's submission through project
completion.

Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing
anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of gross receipts and
related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

Gifts and Bequests — verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of
use, and the estimated timetable of receipts.

Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time,
variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time, and the anticipated repayment
schedule) for any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the project,
including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to
issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount of the issue,
including any discounting anticipated.

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified
amount and interest rate.

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the
expectation of making the loan in the amount and time indicated,
including the anticipated interest rate and any conditions associated
with the mortgage, such as, but not limited to, adjustable interest
rates, balloon payments, etc.

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital improvements
to the property and provision of capital equipment.

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and
conditions.

Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance

accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If
funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other
action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent.

f)

9)

Grants — a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the
amount and time of receipt.

All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds
that will be used for the project.

$99.146.720

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE
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FitchRatings

RATINGACTION COMMENTARY

Fitch Affirms Advocate Aurora Health (IL) at 'AA"; Outlook Stable
Wed 22 Oct. 2025-1:11 PMET

Fitch Ratings - Chicago - 22 Oct 2025: Fitch Ratings has affirmed Advocate Aurora Health's
(AAH) kssuer Default Rating (IDR) at 'AA! Fitch has also affirmed the outstanding revenue
bonds issued directty by AAH or by the Wisconsin Health and Educational Facilities
Authorityand lllinois Finance Authority on behalf of AAH/Advocate Health Care Network
at'AA,

The Rating Outlook is Stable.

Fitch has also affemed the Shor t-Term 'F1+' rating on AAH's variable rate debt and CP debt
supported by AAH's self-liquidity.

RATING ACTIONS
ENTITY/DEET % RATING % L $
Advocate Aurora Hedlth, . AARating
Inc. (WD LTINR  AARating Outhook Stable Outlook
Stable
Affirmed
Advocate Aurora ) AA Rating
Heatth.Inc. V1) IT  AARatingOutlook Stable  Affirmed Cuilcol
JGenerd Revernues/1 Stable

LT
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Achvocate Health AL Rating
i By
N I IT  AARating Outlook Stable ffrmed o .

JfGereral Revenues/1 Stable
LT

Acvocate Aurora ST P+ Affrmed Fl+
Health, Inc. (W
/Self-Liguidity/1 ST

Acvorate Health Fl+
Care Network [IL) ST Fl+ Affrmed

Sself-Licpidity/1 5T
VEWADDITIONAL RATING DETAILS

AAH and Atrium Health combinedin December 2022 to form Advocate Health, The AN
long=term ratings for both AAH and Atrium reflect Advocate Health's very strong financial
profile in the context of asound operating profile, lzading positions inmarkets across
multiple states, and strong balance shest metrics, Although AAH and Atrium remain
separate obligated groups, most metrics and the Anancial profile reflect the full Advocate
system.

Combined, Advocate treats approximately six million unigue patients in more than 1,000
sites of care (including 69 hospitals) across six states in the Southeast (North Carolina,
South Carolina, Georgia, and Alabama) and Midwest (Illinois and Wisconsin), The system
also benefits from being the primary teaching affiliate of the Wake Forest University (WFU)
School of Medicine.

Like most U.S. acute care providers, Advocate's operating metrics were compressed in fiscal
2022 amid macrolabor and inflationary pressures, but margins have since rebounded. Fitch
believes Advocate has the foundation to continue delivering good long-term operating
results despite ongoing macro pressures, induding HR 1. Advocate'scombined capital-
related metrics should remain strong in Fitch's forward-looking scenario analysis, including
inastress case,

SECURITY

Bonds are unsecured joint and several obligations of the obligated group, which consists of
the vast majority of AAH hospitals, the AAH parent, and the Adwvocate Health Care
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MNetwork and AAH physician practices.

KEY RATINGDRIVERS
Revenue Defensibility - bbb

Broad Reach Across Multiple Regions; Compeatition Present in Key Markets

Advocate operates across multiple markets in six states in distinct regions of the US. (the
Southeast and Midwest), Key haspital markets include Charlotte and Winston-Salem in
MNorth Carclina; Macaon, Georgia area; the Chicago area in llinois; and Milwaukese and
Green Bay in Wisconsin. Advocate maintains the market lead in most coreservice areas,
though competition remains in many markets.

Asalarge, geographically diverse health system, Advocate operates in markets with varied
demographic prafiles, The Charlotte and Winston-Salem metro areas are growing faster
than the national average, while Bibb County (Rome) and Floyd County (Macon) are in line
withthe national average. Population trends inthe Chicago, Milwaukee, and Green Bay
markets are more stagnant, though Advocate’s Chicago assets are concentrated inmore
affluent suburban kocations.

Advocate's combined Medicaid and self-pay share was 22% of gross revenue in fiscal 2025,
below Fitch's 25% threshold for a midrange assessment. North Carolina recently expanded
Medicaid under the ACA; Illinois expanded earlier. Wisconsin and Georgia did not expand.
Given Advocate's paver mix, the system is somewhat less exposed to expected Medicaid
cuts under HR 1, though longer-term provider tax and Medicaid directed payment program
cuts will pressure top-line revenue, Even so, Fitch expects Advocate's revenue defensibility
to remain reasonably resilient to federal healthcare policy changes.

Operating Risk - a
Track=-Record Sound Operating Results; Margins Continue to Rebound

AAH and Atrium havea record of sound operating performance, and Advocate's margins
continue to rebound from fiscal 2022 compression. In audited fiscal 2024, Advocate
reported a 3.2% operating margin and a 7.4% operating EBITDA margin, adjusted to
reclassify the portion of investment income included in operating revenue to norr
operating. Infiscal 2023—the first full year post-merger—margins were 1.6% and 6.4%,
respectively. On a combined basis per management's aggregation of audited results, fiscal
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2022 showed a negative 0.8% operating marginand a4.3% operating EBITDA margin,
reflecting labor and inflationary pressures.

Factors driving improvement infiscal 2024 include generally favarable volume trends—
inpatient admissions up 7.1% infiscal 2024 over fiscal 2023, or 3.1% including observation
stays—and total surgeries up 2.6%: further integration synergies across supply chain,
pharmacy optimization, revenue cycle, and IT, with management estimating $1 billion in
synergies aver the 30 months post-merger; deplayment of Al and other technologies to
mitigate nurse and physician shortages; and the implementation of a Medicaid directed
payment program in MNorth Caroline to complement Medicaid expansion.

Interim fiscal 2025 results remain favorable, Through the unaudited fiscal 2025 six months
ended June 30, Advocate posted a 4.4% operating margin and an 8.3% operating EBITDA
margin, as the system has benefited from continued integration effidiencies and volume
gains. Management reports that when excluding non-recurring revenue items—sudh as
FEMA funding and employee retention tax credits—the operating margin was 3.4%.
Management targets a sustainable marginover the long term despite HR 1, tariffs, and
other headwinds.

Capital Spending

Advocate has maintained a steady capital spending pace, From hscal 2021 to 2024, average
capex was just over 130% of depreciationexpense. The average age of plant was a sound
11.4years at FYE 2024. Management plans to sustain capex in coming yvears but notes that
capital spending is contingent on meeting EBITDA targets, and will flex capex accordingly.

In June 2025, Advocate opened the Pearl, a mixed-use project in Charlotte designed to
accelerate biomedical reseanch, innovation, and clinical care, which also houses the Wake
Forest University School of Medicine=Charlotte. In 2025, Advocate also opened anew
patient tower at 1linois Masonic Medical Center in Chicago and the Julie Ann Freischlag
patient tower inWinston-Salem. Ongoing and planned projects include the new Carclina’s
Medical Center bed tower in Charlotte, slated to openinthird-quarter 2027, and aclditional
ambulatory access points. Given Advocate's scope and reach, Fitch expects regular market
access, and management is considering about $300 million of net new debt over the next
year or 50,

Financial Profile -aa

Very Strong Capital-Related Ratios
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Advocate's financial profile is very strong. Capital-related metrics should remain robustin a
forward-looking scenarip anahysis, including in a stress case,

At FYE 2024, Advocate had nearly $24 billionof unrestricted cash and investments and
$8.7 billion of debt (including operating keases), Advocate sponsors six private defined
benefit (DB) pension plans, each more than 85% funded. Fitch includes as a debt equivalent
the portion of a FASE DB pension plan below 80% funded, Atrium also has the CMHA,
gavernment DB pension, whichwas approximately 66% funded as of FYE 2024. Advocate's
net acjusted debt (adjusted debt minus unrestricted cash and investments) is favorably
negative and cash-to-ad justed debt exceeded 270% at FYE 2024.

Advocate's capital-related ratios should remain strong, even in aforward-logking stress
scenatio. In the stress case, Advocate's net adjusted debt-to-adjusted EBITDA retmains
favorably negative inevery year and cashrto-adjusted debt never falls below 225% (and
exceeds 280% by year four).

Short-Term Rating

The "F1+' short-term rating is based onAAH maintainirng a long-term ratineg of at keast ‘AL
AAH (and Advocate) maintains sufficient discounted internal liquid resources and has
implemented written procedures to fund any un-remarketed put on the approximately $1.1
Rillion of theoretical maximum potential AAH debt supported by self-liguidity. AAH's self-
liquidity supported demand debt includes CP and puttable variable rate demand bonds
(VRDB) nat supported by standby bond purchase agreements (SBPAs) or letters of credit
(LOC), which are adequately covered by internal liquidity (per Fitch's standard discounting
of assets)

Asymmetric Additional Risk Considerations

There are no asymmetric risks affecting the rating.

Advocate's liguidity is robust and debt service coverage is strong, neither of whichis an
asymmetric risk. Cash on hand measured more than 265 days at FYE 2024, Maximum

annual debt service (MADS) is $458 million and MADS coverage in fiscal 2024 was strong
at P.6x.

RATING SENSITIVITIES

Factors that Could, Individually or Collectively, Lead to Negative Rating
Action/Dawngrade
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=Sustained compression in operating metrics, suchthat the operating EBITDA margin is
expected to remain closer (o &%;

—Materially Weaker balance sheet and thinner capitalrelated ratios, leading to expectation
that cash-to-adjusted debt were expected to remain below 200% in a forward-locking
stress case, particularly if compoundead with aweaker operating risk assessment.

Factors that Could, Individually o Collectively, Lead to Positive Rating Action/Upgrade

—Combined Advocate Health operating EBITDA margin consistently at least inthe 9% -
10% range;

—Considerable growth in unrestricted liquidity leading to superlative cash-to-adjusted debt
expected to remain above 300% even throughout a forward-looking stress case.

PROFILE

Advocate Health is the result of the December 2022 combinationof Atrium and AAH. The
combined system operates 69 hospitals and more than 1,000 sites of care. The system
maintainsan academic affiliation with Wake Forest University and engages in considerable
reseanch efforts and has more than 250 GME programs.

Advocate is headquartered in Charlotte, NC and has acute care operations insix states:
MNorth Carclina, South Carolina, Georgia, lllincis, and Wisconsin. Core hospital operations
are diversified, with particular penetration around Charlotte and Winston-Salem inNorth
Carolina, Maconand Rome in Georgia, Milwawkes and Green Bay in Wisconsin,and the
iChicagoarea in lllinois. Advocate Health treats approximately six million unigue patients.

Advocate's total operating revenue measured nearty $35 billion in FY 2024, making
Advocate one of the frve largest not-for-profit health systems inthe U.S,, andis the largest
health system inNorth Caralina, Wlinois, and Wisconsin. The system isstructured as a Joint
Operating Agreement (JOA), Advocate Health has a common board with 14 members
(seveneach from Atrium and AAH). While the AAH and Atrium have not yet combined debt
obligations,, Advocate Health operates with a common management t2am and one board
and the system is deeply integrated including with strategic development.

REFERENCES FOR SUBSTANTIALLY MATERIAL SOURCE CITED AS KEY DRIVER OF
RATING

The principal sources of information used in the analysis are described in the Applicable
Criteria
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ESG CONSIDERATIONS

The highest level of ESG credit relevance is a score of "3} unless otherwise disclosediin this
section, A score of "3 means ESG issues are credit-neutral or have only a minimal aredit
impact.on the entity, either due to their nature or the way in which they are being managed
by the entity. Fitch's ESG Relevance Scores are not inputs in the rating process; they are an
cbservation on the relevance and materiality of ESG factors in the rating decision. For more
information onFitch's E5G Relevance Scores, visit
https://www.fitchratings.com/topics/esg/products#fesg-relevance-scores.

Additional information is available onwww.itchratings.com

FITCH RATINGS ANALYSTS

Mark Pascaris

Senior Director
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markpascaris@fitchratings.com
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+1 3123683168
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Kevin Holboran
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Additional information is available onwww.fitchratings.com

PARTICIPATION STATUS

The rated entity (and/or its agents) or, inthe case of structured finance, one or moreof the
transaction parties participated in the rating process except that the following issuer(s), if
any. did not participate in the rating process, or provide additional infarmatian, beyond the
issuer’s available public disclosure.

APPLICABLECRITERIA

LS, Not-For-Profit Hospitals and Health Systems Rating Criteria (pub, 12 Nov 2024)
(induding rating assumption sensitivity)

LLS, Public Sector, Revenue=Supported Entities Rating Criteria (pub. 10 Jan 2025) (inchuding
rating assumption sensitivity)

APPLICABLE MODELS

Numbers in parentheses accompanying applicable model(s) contain hyperlinks tocriteria
providing description of model(s).

Partfolio Analysis Model (PAM), v2.0.1 (1)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
Dodd-Frank Rating Infarmation Disclasure Form

Solicitation Status
Endorsement Policy

ENDORSEMENT STATUS
Achvocate Health and Hospitals Corporation EL Endlorsed, UK Endorsed

DISCLAIMER & DISCLOSURES

All Fitch Ratings (Fitch) credit ratingsare subject to certain limitations and disclaimers.
Please read these limitations and disclaimers by following this link:
https:/Pwwwhtchratings.com/understandingcreditratings. In addition, the following
https:/wwwehtchratinezs.com/rating-definitions-dooument details Fitch's rating definitions
for each rating scale and rating catepories, including definitions relating to default. ESMA,
and the FCA are recuired to publish historical default rates in acentral repasitory in
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accordance with Articles 11(2) of Regulation (EC) No 1060/2009 of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 16 September 2007 and The Credit Rating Agendies
(Amendment ete) (EV Exit) Regulations 2012 respectively.

Published ratings, criteria, and methodologies are available from this site at all times. Fitch's
code of conduct, confidentiality, conflicts of interest, affiliate firewall, cormpliance, and ather
reflevant policies and procedures are also available from the Code of Conduct sectionof this
site. Directors and shareholders' relevant interests are available at

hittps:/fwww ftchratings.com/site/regulatory, Fitch may have provided another permissible
or andllary service to the rated entity or its related third parties. Details of permissible or
ancillary service(s) for which the lead analyst is basedin an ESMA- or FCA-registered Fitch
Ratings company (or branch of such a compainy) can be found on the entity summary page
for this issuer on the Fitch Ratings website.

Inissuing and maintaining its ratings and in making other reports (including forecast
information), Fitch relies on factual information it receives from issuers and underwriters
and from other sources Fitch believes to be aredible. Fitch conducts a reasonalle
investigation of the factual information refied upon by it in accordance with its ratings
methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that information from independent
sources, to the extent such sources are available for a given security or in a given
jurisdiction. The manner of Fitch's factual investigation and the scope of the third-party
verification it obtains will vary depending on the nature of the rated security and its issuer,
the reguiirements and practices inthe jurisdiction inwhich the rated security is offered and
sold and/or the issuer is located, the availability and nature of relevant public information,
access to the management of the issuer and its advisers, the availability of pre-existing
third-party verifications suchas audit reports, agreed-upon procedures letters, appraisals,
actuarial reports, engineering reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third
parties, the availability of independent and competent third- party verification sources with
respect to the particular security or inthe particular jurisdiction of the issuer,and avariety
of ather factors. Users of Fitch's ratings and reports should understand that neither an
enhanced factual investigation nor any third-party verification can ersure that all of the
information Fitch relies on in connection with a rating or a report will be accurate and
complete. Ntimately, the issuer and its advisers are responsible for the accuracy of the
information they provide to Fitchand to the market in offering documents and other
reports. In issuing its ratings and its reports, Fitch must rely on the work of experts,
induding independent auditors with respect to financial statements and attorneys with
respect to legal and tax matters. Further, ratings and forecasts of financial and other
information are inherently forward-looking and embody assumptions and predictions
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about future events that by their nature cannot be verified as facts. As a result, despite any
wverification of current facts, ratings and forecasts can be affected by future events or
conditions that were not anticipated at the time a rating or forecast was issued or affirmed.
Fitch Ratings makes routine, commonly-accepted adjustments to reported financial data in
accordance with the refevant criteria and/or industry standards to provide financial metric
consistency for entities inthe same sector or asset class.

The complete span of best-and worst=case scenario aredit ratings for all rating categories
ranges from 'AAA to "I, Fitch also provides information on best-case rating upgrade
scenarios and worst-case rating downgrade scenarios (defined as the $9th percentile of
rating transitions, measured in each direction) for international credit ratings, based on
historical performance. A simple average across asset classes presents best-case upgrades
of 4 notches and worst-case downgradzs of 8 notches at the 99th percentile. For more
details on sector-specific best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings, please see Best- and
Worst-Case Measures under the Rating Performance page on Fitch's website.

The information inthis report is provided “as is” without any representation or warranty of
any kind, and Fitch does not represent or warrant that the report or any of its contents will
meet amyof the requirements of a recipient of the report. AFitchrating is anopinion as to
the creditworthiness of a security. This opinion and reports made by FAtch are based on
established criteria and methodologies that Fitch is continuousty evaluating and updating.
Therefore, ratings and reparts are the collective work product of Fitch and no individual, or
group of individuals, is solety responsible for a rating or areport, The rating does not
address the risk of boss due to risks other than credit risk, unless such risk is spacifically
mentioned. Fitch is not engaged in the offer or sale of any security. All Fitch reports have
shared authorship. Individuals identified in a Fitch report were involved in, but are not
solely responsible for, the opinions stated therein, The individuals are named for contact
purposes only. A report providing a Fitch rating is neither a prospectus nor a substitute for
the information assembled, verified and presented toimvestors by the issuer and its agents
in connection with the sale of the securities. Ratings may be changed or withdrawn at ary
time for any reason in the sole discretion of Fitch, Fitch does not provide investment advice
of any sort. Ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold any sexcurity. Ratings do
not comment on the adequacy of market price, the suitability of any security for a particular
investor; or the tax-exernpt nature or taxakbility of payments made in respect to amy security.
Fitch receives fees from issuers, insurers, guarantors, other obligors, and underwriters for
rating securities. Such fees generally vary from US$1,000 to US$750,000 (or the applicable
currency equivalent) per issue, In certain cases, Fitch will rate all or a number of issues
issued by a particular issuer, orinsured or guaranteed by a particular insurer or guarantor,

LGH CCC Page 117 Attachment 34, Exhibit 1



for asingleannual fee. Such fees are expected to vary from US$10,000 to US$1,500,000 (or
the applicable currency equivalent). The assignment, publication, or dissemination of a
rating by Fitch shall not constitute a consent by Fitch to use its name as an expert in
connectionwith any registration statement fled under the United States securities laws,
the Financial Services and Markets Act of 2000 of the United Kingdom, or the securities
laws of any particular jurisdiction. Due to the relative efficiency of electronic publishing and
distribution, Fitch research may be available to electronic subscribers up to three days
earlier than to print subscribers.

For Australia, New Zealand, Taiwan and South Korea only: Fitch Australia Pty Ltd holds an
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https:/www.fitchratings.com/site/regulatory), other credit rating subsidiaries are not listed
on Form NRSRO (the " non=MN RSROs") and therefore aredit ratings issued by those
subsidiaries are not issued on behalf of the NRSRO. However, non-NRSRO personnel may
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Fitdh's international aredit ratings produced outside the EU or the UK, as the case may be,
are endorsed for use by regulated entities within the EU or the UK, respectively, for
regulatory purposes, pursuaint to the terms of the EU CRA Reaulationor the UK Credit
Rating Agendies (Amendment etc.) [EU Exit) Regulations 2019, as the case may be. Fitch's
approach toendorsement in the EU and the UK can be found on Fitd's Regulatory Affairs
page on Fitch’s website. The endorsement status of international aredit ratings s provided
within the entity summary page for each rated entity and in the transaction detail pages for
structured finance transactions on the Fitch website. These disclosures are updated ona
diaily basis.
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Advocate Health, North Carolina

September 16, 2025

This report does nol constilule a raling astion, Primary Contact
Patrick Zagar
Credit Highlights Dallas
gh I BB R R

patricszagar
Eapglobalcom

« SEP Global Ratings' long=term rating on vanous series of dabt izsued by Atrium Health
(Charlotta=Mecklerburg Hospital Autherity; CMHA), N,C,, as well as various saras of taxabla
dabt issucd by Advocate Aurora Health, Ine, (ABAH], L and various seres of tax—oxempt debt
izsued by the [lincis Finance Authority (IFA) and the Wiscensin Health & Educatior Facilities

Secondary Contacts

Autharity for AaH iz "AN Surie # Desal
Chicago
v |r addition, our longs=tarm rating on various saries of debt issued by the North Caralina Medical mE T AR
Care Commission for Wake Forest Baptist Dilgated Group (WFE) is A8, and our long-term suzie.desa
rating on WFE's series 2015 taxable bands is 'AA", @spglobel.eom
» Our dual rating on CMHA's series 2018F variable=rate demand bonds (WRDES), supported by its Marc Arcas
salfdguidity, iz 'AAA-T+ and cur short-term rating on its commercial paper (CP) program, alsa :;:;: -
supported by self-liguidity, 13 A1+ m:_um. .
« Our dual rating on CMHA's series 20078, 2007C, 201803, and 2018H VREDBs is 'AAA=14" all of @apglobalcom
these ara supportad by standby bond purchase agresments (SEPAs] from JPMorgan Chase
Bank. In addition, our dual rating on its serics 2007E VEDBs is AA+/2-1 and our underlying
rating (SPUR] is 'AA,
# Our dual rating on the |FA's series 2018 YREDEs issued for AAH and supportad by A48H'z self=
liguigity is "AAMATH and cur short=tarm rating on AAH's CF program, alse supported by salf=
liguidity, is "A=1+",
# Ourdual rating on [FA's series 2002C=1 and 20080-28 VRDEs, which are supported by SEPAs
frem JPMargan Chaze Bank, is 'A8/8=1+", In addition, our dual rating on [FA's series 2008C=34
VRDEs, which are supported by an SEPA from Northern Trust, is A1+, These bonds weare
all izsued for AAH,
¢ The outlook on all ratings, where applicabla, is stabla,
www.spglobal com/ratingedirect September 16, 2025 1
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Advocate Health, North Carolina

Rationale

Security

CMHA bonds are securad by a revenue oledge of CMHA and the Atrium Health Foundation, and
guarantees of the other membars of the CMHA obligated group, Wake Forest Baptist Onligated
Group bends are ganaral, unsecured obligations of its oblipated group, which includes Noerth
Carclina Eaptist Hospital, Wake Forest University Health Sciences, and Wake Forest University
Baptist Medical Center, Wake Forest University is not a member of the chligated group; CMHA
and WFE are part of the Atrium Health anterprize (&trium Haalth), Lastly, Advocate Aurora Health
bonds arg ganaral, unsecured cbligations of its obligatad group,

Although CMHA, Wake Forest Baptist, and Advocate Aurora Health currently maintain rated debt
across separate obligated groups, all are part of the conscldated Advocate Health following the
execution of a joirt operating agreement in Dacembar 2072 batwean Atrium Health and Advocate
Aurcra Health, Wa rate the systams basad on the group credit profils of Advocate Haalth per our
group rating methodology criteria, with each affiliate considered core, Ag such, this analysis
focuges on the enterprise and finaneial profile charactarigtics of Advocate Health ag a whole, and
all metrics cited ara for the entire syatem unless stated otherwise, We understand management
intends to consclidats itz obligated group structure aver the cutlook perod, which we would not
gxpact o have an effecl an the exsting ralings, all alse unchangad,

For VROBs supported by SBPAz, the long-term rating reflects the "AA" long-term rating on the
health care cbligor, and the short=term rating reflacts the short=tarm rating on the respectiva
bank, For CMHA's series 2007E VEDEs supportad by alettar of credit (LOC) from TD Bank, we
basa the long=tarm rating on the application of low correlation joint criteria netwasn TD Bank and
the 'A4' SPUR an CMHA, The short=term rating reflects the "A-1 short=term rating on TD Bank,

Credit overview

Tha rating reflects cur view of the credit strangth of the consolidated Advocate Health, namely
an gxtremely broad and diverss service arga spanning ssveral noncontiguous states across tha
Midwest and Southeast and a robust and diverse medical stafl with numerous academic
relaticnships anchored by the full integration with Winston-Salem-based Wake Forest Baptist., In
addition to itz largs and geographically diverse revenue base, Advocate Health maintains solid
balance aheet metrics characterizaed by sound days’ cash on hand and only moderate debt levals,
wihich have improved Turthar i recant vears given a lack of new money borrowing actvity, We
undarstand management is contemplating some debt activity over the coming guarters and we
beliave this could be absorbed at the currant rating given preliminary expectations from
managameant,

System aperatng parformance improved sourdly in fiscal 2024 (ended Dec, 31), further
recovaring from a loss in fiscal 2022, aided by strong demand, above-budget integration
synergies and cost savings, added revenue from North Carolina's Healtheare Access Stabilization
Program (HASF), and $200 millon of FEMA funds, Within tha consclidatad Advocate Health, all
thrae rated lagacy entities produced positive operating results for the year, with tha most
pronouncad improvement observed at Atrium Health, This progress has been enabled by
successful intagration efforts across the system, with management citing nearly $1.1 billion in
annual synergias already achieved, ahead of its initial three=yaar target, Performance metrics
have improvad further midway through fiseal 2025 due in part to nsing supplemental funding and

www.spglobal com/ratingsdirect September 16, 2025
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additional one-time items recognized, and we expect year-end results comparable to current
lavels,

Wa view tha unified managemanl Laam's integration efforts lavorably, with further prograss
made since our last review, Key milestones include the consclidation of all vendor contracis and
the system’s investmant platform, standardizing ouality scorecards and charnty care policies, and
harmonizing |T systems, including a new holigtic entarprise reaource planning (ERF) syatem
launched aarliar in 2025, In addition, Advocate Haalth oparatas with a single CED structure under
Gene Woods [formerly of Atrium Health) and the remaindar of the leadership team ramains
stable, The system is embarking on its next five-year strategic roadmap, called Rewire 2030,
which aims to position Advocate Health as an intggrated national haalth learning platform and
laveraga the inherant strangths of its siza, scals, and clinical competencies, We anticipata
strategic focus will shift from integration efforls to implementation af Rewire 2030 and
management's naw operating model, Advocate Health, like peers in the sector, retaing exposure
to the recently passed LS, tax and sperding bill partly due to its cperations in Madizaid
expansion states and participation in directed payment programs such as HASP. In subsequent
ravigws, wa will manitor tha system’s response Lo thase reforms, which most matenally begnin
fizcal 2028, Managemant beliaves its goals under Rewire 2020 align well with positicning
Advocate Health to adapt to the expected reimbursement pressuras,

Tha long=tarm rating is based on our viaw of the following Advocate Health cradit strengths:

= Substantial geographic and ravenue diversity, anchored around acute—care operations in
[ling's, Wiscangin, Morth Caroling, and Georgia, genarating oparating revenue in excess of §34
billiar ir its fiscal 2024;

¢ Haallny unrastricted reserves, wilh days’ cash on hand above 250 and lighter debt load
relative to net assets and revenue;

¢ Haszlthy operating performance in fiscal 2024 and interim 2025, aided in part by strong synergy
realization and addad HASP funds in Morth Carolina;

= Expansive and diverse clin‘cal staff of about 18,000 active physicians, including faculty,
amployad and independent physiciars, residents, and fellows; and

¢ Compalling and ambitious Rewire 2020 stratagy to enhance SAdvocats Haalth's position in the
sactorn, supported by a selidified leadersnip team that we view as welkgualified,

Tha strangths are partly offsat, in our viaw, by the following credit weaknassas:
¢ Growing exposura W supplamental funding programs Lo suppert operaling earmings, with
HASP being especially meaningful; and

« Competitive markets and heightaned expected capital spending, which we believe could
prassure reserve growth, particularly if cperating cash flow is not sustained or if investmant
market velatility occurs,

Environmental, social, and governance

Wa view favorably Advocate Health's social capital factors given the size and diversfication of itz
multistate sarvice arga, including several markets with healthy demographic trends such as
poepulation and smploymant growth, though this is partially offset by markets with waaker growth
prospescts. In additon, tha system, like its pears, remaing subject Lo highar human capital risks
tied to clinical labor supply, though workforee measures such as contract labor exposure have
trendead favorably in fiscal 2024 and interim 2025,
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We view Advocate Health's emvironmeantal and governance factors as neutral in our credit rating
analysis, We believa tha system’s geographic aiversity provides some hedge against the physical
risks faced in gach service area. In addition, the Advocate Health board is transitioning to a selfs
perpatuating structure following inaugural appeintments, Atriam Health includes mulliple
governing boards with varicus levels of local authority and specific legacy appointmeant
structures, but key reserve powers rest with the Advocate Health board, The Advocate Health
beard currently inrcludes 14 membars, reducad from the initial 20; Wake Forest Baptist controls
twio of tha board saats oy way of the same appointments at the Atrium Health leval, Managamant
believes the smaller size is more effective for the system, in addition to creating somea capacity
far new seats to be added over time via system growth, Per management, no material merger and
acguisition plans are imminent at this time, fellowing the integration of Elkin, M.C.-basad Hugh
Chatham Health into WEE in July 2025,

Outlook

The stable cutlook reflacts our view that Advocats Health's geographic diversity and scals,
couplad with healthy balance sheet measures, lend stability to the rating am'd genaral sector
Barnings pressure and uncartainty that will ikely become mere pronouncad beyond the cutlook
pericd, The cutlock is further supportad by the system's strengthening performance in fiscal year
2024 and interim 2025, with management's integration execution positioning T well to sustain
such progress, in our view,

Downside scenario

Wa considar there to be somea cushion at the currant rating, but believe below-axpactation
cperating parformance would be the most likaly contributor to rating prassure over tima, While
we believe Advocate Health possesses numerous credit strengths, failure to sustain healthy
earnings could eventually waaken the credit profile, Erosion of balance shaet measuras, whether
due to lightar sarnings, continued systam growth, or higher capital spending, could alze pressure
the rating,

Upside scenario

We do noT expect to raige the rating over the outlook period, Over the longer-term, a higher rating
would be pradicatad on sustained rebust orofitability with lass exposura to supplamental
funding, with continued accumulation of balanca sheet cushion and successful realization of kay
components of its Rawire 2020 strategic vision,

Credit Opinion

Enterprise Profile--Very Strong

Broad, diverse, noncontiguous service area

A5 awhole, we view the system's footprint, among the largast nationally, favorably as wa baliave
it lznds considerable geographic giversity to Advocate Health, The system serves a large
pepulation of over 17 million basad an the combined service areas of AAH (12,1 million} and Atrium
Health (5,2 millien}, Demograpnics and growth projections contrast significantly across and
within regicns, with slight population decline projectad in tha large [linois and Wisconsin marksts
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(AAH) and smaller Georgia service area (Atrium Health Navicent and Atrium Health Floyd), rapid
expansion in the Charlotte, NG, metropalitan statistical arga (Atrium Health), and growth in line
with national averages in Winston=Salem, N.C, (WFE}, Though the system is invasting capital
across all markets, spending is proportionally higher in North Carclina markels given Lha region's
population growth and angeing master facility plan at Carclinas Medical Center, the system’s
largest hospital,

Each system has mairtainad a socund payor mix, with a haalthy 43% of 2024 net patient revenue
coming from commearcial insurars, AAH yields a slightly higher commarcial mix despite the softer
demaographics. and we consider this a testament of its strong market position and elinical
offerings, as wall ag Atrium Health's role as the major safaty net provider in Charlotte, Tha system
reparts haalthy conversations with national and regional payors, with an increasad cpanness to
parinarship and sharad-value arrangements enablad by Advocals Health's market reach,

Diverse portfolio of access points and rebust medical staff support national market position

We view Advocate Health as having a relevant, though not always leading, market share across all
itz discrete sarvice argas, The system competes diractly with several strong regional systems and
acadamic madical centers including NerthShora University Haalth System, Maorthwastern
Memaorial HaalthCare, Novant Health, amang many other wallregarded providers. In addition,
many Advocate Health hospitals are in rural markets, which genarally face lighter competitive
dynamics but different demographics; addrassing health disparnties across rural and urban
markats is a key goal of Rawire 2020,

In addition to robust coverage of the care continuum through both inpatient, cutpatient, patiant
heme, and digital access points, this view is further supported by the system's medical staff of
nearly 18,000 active physicians, further supporied by 45,000 nurses, Employed physician groups
across the Midwast and Southeast regons report toa cormmon leadar with consistant
compensalion slruclures, and management reports strong clinical collaboralion across legacy
Sysloms,

Clinizal offerings ara also enhanced by academic affilations including several long=term teaching
affiliationz at A&H, as wall as Waka Forest Baptist at Atrium Health, We axpect tha system will
continue Lo integrate and leverage translational research and educational aclvilies across its
footprint as a means of market differentiation and innovation, Most notably, 2 new Wake Forest
School of Medicine carmpus in Charletie weleomed its first class in fall 2025, anchoring 2 new
health care and innovaticn district called The Paarl, a multi=year devalopmant that is already
homa to several inlernalional healtheare corperalions,

Advocate Health, Morth Carolina--Enterprise statistics

=Six months ended Jure 30-- ==Fiacal yoar anded Dec, 31--

2028 2024 2023 2022
Inpatient adrissions 2EF AT SFE, 7 404 gal L47 T34
Equivalent ingatent sdnissions BEE, 089 1,231,784 1,254,240 155,387
Emergency visits 1,180,131 2T 2184 38 2048 TR
Irpationt surgeries 63,793 127,853 124,544 n7e3
Dutpatient surgeries 161654 324,814 18T 88 BES
bedicare case mix index 1,7 1,7800 1,8100 LA
FTE smployees 145,714 40,880 133046 127,851
Acthve physiclans A, 1F 082 15800 o400
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Advocate Health, North Carolina--Enterprise statistics

—Sixmonths ended June 30-- ~~Fiscal year ended Dec, 31--
025 oas Ire3 2nEee
Based on net/gross rovenues ot Net Met M
Modicare (%] e a0 I M
Whedicaid (5] 15,2 16,0 157 M, A,
Commercial/&lues 3] LR 4 48,0 18] ML

*Based on B8P Global Ratings internal oonsalidation. Inpatient admissions exclude normal newbarn, psyohiatrio, rehabilitation, and lorg—term care facility
admigaions, NA Mot avallable,

Financial Profile--Very Strong

Performance aided by operating synergies, supplemental funding, and one=time items; positive
results expected to continue

Following a moderate loss in 2022 {calculated on a pro forma bas’s by S&P Global Ratings) driven
by sector-wide labar challenges as well as broader inflationary expense pressuras, 2amings in
fiscal 2023 (the systam's first full year of operations following the joint operating agreement)
racovared with a1,8% operaling margin, The 2022 budgs! Largated braakevan oparations, bul
excluded the system's 5546 million net HASP gain as well as its $228 million cne-time 3408
paymeant, Momentum continued 'n 2024 with results aided by synergy tallwinds, reduced
corperate overhead, and improving workforoe and productivity measuras, Notably, 2024 results
would be largely on=budget if axcluding Atrium Haalth's FEMA funds recognized, as wall as HASP
ravenue recelved relates to the prior year, both items unbudgated,

Fizcal 2025 aperating results remain haalthy midway through the year, ahead of management’s
operating target, supportad by strong HASF funding and tha receipt of about $140 millicn one=
time items, including FEMA funds and employas retention tax credits related to the pandemic,
Other factors positively affecting performanca include sustained patient demand and strong
growth in retail and snecialty pharmacy oparations, We expect operating parformanca to ramain
conzigtant through year-end and into 2026,

Priar to 2022, both syslems maintained solid cperating resulls though Atrium Healll's
performance had trailed that of Advocate Aurora Health, This reversed in 2023 as agded HASPE
funds aceslerated eamings growth in North Carclina, The HASF program has been a matasial
driver of system earnings in racant yaars, which we view 85 a nsk over the madium term as naw
fadaral policies ralating to directed payment programs arg implemantad, Both Morth Carolina
and llincis expanded Medicaid coverage under the Affordable Carg Act, requiring a taper down of
directad payment programs to 100% of Medicare beginning in 2028, with a similar phased
implemantation of a 3,5% provider tax cap, Managament is quantifying the expected financial
effect and views Advecate Health as having a sound foundation to address these concerns given
the integration and oparating efficiencies already achieved, as wall as the further prograss
expected under Rewire 2020,

GCur performance figuras remove unrestricted contributions and investment activity from
pperating revenue and add non=conlrolling interast Lo oparating expensas, In addition, fiscal
2023 results excluda a $150 milion impairment related to the system's divestment of Advocate
Health Enterprizes, namely its Senicr Helpers and MobileHelp holdings, aswell ag an agsociated
gain an sale of 88 million in fisgal 2024, Thase entities were deemead non=zore to the syatem

www.spglobal com/ratingsdirect September 18,2025 B

LGH CCC Page 125 Attachment 34, Exhibit 2



Advocate Health, North Carolina

strategy and carried an operating loss of around $50 million in recent years, We consider this ang
example of management's approach of making critical decigions sarly in the integration process,

Healthy unrestricted reserve cushion should remain sound amid progress on major capital
projects

The aystern’s unrestrictad resarve position has remainad very sound and is supportive of the
rating, The syatem expended a combined $2.1 billion on capital items in 2024, near 170% of
depraciation expense, We anticipate healthy capital spanding over the outlook pericd giver
ongoing and contemplated growth projects, with management indicating an annual capital
spending baseling near 52,0 billior, with actual spending based on achiaved operating cash flow,
Meaningful ongoing projects include master campus plans and digcrete growth projacts across
ragions, Following the completion of the Julia Ann Freischlag Tower in Winstor=Salem in mid=
2025, the largesl ongoing project is the expansion and renovation of its Charlotte flagship
campus, Carclinas Medical Center, to be completed in late 2027, Despite its capital plans, which
also include cutpatient access points such as ambulatory surgical centers, we anticipate
sustaining strong operating liquidity wil remain a key pillar of managament's plan, and expact
strong cash flow will suflisiently support these plans over the oullook period. In addition, we
understand forecasted capital capacity grows over the coming years, providing the system with
addad flexinility as Medicaid reforms come online,

Wa view tha consolidated investment portfolic as appropriate for tha system, and note the vast
majority of unrestricled rasarves ara now under a unified investment managament platform; this
transition drove high realized investment earnings in 2024, Tha system has $2.8 bilion of
alternative investmant commitments over the coming ning years,

Ample liquidity support supplements balance sheet

Tha system retains ampls liquidity with'n its unrastricted reservas, further supplamanted by
AaH's $1.0 Billon authorizad CP program (S270 millien oulslanding as of June 30, 2025) and $350
millicn line-of-credit capacity, CMHEA's $200 millicn authorzed CP program (upsized from 5400
raillicn in May 2025, $400 million cutstanding), and $300 million line of eredit via WFE ($200
milliogn cutstandin g] CP kalances and line of cradit draws are deductad from unrestrictad
rasarves and axcluded from debt measures; Advocale Haalth's combinea CP balance declined Lo
3470 million as of July 31, 2025,

Advocate Health hasz identified approximately $2.6 billion in combined azsets (market value
discountad by SEP Global Ratings) as of July 31, 2025, to cover authorizad CP programs and salf=
liguidity YREDEs including A8H's senes 20118 VREDEs (370 millicn} and CMHA's series 2018F VRDEs
{$100 millicn), The identified assets are a subset of Advocate Health's unrestricted resemnves and
incluce cash and equivalents, monay market funds, and LS, government fixed-incoms securities.
In the evant of a failed remarketing, it iz our opinion that the azsets inentfied in the portfolio
would previde sufficient liquidity, Tha system has also provided us with the operational
procedures that will be followed to provide for timaly payment in the event of a failed CP rollover
or remarketing of the VEDEs, Wa monitor the credit auality, liguidity, and sufficiency of the
aggeats identifiad by manragemant on a manthly basis,

Lighter debt load and benefit exposure ahead of potential new borrowings

Wa view tha system’s levarage as sound for tha rating, falling below 20% in 2024 with a low dabt
burden near 1.3x alded by the largs total revenue base, Managament s currently contemplating
debt activity in early 2026, possbly inclusive of S300 millicn in new money reimbursament debt
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and repayment of WFE"s $200 million line-of-credit draw with long-term debt, Given we exclude
line of credit oraws from unreatricted reserves and long=term debt, we would estimate a $500
million incraasze in lang=term debt concurrent with a 5500 millicn increass in reserves, We will
fully evaluate Advocats Health's plar of finance once it s linalized, but believe the system has
ample capacity for the preliminary transaction at the current rating, Borrowings prasented in
current labilities given put, tender, or bank expiration dates within ore year are moved into aur

lomg=tarm dabt fgures,

Just over 40% of long-term debt is considerad contingant per SEP Global Ratings, inclusive of
VEDEs, direct placement debt, and put bonds, All obligated groups and entities were compliant
with fimancial covenants in fizcal 2074,

Tha system’s interest rate swap portfolio includas five swaps from A28H (348 milicn notional
value as of Dee, 31, 2024) and 10 swaps from Attum Health (3787 millicn notional valual, Just
$750,000 in combined collateral was posted at year-end, related to WFBE's lone swap, The swaps
support a debt atructure that is 6G5% fixed rate or aynthetically fixed,

Addvocate Health includes seven distinet defi 5 of various legal
clagsifications, with all closed to new participants with benefit aceruals frozen, The combined net
shortfall acroas all plans was about 5780 million as of Dee, 31, 2024, assuming an average
digcount rate of 5,7% (up from 5,1% in 2023), equating to moderate funded status of 81%, The

ed-banefit pension pla

ial pansion exposure slems rom the Atrium Heallh Charlette Defined=Benafit

masl mal
Pengion Plan, which carries 2 3528 millior shortfall, When viewed in the context of the system's
conzolidated financial profila, we anticipate pension expogure will remain manageable, with
combinad cortributions of 68 million in 20024,

1@

Long-tarm oparaling lease Lakilities wers $1.1 billion as of June 30, 2025, an amounl we view as
consigtent with the system's overall debt load,

Advocate Health, Morth Carolina--Financial statistics

-Six monthe ended Medians for "84° rated health
June 30— --Fiscal year ended Dec, 31-- care syslemes
025 2024 023 2022 2034

Financial perfarmance
Mt patient revenue [F000s) 9,203,783 30405450 27909077 25046827 803328
Total operating revenun (40 18,7 S H M0 ILEIN S THAOSL0EE &3
Total operating expenses ($000s) 18,0428 I3, 7E4,L00 M OB00XF 28,452 740 7. 7E8, 800
Operaticg income [F000s) FoE0s 840,687 980,383 WA, TER
Operating margin (341 4 2n 1,83 a2
Hel raraperaling necome (3000s) O78 363 1,645,304 a0 Qe a1k asg £18. 0348
Exceas incormne (§000s) 173387 2,580,074 B70.385 4 aad A53 102
Excpss margmn [ L] EA 3,03 R 2,84
Operating EEIDA margin (3 7RG ER= aal 78 B0
ERI, e gie (36 12,31 3 73 5.8 ey
Mot availznle far debt service (800 2,473,820 2401288 1,670,124 EALTER
Maxirurm aqrual debl servce (3000:) 80,040 &@0, 040 &@0, 080 460,040 147,31
Magirumn aarual debt servce coverage iG] L .80 5,39 3ad Ll
Operating lease-adjusted coverage (k] A 6,80 O pe 2 a2 B,
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Advocate Health, North Carolina--Financial statistics

—-Six manths ended
June 30--

==Flscalyear ended Dec, 31--

Medians for ‘AL rated health
care systems

2025

2024

2023 Fibrrid 2024

Liguidity and finanslal flexikility

Unrestricted reserves |

Unrestricted days cash on han Him
Urrastricted ressrastotal lomg=tarm dabt 3511
Unrestricted reserves/contingent lianilities (%) 11782
Average age of plant years @ 4 a4 H.a 0.5
Capital gxpendituees/depreiation and amortizatan 88,1 1.9 1223 LR -
Debt and liabilities
Total loag-term cebl [$000s) 6,887,253 007 883 b o A8 2T 2,084,105
Longetarm debtc ctiom (55 G E 25,3 744 18,3
Contirgent liabiltes [(S000s) 20EEEID 2,847 565 G0EEE 3185,£20 BEL 404
Contirgent labiltesTatal long-term debt | LrA &42,1 62,2 &2, =01
[ent burder (96 118 L2 Tuh4 1,60 1.6
Defired berefit plan furded status | A, .08 7128 TER a7.5l
Miscellaneais
bedizare advarce payrments (30 [x] 4] MR
Snort-term boerawings (E000sH] EF00000 470,000 MMR
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otal met special furding (3 L MEE

“Basad on S&P Global Ratings internal consolidation, fIExeluded from unrestricted reserves, lnng=term debt, and contingent lianilties, N A--Not avallable, N/A--hot

applicable, MNA-Maodian not reparted,

Credit Snapshot

+ Group rating methooalogy: We consider the ooligated groups of Advocate Aurcra Health, CMHA, and Wake Forest

Bapii

tto all be core to the group credit prafiie of Advocate Health, The chligated groups remain separate and da rat

SECUre or guaranies ary debl af each olber. Alrium Health Mavicert and Alriurm Health Floyd are nol members of the

CMHA obligated grous,

&  FHhancial presentation: Our nnalyEE utilizes the syster's 312

FASE entites [AAH ard WF

accurale approach for asses

rig ki syslern's craditwarth

audit, which incluges all legacy affiliates, combining

' with GASE entities (ChHA) urder FASE standards, We cansider tnis to be the mast

+ {rganizaton descripton: Advecate Health is the gaverning entity of the corbined system that includes Advocate

Aurara Health and Atrium Heal

Health Flaya. The systemn has 8% inpatients facilities across llinais, Wisconsin, Morth Ca

supplamented by Furdreds af v

tn, The latter also includes Wake

orost Bagtist, Atriuem

Health Mavicent

and Agrium
olina, and Georga,

ious cutpatient access points, The system is headguartesed in Charlothe, N.C.
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Advocate Health, North Carolina

Ratings List
advacate Hith Care, |L Health Care Systern General Obligation
Advacale Hith Care, 1L Heallth Care System General Dbligation Al

ATFia Hith, NG Health Care Syaterm Revanuas

Azrium Hith, NG Health Care Systermn Reverues

Wake Forest Baptst Dbdg Grp, NE Health Tare System Revenues

www.spglobal com/ratingadirect September 16, 2025 10
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Advocate Health, North Carolina

Cogyright @ 2023 by Standard & Foor's Financial Sarvices LLC. All rights raserved.

Wa cantant incuding ratings, credit-recated anslysas and data, valuations, model, saftwane or otner application or output therefrom] or any part thareat
[Contart) may be modified, reverse engneerad, reproduced of distributed 'n any form by any means, or stored in 8 database o retrieval systam, without the
priar wrillen parmission of Slandard & Peor's Firancial Services LLC or ils alliliates (oollectivaly, SEP). The Cantent shall nol be wsad for any urlawlul or
unautharized purpesas, SBP and any third-party praviders, as well as their directars, officers, sharchelders, ampeoyees or agents (collectivaly S&P Parties) da
et UArANTRA the acouracy, complatenaess, imadiness or availability of the Contant. &P Partiss are not responsible for any arrers or omissicns (negugent or
othenwsal, regardless of the causa, for the results obtaired fram tha uss of tha Gontent, or far the securty o manterancs of ey dats iInput by the uger. Tha
Content is pravidad an an "as is” basis. S&P PARTIES DESCLAIM ANY AND ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDNG, BUT KOT LIMITED TO, ANY
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTAE LITY OR FITHESS FOR A PARTICLLAR PURPDSE OR USE. FREEDOM FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORE OR DEFECTS, THAT
THE CONTENT'S FUMNCTIOMING WILL 2E UNINTERRUPTED OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGLRATION. In
gt shall SRE Partes ba labla to ary party for any direct, ‘ndirect, incidartal, esamplary, compansatory, punitha, special or consanuentis, demages,
costs, axpenses, legal feas, or Losses Tneluding without danitation, 281 incoms o loat profits and opportuaity coets or lessas caused by negligenca) in
conneclan with ary use af the Content even il advised of the possibility of such damages.

Soma of tha Content may have hean craatad with tha assistanca of an artificial inteligance (A0 toal, Putlishad Content craated or processad using Al is
compased, reviewad, aditad, and approvad by S8 personnel

Cradit-related and ather analyses, incuding ratings, ana statamenis in the Cantant are statemerts of apinior as of tha date they are sxpressas ard not
statements ¢f fact. 3&F's opinions, analysas and rating acknowledgment decisiens (described below) are aot recommencdations to purchase, hold, or sell any
securilies of o make any vestmeant desisions, and do not address the suitability of any security. SEP assumes no obligation to update the Cortant fallowing
publization in any farm ar format. The Contant should rat be refad an and is nat a substiute for tha skill, judgment and sxperisnca of the usar, its
managament, Brployass, advisors and/ar clients whan making investmart and other tusinass decisicns. S&P does not act as a fidueziany or &0 irvastment
advieor gxcapt whera reglstaned & such, Whils 5&F has obtained inforration from sources it begavas to be rallable, 5&F does not perform an audit and
undertakes no duty of due diligence or indepandant verification of any information it recahses. Ratg-relatsd publicationa may be publiakad for a variety of
reasans Lhal are nol necessadly degendent on action by raling commitlees, incuding, bul nol. limited Lo, the puslication of & periodic update on a credil.
rating and related anatyses.

To Lhe extent that regulalory authorities allow & raling agency 1o acknowedge in one jurisdiclion a rating issaed inanather jurisdiction for cerlain regulatory
purpesas, SEP resarves tha right to assign, withdrow or suspend such acknowledgmant at any time ard in s sole discretan, S&P Parties disclaim any duty
whatsoevar arlsing out of the assignment, withdrawal or suspansian of an acknowledgment as wel as any Lability for ary damage allaged ta have bagn
sutferad on acoaunt therast.

SEP keaps cartan activities of its Business units Saparata fram each ather in arder o praserve the independanse and I'bh_lBGtNl}' of the'r raspactive sctiviios,
A5 a result, certain tusiness units af SEP may have infarmation that is nat avalable to ather SEP business units. 58P has establshed polices and procedures
to mantan tha corfidentiality of cartain nan-publc information recaivad N connection with each analytical process.

S&P may recoive compansation for its ratings and certain analysas, rarmally from issuers or unoarwriters of sacuritas or from abligeors. S&P resenes the rignt
to dissemingte its apnions and aralyses. 5455 public ratngs and analyses ara made avallable on 155 Web sites, v spRlotalcom/ratings [frea of chargal,
and www ratingsdirect.com (subseription). and may be districuted threugh other means, inclug nig via S8 publications and third-party redstributors.
Additional inforrralion aboul cur ratings Nees is available al wewzpglobal comiusatingsfees.,

STAMDARD & POOR'S, S&P and RATINGSDIRECT are registered trademaris af Stanaard & Poor's Firancial Services LLC.

www.spglobal com/ratingsdirect September 16,2025 N
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MOODY’S
RATINGS

Rating Action: Moody's Ratings upgrades ratings of Advocate Aurora
Health and Atrium Health (legally known as Charlotte Mecklenburg Hospital
Authority) to Aa2 and Wake Forest Baptist's to Aa3; outlooks stable

01 Oct 2025

MNew York, October 01, 2025 -- Moody's Ratings (Moody"s) has upgraded the revenue bond ratings of Advocate
Aurcra Health and Atrium Health (legalty known as Charlotte Mecklenburg Hospital Autharity) to AaZ from Aa3
and simultanecusly upgraded the revenue bond rating of Wake Forest Bapiist to Aad from AL, The outlooks
have been revised to stable from positive at the higher rating levels, We have also alffirmed the VMG 1 and P=1
short term ratings assigned to various series of debt at Advocate Aurora Health and Atrum Health,

Advocate Health, Inc, was created as the governing entity of Advocate Aurora Health and Atrium Health, Inc, as
member organizations, The debl of the various member organizalions remains separately secured, however, we
consider the linkages between them and the credit guality of the entire Advocate Haalth system in our analysis,

The upgrades reflect the strengthenad financial profile of the Advocate Health systam and its successiul
strategic expansion strategies which have augmented Advocate Aurora Health, Atrium Health, and Wake Forest
Baptist, Governance is a key driver for the upgrades reflecting the view that management's axecution of growth
and integration strategies have undergirded Advocate Healths financial and operational success,

RATINGS RATIOMALE

The Aa2 rating for Advocate Aurora Health and Atrium Health is supported by several key credit factors,
including significant scale, strong market share in major metropolitan areas, and solid financial performance and
liquidity, The system operates in demagraphically favorable markets, [everaging a strong position built on
NUMErous corvenient cupatient care access points, physician clinics, and high-acuity inpatient care at several
acadamic hospitals, The second branch of Wake Forest University School of Medicing, in Charlotte, increases
Advocate Health's preminence in that market and establishes a pipeline for physicians and medical staff over
time, Disciplined financial and capital planning allows both organizations to fund capital spending and pursue
growth opportunities while sustaining solid operating margins and favorable leverage and liquidity metrics.,
Though competition is high, population growth and a strong reputation are expected o belp maintain or expand
market share, The most significant challenges are the potential cuts in fedaral and state funding, although the
legacy entlies have along history of effectively responding 1o operating pressures,

The Aa3 rating for Wake Forest Baptist is based on its solid market position in Winston=Salem, its status as an
acadamic medical center, and its membearship in the Advocate Health systam, Membership in the Advocate
Health system provides strategic and financial advantages, including access to capital and the resources of a
larger system,

Affirmation of Alrium Health's P=1 and VMG 1 ratings rellects the organizalion's streng reasury management
and daily liquid assets that provide for adequate coverage of debt backed by Atrium Health's internal liquidity,

Affirmation of Advocate Aurora's P-1 reflects its long term rating and our approach to market access
instruments,

Affirmation of Advocate Aurora's and Atrium Health's WMIG 1 reflects standby bond purchase agreements
provided by the respective banks 1o suppert the tender features of the affected debt,

RATING OQUTLOOK
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The stable autlook reflects solid operating cash flow (OCF) margins above 7% and maintenance of very
favorable cash and debt metrics

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO AN UPGRADE OF THE RAT|NGS

= Further geographic diversification of cash flow

= Material and sustaired improvement in operating marging that support exemplary leverage measures
= Significant increase in market share

= Far short=term ratings: not applicable

FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO A DOWNGRADE OF THE RATINGS

= Sustained decline in OCF margin balow 6%

= Additional debt that materially dilutes leverage matrics

- Short term ratings: material reduction in coverage level of assets backing the commercial paper program or
downgrade of Advocate Aurcra or Atrium’s leng werm rating o A2 or lower, for bank enhanced ratings:
downgrade ol the shori-lerm CR Assessment of tha Bank

PROF|LE

The Advocale Health system has signilicant patienl care operations in four stales spanning multiple major metra
areas, It provides services across the care continuum with nearly 70 hospitals, numerous ambulatory and clinic
locations, and 8 000 employed physicians, IUis headguartered in Charlotte, MNC,

METHODOLOGY

The principal methodology used in the longsterm ratings was Not=forprofit Healthcare published in October 2024
and available ar hitps:dratings, moodys, comirme-documentsi430638, The principal mathodology used in the
short=term ratings was US Municipal Short=term Debt published in October 2024 and available at
hitps-firatings, moodys comfrmo-documents/430699, Alternatively, please see the Rating Mathodologies page on

https-fratings,mocdys,com for a copy of these methodologies,
REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

For further specification of Moody's key rating assumptions and sensitivity analysis, see the sections
Methodology Assumptions and Sensitivity to Assumptions in the disclosure form, Moody's Rating Symbols and
Dafinitions can be found on hitps-dratings,moodys comdrating=definitions,

For any affected sacuritias or rated entitias receiving direct cradit support’credi substitution from anothar entity

or entities subject to a credit rating action (the supporting entity), and whose ratings may change as a result of a
credit rating action as to the supporting entity, the associated regulatory disclosures will refate to the supporting

entity, Exceptions to this approach may be applicable in certain jursdictions,

For ratings issued on & program, series, category/class of debt or security, certain regulatory disclosures
applicable to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series, category/class of debt, or
security, or pursuant to a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing ratings, in
accordance with Moody's rating practices, can be found in the most recent Credit Rating Anncuncement related
ta the same class of Credit Rating,

For provisional ratings, the Credit Rating Announcament provides cenain regulatory disclosures in relation 1o tha
provisional rating assigned, and in relagon to a definitve rating tha: may be assigned subsaquent to the final
Issuance of tha debl, in 2ach case whare the ransaction structure and terms have nol changed pror (o tha
assignmen: of the definitive rating in a mannar that would hawve affectad the rating,

Maoaody's does not always publish a separate Credit Rating Announcement for each Credit Rating assigned in the
Anticipated Ratings Frocess or Subsequent Ratings Frocess,
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Regulatory disclosuras contained in this press release apnly to the credit rating and, if applicable, the related
rating outlook or rating review,

Al least one ESG consideration was malenal 1o the credit rating action{s) anncunced and described above,
Moody's general principles for assessing environmental, social and governance (ESG) risks in our cradit
analysis can be found at 2l AR oouments43s

Please see Ditpsdiratings.mocdys,com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and to the Moody's
legal entity that has issuad the rating,

Please see the issuer'deal page on hitps:dratings moodys com for additional regulatoery disclosures for each
cradit rating,

Bath Wexler
Lead Aralyst

Danie| Steingart
Additional Contact

Relsasing Office:

Moody's Investors Senvice, Inc.,
250 Greanwich Straet

Mewe Yaork, MY 10007

UsA

JOURMALISTS: 1 212 553 0376
Client Service: 1 212 563 1653

@ 2025 Moody's Corporation, Moody's [mvestors Service, |nc,, Moody's Analytics, [ne, and/or their licensors and
affiliates (collectively, "MOODY'S"), All rights resenved,

CREDIT RATINGS ISSUED BY MODDY'S CREDIT RATINGS AFFILIATES ARE THEIR CURRENT
OPINIONS OF THE RELATIVE FUTURE CREDIT RISK OF ENTITIES, CREDIT COMMITMENTS, OR DEBT
DR DEBT-LIKE SECURITIES, AND MATERIALS, PRODUCTS, SERVICES AND INFORMATION
PUBLISHED OR OTHERWISE MADE AVAILABLE BY MOODY'S (COLLECTIVELY, "MATERIALS") MAY
INCLUDE SUCH CURRENT OPINIONS, MOODY'S DEFINES CREDIT RISK AS THE RISK THAT AN ENTITY
MAY NOT MEET ITS CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS AS THEY COME DUE AND ANY
ESTIMATED FINANCIAL LOSS IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT OR IMPAIRMENT, SEE APPLICABLE
MOODY'S RATING SYMBOLS AND DEFINITIONS PUBLICATION FOR INFORMATION ON THE TYPES OF
CONTRACTUAL FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ADDRESSED BY MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS. CREDIT
RATINGS DO NOT ADDRESS ANY OTHER RISK, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: LIQUIDITY RISK,
MARKET VALUE RISK, OR PRICE VOLATILITY. CREDIT RATINGS, NON-CREDIT ASSESSMENTS
("ASSESSMENTS™), AND OTHER OPINIONS INCLUDED IN MOODY"S MATERIALS ARE NOT
STATEMENTS OF CURRENT OR HISTORICAL FACT. MOODY'S MATERIALS MAY ALSO INCLUDE
QUANTITATIVE MODEL-BASED ESTIMATES OF CREDIT RISK AND RELATED OPINIONS OR
COMMENTARY PUBLISHED BY MOODY'S ANALYTICS, INC, AND/OR ITS AFFILIATES, MODDY'S
CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OPINIONS AND MATERIALS DO NOT CONSTITUTE OR
PROVIDE INVESTMENT OR FINANCIAL ADVICE, AND MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS,
OTHER OPINIONS AND MATERIALS ARE NOT AND DO NOT PROVIDE RECOMMENDATIONS TO
PURCHASE, SELL, OR HOLD PARTICULAR SECURITIES, MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS,
OTHER OPINIONS AND MATERIALS DO NOT COMMENT ON THE SUITABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT
FOR ANY PARTICULAR INVESTOR, MOODY'S ISSUES ITS CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS AND
OTHER OPINIONS AND PUBLISHES OR OTHERWISE MAKES AVAILABLE ITS MATERIALS WITH THE
EXPECTATION AND UNDERSTANDING THAT EACH INVESTOR WILL, WITH DUE CARE, MAKE [TS OWN
STUDY AND EVALUATION OF EACH SECURITY THAT IS UNDER CONSIDERATION FOR PURCHASE,
HOLDING, OR SALE,
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MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OFPINIONS, AND MATERIALS ARE NOT INTENDED
FOR USE BY RETAIL INWESTORS AMND |T WOULD BE RECKLESS AND [NAPPROFRIATE FOR RETAIL
INVESTORS TO USE MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OFIMIONS OR MATERIALS
WHEN MAKING AN [INVESTMENT DECISION. IF [N DOUBT ¥YOU SHOULD CONTACT YOUR FINANC|AL OR
OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER,

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN |S PROTECTED BY LAW, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
COPYRIGHT LAW, AND NOME OF SUCH INFORMATION MAY BE COPIED OR OTHERWISE
REFPRODUCED, REPACKAGED, FURTHER TRANSMITTED, TRANSFERRED, DISSEMINATED,
REDISTRIBUTED OR RESOLD, OR STORED FOR SUBSEQUENT USE FOR ANY SUCH PURPOSE, IN
WHOLE OR [N PART, [N ANY FORM OR MANNER OR BY ANY MEANS WHATSOEVER, BY ANY PERSON
WITHOUT MOODY'S PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT, FOR CLARITY, NO INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIM
MAY BE USED TO DEVELOP. [MPROVE, TRAIN OR RETRAIN ANY SOFTWARE PROGRAM OR
DATABASE, INCLUDIMNG, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, FOR ANY ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE, MACHINE
LEARNING DR MATURAL LANGUAGE PROCESSING SOFTWARE, ALGORITHM, METHODOLOGY ANDIOR
MODEL,

MOODY'S CREDIT RATINGS, ASSESSMENTS, OTHER OP[NIONS AND MATER|ALS ARE MOT INTENDED
FOR USE BY ANY PERSON AS A BENCHMAREK AS THAT TERM |S DEFINED FOR REGULATORY
PURFOSES AND MUST NOT BE USED [N ANY WAY THAT COULD RESULT |N THEM BE|ING
CONSIDERED A BENCHMARE.,

Al information contained herain is obizined by MOODY'S from sources balieved by it 1o be accurate and
reliable, Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error as well as other factors, however, all
information contained harein is provided "AS |57 without warranty of any kind, MOODY'S adopts all necessary
measures so that the information it uses in assigning a credit rating is of sufficient quality and from sources
MOODY'S considers o be reliable incuding, when appropriate, independent third-party sources, However,
MOODY'S s not an auditor and cannot in every instance independenty verify or validate information received in
the eredit rating process ar in prepasing iLs Malterials,

To the extent permitted by law, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
lizensors and suppliers disclaim liability to any person or entity for any indirect, special, consequential, or
incidental losses or damages whatscever ansing from or in connection with the information contained herein or
tha use of ar inability to use any such infermation, aven if MOODY'S or any of its directors, officers, employees,
agents, representatives, licensors or suppliers is advised in advance of the possibility of such losses ar
damages, including but not limited to: {a) any loss of prasent or prospective profits or (B) any [oss or damage
arising where the relevant financial instrument is not the subject of a particular credit rating assigned by
MOoDY's,

To the extent parmitted by [aw, MOODY'S and its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
lizensors and suppliers disclaim liability for any direct or compansatory losses or damages causad to any person
or entity, including but not limited te by any negligence (but excluding fraud, willful misconduct or any other type
of liability thar, for the avoidance of doubt, by law cannol be excluded) on the part of, or ary contingency within
or beyond the control of, MODDY'S or any of its directors, officers, employeess, agents, representatives,
lieensors or suppliers, arsing from or in cennecton with tha infarmation contaired herein or the use of or inability
to use any such information,

NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE ACCURALY, TIMELINESS, COMPLETENESS,
MERCHAMTABILITY OR FITHNESS FOR ANY FARTICULAR PURFOSE OF ANY CREDIT RATING,
ASSESSMENT, OTHER QFINION OR INFORMATION |5 GIVEN OR MADE BY MOODY'S |M ANY FORM OR
MANNER WHATSOEVER,

Moody's Investors Service, Inc,, a wholly=owned credit rating agency subsidiary of Moody's Corporation
{("MCO", heraby discloses that most issuers of debt securities (including corporata and municipal bonds,
debentures, notes and commercial paper) and preferred stock rated by Meody's Investors Service, [nc, have,
prior 1o assignment of any credil rating, agreed o pay Moody's [mvestors Service, Inc, for credil ratings opinions
and services rendered by it, MCO and all MCO entities that issue ratings under the “"Moody's Ratings” brand
name ["Moody's Ratings™), also maintain policies and procedures to address the independence of Moody's
Ratings' credit ratings and credit rating processes, Information regarding certain affiliations that may exist
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hetween directors of MCO and rated entities, and between entities who hold credit ratings from Moody's
Investors Service, [nc, and have also publicly reported to the SEC an ownership interest in MCO of more than
5%, is posted annually at ir.moodys,com under the heading "Investor Relations — Corporate Governance —
Charter and Governance Documents = Director and Shareholder affiliation Policy,”

Moody's SF Japan K.K., Moody's Local AR Agente de Calificacidn de Riesgo 5.4, Moody's Local BR Agéncia
de Classificagdo de Risco LTDA, Moody's Local MX 5.4, de GV, LGV, Moody's Local PE Clasificadora da
Riesgo 5.4, and Moody's Local PA Calificadora de Riesgo S.A, {collectively, the "Moody's Mon=NRESRO CRAS")
are all indirectly wholly=owned cradil rating agency subsidiaries of MCO, None of the Moody's Non=NRSRO
CRAs is a Matonally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization,

Additional terms for Australia only: Any publication into Australia of this document is pursuant to the Australian
Financial Services License of MOODY'S affiliate, Moody's [nvesiors Service Ply Limited ABM 61 003 399
B5TAFSL 336969 andior Moody's Analytics Australia Pty Ltd ABM 94 105 136 472 AFSL 383560 (as applicable),
This document is intended to be provided only o “whelesale clients” within the meaning of section 781G of the
Corparations Act 2001, By continuing to access this document from within Australia, you represent to MOODY'S
that you are, or are accessing the document as a representative of, a “wholesale client” and that neither you nor
the entity you reprasent will directly or indirectly disseminate this document or it contents to “retall clenis” witkin
the meaning of section T61G of the Comorations Act 2001, MOODY'S credit rating is an opinion as to the
craditwerthiness of a debl cbligation of the issuer, not on the eguity securities of the issuer or any form of
security that is available to retall investars,

Additional tarms for India only: Moody's credit ratings, Assessments, othar opinions and Materials are not
intended to be and shall not be relied upen or used by any users located in India in relation to securities listed or
propased to be listed an Indian stock exchanges,

Additional terms with respect 1o Second Party Opinlons and Net Zero Assessments (as delined in Moody's
Ratings Rating Symbels and Definiions): Please note that neither a Second Party Opinion ("SPO") nor & Met
Zera Assessment ("NZAY s a "credit rating”, The ssuance of SPOs and NZAs 15 not a regulated activity in many
jurisdictions, including Singapore, JAPAMN: In Japan, development and provision of SP0s and NZAs fall under
the category of "Ancillary Businesses”, not "Credit Rating Business®, and are not subject w the regulatons
applicakle to "Credit Rating Businass” under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan and its
relevant regulation, PRC: Any SPO: (1) does not constitute a PRC Green Bond Assessment as defined under
any relevant PRC laws or regulations; (2} cannot be included in any ragistration statement, offering circular,
prospectus or any other documents submitted to the PRC regulatory authorities or otherwise used 1o satisfy any
PRC regulatary disclosure requiremant, and (3) cannol be used within the PRC for any regulatory purpose or for
any other purpose which is not permitted under relevant PRC laws or regulations, For the purposes of this
disclaimer, "PRC" relers to the manland of the People's Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan,
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SECTION ViIil. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding, or guaranteeing
the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

5. “A” Bond rating or better

6. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

7. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

8. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A rated
guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for
the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion.
When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of
a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall
be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be
evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years

Enter Historical and/or Projected Years:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another
organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations
should the applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION
FORM.

The criterion is not applicable. Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has a AA long-term bond rating from
Fitch and Standard & Poors. Advocate Aurora Health, Inc has an Aa2 long-term bond rating from
Moody’s.
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SECTION IX. 1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

B.

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1)

2)

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance
sheet asset accounts to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available.

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing
costs and other factors.

That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1)

Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a
cost and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using
the following format (insert after this page).

LGH CCC
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Department Total
(List below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.” Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (BxE) (G+H)
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no

more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of
salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

F. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per

equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project completion.

See Attachment #37, Exhibit 1, 2 and 3.

The Chicago Index for Chicago Q3 2025 and the 2025 Third Quarter Construction Cost Report is
provided in the Appendix.
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+ Advocate Health Care Advocate Health Care

November 6, 2025

Mr. John Kniery

Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor

Springfield, llinois 62761

T (630) 572-9393
. ~ 2025 Windsor Drive F (830) 590-4752
Now part of ¥l ADVOCATEHEALTH Oak Brook, IL 60523  advocatshealth,com

Re:

Dear Mr. Kniery:

Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation d/b/a Lutheran General Hospital -
Comprehensive Cancer Center (CCC) Project

This letter is to attest to the fact that the selected form of debt financing for the purpose
of the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital project will be the lowest net cost available, or if a
more costly form of financing is selected, that form is more advantageous due to such terms as
prepayment privileges, no required mortgages, access to additional debt, term financing costs
and other factors.

Respectfully,

A FFL-

Kevin Fitch
Group Vice President Finance
Advocate Health and Hospitals Corporation

Subscribed and sworn to me

This S day of Mpwember, 2025

G

P OLGA RAMIREZ

OFFICIAL SFAL
Motary Public, State of Winojs
My Commission Expiies
March 06, 2027

No(a‘lry Public

7

ol Advocate Health Care @ AtriumHealth @D Aurora Health Care: @ Yk Ferpt toivacsy
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Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Cost & Gross Square Feet by Department

A | B c | o E | F G H
Total Cost
Dept. / Area Cost / Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. S Mod. S (G+H)
('22‘2’) ('\c/l/fg)' (ﬁi‘g) Circ.* | Mod. (CAC) | Circ.* AxC BxE (G+H)
REVIEWABLE
Hematology Oncology Infusion $499 SO | 14,946 15% 0 15% | $7,458,054 S0 $7,458,054
Hematology Oncology Clinic $441 SO | 11,565 15% 1 15% $5,100,165 S0 $5,100,165
TCT Clinic (includes Apheresis) $S446 S0 4,120 15% 0 15% $1,837,520 SO $1,837,520
Outpatient Infusion $498 S0 7,910 15% 0 15% $3,939,180 S0 $3,939,180
Multispecialty Clinic $493 SO 8,065 15% 0 15% $3,976,045 SO $3,976,045
Dedicated Oncology Lab $807 SO 1,683 15% 0 15% $1,358,181 SO $1,358,181
Hospital OP Lab SO $565 0 15% 1,350 15% SO $762,750 $762,750
?L:?/Za;‘;d Oncology Pharmacy $905 $0 | 2420 15% 0| 15% | $2,190,100 $0 $2,190,100
TCT Non-TCT Pharmacy (Level 1) $934 S0 1,639 15% 0 15% $1,530,826 SO $1,530,826
Total Clinical 52,348 1,350 $27,427,940 $762,912 $28,190,852
Clinical Contingency $2,810,000
Total Clinical Reviewable + $31,000,852
Contingency e
NON-REVIEWABLE

Staff Support $1,854 | $1,298 1,210 15% 480 15% $2,243,183 $622,901 $2,866,084
Conference Room $369 0 622 15% 0 15% $229,512 S0 $229,512
Survivorship $870 S0 3,010 15% 0 15% $2,618,008 S0 $2,618,008
Reception / Circulation:
Connecting Circulation Link $879 $616 871 15% 1,543 15% $765,992 $949,886 $1,715,878
Entry Vestibule $685 SO 489 15% 0 15% $334,853 S0 $334,853
Public Circulation Lobby Level 1 $S687 $481 5,327 15% 940 15% $3,661,673 $452,300 $4,113,973
Public Circulation Level 2 $135 SO 3,151 15% 0 15% $425,600 SO $425,600
CAC Lobby and PSR S0 $383 0 15% 1,500 15% S0 $574,230 $574,230
Building Support:
Mech/Elec/Stair/Elev/Shaft $1,219 SO 4,347 15% 0 15% $5,298,863 SO $5,298,863
Mech/Elec/Generator/Pumps/AHU | $2,459 SO 6,230 15% 0 15% | $15,318,822 SO $15,318,822
Total Non-Clinical 25,257 4,463 $30,896,505 | $2,599,317 $33,495,822
Total Clinical and Non-Clinical 77,605 5,813
Non-Reviewable Contingency $3,350,000
Total Clinical Non-Reviewable + $36,845,822
Contingency T
TOTAL $67,846,674

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation
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Description of Premiums

Two Production Pharmacies for TCT and Oncology Infusion Pharmaceutical Prep &
compounding.

a. Must follow USP/ISO 797/800 rules of pharmaceuticals.

b. Higher hospital grade square feet rules, higher mechanical & electrical rules.

c. Requires emergency power.

d. Clean room requirements related to donning and doffing and airlock type
compounding of hazardous pharmaceuticals and flows.

e. Healthcare grade systems and construction types.

$2,106,915

The new building is required to tie into the existing building. This will maintain usage
of any administrative functions withing the existing building as well as patient pass
through from existing garage entry.

$1,043,250

TCT and Hematology Oncology infusion area has higher mechanical /exhaust needs
due to sensitive nature and compromised immune systems of the patients who will
be utilizing the facility. Due to these requirements the MEP systems needed to
accommodate this space is Approximately 45% higher cost per square foot due to a
ducted supply and return system not typical in a standard medical office building.

$1,345,534

The new building requires upgrades to life safety and electrical systems within the
existing building

$180,000

Rework and upgrade of existing mechanical and electrical systems to code required
levels

$265,000

Two new emergency generators will be added to support new building, and existing
building. The existing generator is old and beyond life for continued support.

$2,675,000

Existing sanitary sewer pipes need to be extended and re-routed around the new
building

$8,108

The project requires stormwater detention volume exceeding the requirements of
the MWRDGC. The City of Park Ridge requirements exceed those of the MWRDGC by
50%.

$1,451,695

The project is located over an existing paved parking lot with existing site lighting,
utilities, and curbs that need to be demolished and removed from the site.

$82,045

Renovation costs are higher than anticipated in means cost due to infection
prevention and other construction control costs to maintain patient environmental
safety

$284,850
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D. Projected Operating Cost per Equivalent Pt Day in Year 1
E. Impact of Project on Capital Costs in Year of Completion (Year 1)

Projected Operating Costs

Cost Per EPD Year 1

Operating Costs $3,331.85

Impact of Project on Capital Costs

Cost Per EPD Year 1

Capital Costs $111.70

LGH CCC Page 142 Attachment 37, Exhibit 3



SECTION X. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE
PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 3960/5.4]:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including the
impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net
services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in each
community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all the following:

1.For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care provided by
the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the reporting
requirements for charity care reporting in the lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall
report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with
the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and
Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source" as
required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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ADVOCATE LUTHERAN GENERAL HOSPITAL

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031

CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) 2022 2023 2024
Inpatient 512 1,064 657
Outpatient 1,005 4,730 3,742
Total 1,517 5,794 4,399
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient $6,962,000 $4,074,996 $5,797,703
Outpatient $4,286,000 $4,372,762 $3,800,708
Total $11,248,000 $8,447,758 $9,598,411
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) 2022 2023 2024
Inpatient 5,888 7,254 7,479
Outpatient 65,930 60,756 61,499
Total 71,818 68,010 68,978
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient $135,277,833 $141,354,996 $143,324,413
Outpatient $32,224,428 $60,104,530 $59,754,670
Total $167,502,261 $201,459,526 $203,079,083
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Advocate Lutheran General Hospital has a long history of serving the Northwest suburbs of Chicago
and has continued to provide high quality acute care to residents. The hospital is part of Advocate
Health, a Top 10 not-for-profit health system. The hospital was founded in 1897 with just twenty-
five beds and was originally known as Norwegian Lutheran Deaconess Home and Hospital. Lutheran
General Hospital opened in its current location in Park Ridge in 1959. The hospital takes pride in its
relationships with the neighborhood, communities, organizations, and the agencies it serves. The
following illustrates ways that Lutheran General addresses the needs of the residents in their service
area.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital is a teaching, research and tertiary care hospital that offers the
most advanced care as a Level | Trauma Center and through Clinical Institutes in Oncology,
Cardiovascular, Orthopedics, Advanced Surgery, and Neurosciences. The hospital is a
Comprehensive Stroke Center, reflecting the highest level of competence for the treatment of
serious stroke events. Advocate Lutheran General’s campus is also home to Advocate Children’s
Hospital, one of the largest network providers of pediatric services in lllinois and the nation.

Newsweek’s World’s Best Hospitals 2025- Americas Best Maternity Hospitals, Best in State Hospitals
2025. America’s 50 Best Hospitals Healthgrades 2025 Specialty Excellence Awards: Coronary
Intervention, Cardiac Surgery, Cardiac Care, Gl Care, Gl Surgery, Stroke Care and Neurosciences.
Lung Cancer Surgery by Castle Connolly 2025 Top 3 in lllinois, Top 3 in Chicago Metro Area and Top
85 Nationwide.

The hospital has been a Magnet designated hospital for nursing excellence every year since 2005.
The American College of Surgeons National Surgical Quality Improvement Program has recognized
Advocate Lutheran General Hospital as one of 52 of the over 600 ACS NSQIP participating hospitals
that achieved meritorious outcomes for surgical patient care. The hospital has received recognition
from ACS each year for the past six years.

Diverse and Culturally Competent Care

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital has been on a journey to identify the unique needs of the
diverse populations in the hospital’s service area and to provide culturally competent care and
programs to support these communities. Programs include the South Asian Cardiovascular Center
(SACC) to raise awareness, provide prevention education, appropriately screen, and provide
treatment to all community members including this unique population. This population was
identified to have higher prevalence rates for cardiovascular disease and has a significant presence
in the Chicago metropolitan communities surrounding the hospital. The SACC provides a unique
combination of community outreach, culturally sensitive advanced clinical services, and research
while ensuring appropriate care for all.

Advocate Health’s Faith leadership partnered with Mental Health Program Specialists to coordinate
the following trainings: Bridges of Hope and Mental Health First Aid training; virtual training for faith
leaders on Mental Health Awareness.
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Advocate Lutheran General Hospital’s Older Adult Services is a distinctive program offering a safe,
secure, and stimulating environment for older adults with physical or cognitive concerns assistance
throughout the day including activities, therapies, support services, and meals.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital offers interpretation services and translation services in almost
every language through one of several methods including in person for Spanish, Polish, Vietnamese,
Cantonese, and Mandarin: translation service through registry agencies and video teleconferencing
and dedicated lines. The chart below outlines the top languages of Advocate Lutheran General
patients in 2025.

SPANISH
UKRAIMNIAN
RUSSIAN oPI
POLISH 12.6%
GUJARATI
ARABIC OPI 30.6%
KOREAN OPI
URDU 111%
. 12.6%
MONGOLIAN
AAL AYVAL Akt SPANISH &
MALAYALAM
30.6% usSIaN
ASSYRIAN
SERBIAN POLISH 9.8%
ROMANIAN ~ OP19.7%
/| 6%,
BOSNIAN {3« S
BULGARIAN A O
_ ~ /0
VIETNAMESE Qo > s——o’
°
GREEK =~
S 2,
HINDI OP1 1.3 -
- opPi 2% —/ —s 2O =
DARI OPl 2.2 / %M 32-_9‘
TURKISH OPl 2.3% ™

Other

Advocate Lutheran General’s multi-disciplinary experts have served the health and psychosocial
needs of thousands of teens and adults with Down syndrome since our nationally recognized
Lutheran General Adult Down Syndrome Center opened in 1992. The mission is to enhance their
lives by providing comprehensive, holistic, community-based care and services using a team
approach. As a comprehensive medical resource for teens and adults with Down syndrome, the
team provides patients everything from holistic care and support to education and resources in a
compassionate, welcoming environment. The center holds events, participates in community
outreach, and conducts research.

Community Needs Assessment

Advocate Lutheran General conducts a Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) every three
years to identify health needs for the hospital’s primary service area (PSA) including low income,
and underserved communities. The CHNA also supports the creation of effective community
programming that meets the needs of the community with measurable impact. The 2022 CHNA
Report identified behavioral health, health and nutrition, mental health, access to care, substance
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and alcohol use, cancer, respiratory health, diabetes, cardiovascular disease, and COVID-19 as the
top health needs for the hospital’s service area.

In 2019, Advocate Lutheran General selected key zip codes in the hospital’s high-risk communities
to implement the Empowered to Serve program, partnering with the American Heart Association
(AHA) and other health care organizations. The six-week series included free screenings and free
heart-healthy produce boxes provided at various organizations in community, including schools,
health centers, and food pantries. Other partnerships in 2020 included working with the Irving Park
Food Pantry to create non-perishable food bags for patients in need and donated boxed lunches for
families in need to the NWSHC. The Community Health Department also implemented mobile
COVID testing and distributed thousands of masks in communities that have the highest rates of
COVID and experience significant health disparities.

Advocate Children’s Hospital, located on the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital campus, provided
access to care for underserved communities through the hospital’s Ronald McDonald Care Mobile®,
a mobile clinic that provides free physicals and immunizations to low income, uninsured and
underinsured children. In 2018, 2,398 children received over 2,000 physicals and over 4,300
vaccines. During year three of the previous CHNA cycle, the team began screening patients for food
insecurity. Approximately 30% of patients received assistance.

In 2021, due to the ongoing concerns of COVID-19, the Community Health Department across
Advocate Health shifted its strategies to meet the immediate needs of the community. Advocate
Lutheran General Hospital enhanced preventive services to combat the COVID-19 pandemic by
increasing access to free vaccinations, health education, Personal Protective Equipment (PPE),
COVID-19 testing, and other immediate services. At Advocate Lutheran General, community
programs continued to thrive through the pandemic, bringing resources to communities identified
in the 2017-2019 CHNA report.

Education, Training and Research

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital and Advocate Children’s Hospital-Park Ridge offer a well-
structured, comprehensive selection of postgraduate training programs. This institution is a
teaching, research and tertiary care hospital that is recognized as being one of the top teaching
hospitals in the country. Advocate Lutheran General Hospital is designated as a Resource Hospital
within its Emergency Medical Services regional area in the state, providing education and training to
emergency medical providers.

Advocate Lutheran General Hospital also has a robust medical residency program that spans
specialties, including emergency medicine, family medicine, internal medicine,
obstetrics/gynecology, and sports medicine. The various programs are some of the oldest and most
highly regarded residencies in the Chicago area and aim to educate medical students on providing
safe, high-quality specialized care to help patients live well while achieving their career goals.

In 2012, the James R. and Helen D. Russell Center for Research and Innovation was established at
the hospital thanks to an endowment to support research. The purpose of the Advocate Research
Institute is to enhance the quality of care and improve health outcomes for individuals and the
community. The Center provides coordination and regulatory support for clinical trials and
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comprehensive resources for investigator-initiated, patient-centered outcomes research that ranges
from study design and statistical support through medical writing.

Advocate Health Care partners with education institutions to provide a high-quality clinical learning
experience for our next generation of nurses. In this shared learning environment, nursing students
and their preceptors participate in a dynamic collaboration which fosters the professional growth of
each student. Nursing students have the opportunity to work side by side with expert clinicians who
share their time, expertise, and knowledge. This relationship fosters both the growth of the student
as a nurse, as well as the clinician as a teacher.

Advocate Lutheran General hosted students from eleven nursing schools in 2020 including Loyola
University, Marquette University, North Park University, Northern Illinois University, Purdue
University Global, Rush University, and University of lllinois.

The physicians and staff of Advocate Lutheran General offer many free educational events
throughout the year to educate the community and corporate partners. Programs are developed to
include the surrounding Villages and businesses in the service area.

Oncology Designation Program

The LGH Oncology program offers comprehensive cancer care through bone marrow transplant
program, surgical oncology, dedicated Cancer Survivorship Program, outpatient infusion center, and
ancillary services offered in the Center for Advanced Care.

e The TCT (Bone Marrow Transplant) Service - Achieved an Institute of Excellence status with
Aetna. Advocate Bone Marrow Transplant and Cellular Therapy Program at Advocate
Lutheran General Hospital received Fact Accreditation.

e Advocate Cancer Institute at Advocate Lutheran General Hospital offers emerging therapies
and the most advanced options for the diagnosis and treatment of even the rarest forms of
cancer.

Patients have access to a team of cancer specialists working together on their behalf, including a
broad range of imaging and treatment services provided in a single program. The focus is on the
patient’s total health and wellness journey, combining leading-edge medical treatments with
personalized education. Patients are connected with the team of cancer service navigators to guide
and support them throughout diagnosis, treatment and beyond.

The team of experts uses the latest detection technology to diagnose cancer and monitor the
effectiveness of your treatment. More precise information leads to a more targeted treatment plan
and better outcomes.

The Lung Cancer Screening Program at Advocate Lutheran General offers eligible patients the
screening expertise and technology necessary to detect lung cancer at its earliest stages when it is
most treatable. The ground-breaking low-dose CT scan available at Advocate Lutheran General can
detect lung cancer early enough to allow for more treatment options, improve survival rates and
has been proven to reduce the risk of death by up to 20%.
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The Caldwell Breast Center pairs expert surgeons and clinicians with the latest technologies and
techniques to provide the most complete breast cancer care available.

Awards & Recognition — Oncology Services

¢ Consistently ranked as one of America's Best Breast Centers: Women Certified Inc., the voice
of female patients

¢ National Accreditation Program of Breast Centers (NAPBC), recognized since 2010

e Breast Imaging Center of Excellence (BICOE), recognized since 2007

e Patient satisfaction scores in the top decile for more than a decade

e Accredited by the Commission on Cancer, which measures our quality of care against
national standards

e Firstin the Midwest to offer 3D mammography

e Firstin the lllinois to offer contrast-enhanced mammography

The struggle to overcome a cancer diagnosis doesn’t stop at the end of a hospital stay. The Cancer
Survivorship Center is the first stand-alone, hospital-affiliated survivorship center in lllinois. It
provides free, comprehensive, holistic support for patients, family members, and caregivers
throughout their care.

¢ Providing assistance to achieve a healthier lifestyle

e Empowering and helping to navigate the healthcare system

e Supporting the relationship between the patient and the healthcare provider
e Offering care for long-term recovery of physical and mental well-being

e Giving tools needed to live life beyond cancer

The Survivorship Center offers virtual classes and programs designed to focus on the physical, social,
psychological, and spiritual needs of patients, family members, and caregivers. These programs are
for adults in or out of cancer treatment, and their caregivers ages eighteen and older.

The impact of the Advocate Lutheran General Hospital services is far reaching, and the hospital is a
critical organization supporting the communities within Northern lllinois. The residents have come
to rely on many of these programs designed to focus on improving access to care, addressing special
needs, and improving overall community health in the service area. Advocate Lutheran General
Hospital’s team members are aware of changes in health care and in the community and have been
developing new partnerships and services to support the health and wellbeing of all that they serve.
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in Illinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care"” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect
to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care must be
provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.

CHARITY CARE

Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care (charges)
Cost of Charity Care

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 39, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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2022 2023 2024
Net Patient Revenue $1,083,009,823 $1,203,340,285 $1,229,287,809
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $47,206,335 $35,079,965 $43,253,380
Cost of Charity Care $11,248,098 $8,447,759 $9,598,411
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SECTION XI -SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN
DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EO 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board
(HFSRB) must determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is in a mapped
floodplain (Special Flood Hazard Area) or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required to
ensure that before a permit, grant or a development is planned or promoted, the proposed project
meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including compliance with the National Flood
Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.

Applicant: _Advocate Lutheran General Hospital 1775 Dempster Street
(Name) (Address)
(City) Park Ridge (State)IL  (ZIP Code) 60068 (Telephone Number) 847-723-2210
4. Project Location CAC address - 1700 Luther Lane Park Ridge IL
(Address) (City) (State)
Cook Maine
(County) (Township) (Section)

5. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA
Map Service Center website (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home) by entering the address for the
property in the Search bar. If a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go to NFHL

h 1
Viewer tab above the map. You can print a copy of the floodplain map by selecting the

icon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon ¢ and place a pin on your site.
Print a FIRMETTE size image.

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial
photo. You will then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and
use the Make a FIRMette tool to create a pdf of the floodplain map.

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA:
Yes No X ?

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN?

Yes No X ?

If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact

the county or the local community building or planning department for assistance.
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

FIRM Panel Number: Effective Date:
Name of Official: Title:
Business/Agency: Address:
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
Signature: Date:

NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area
or a 500-year floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that
the property will or will not be flooded or be subject to local drainage problems.
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Advocate Health, Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Advocate Aurora Health, Inc. (the
Organization), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its
operations, changes in its net assets, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the

aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Disclosure Statements but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do
not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information
and the financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the
other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

St + MLLP

April 9, 2025

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands)

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents S 716,506 S 857,599
Assets limited as to use 179,057 179,288
Patient accounts receivable 2,009,794 1,906,747
Other current assets 1,085,336 1,093,683

Total current assets 3,990,693 4,037,317

Noncurrent assets

Assets limited as to use 21,553,860 11,863,519
Property and equipment, net 6,079,747 5,919,233
Operating lease right-of-use assets 280,150 305,114
Other noncurrent assets 562,080 872,637
Total other assets 28,475,837 18,960,503
Total assets S 32,466,530 $ 22,997,820
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Long-term debt, current portion S 343,589 S 527,479
Operating lease liabilities, current portion 67,961 69,062
Accrued salaries and employee benefits 1,400,664 1,245,445
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 1,536,611 1,401,812
Third-party payors payables 423,230 404,496
Total current liabilities 3,772,055 3,648,294

Noncurrent liabilities

Long-term debt, less current portion 3,061,905 2,939,221
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 249,594 273,134
Obligations under swap agreements 19,566 31,681
Due to related party - investment pool 7,945,909 -
Other noncurrent liabilities 1,869,124 1,846,436

Total noncurrent liabilities 13,146,098 5,090,472

Total liabilities 16,918,153 8,738,766

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Controlling interest 15,088,922 13,823,021
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 203,353 191,582
Total net assets without donor restrictions 15,292,275 14,014,603

With donor restrictions 256,102 244,451
Total net assets 15,548,377 14,259,054

Total liabilities and net assets S 32,466,530 S 22,997,820

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

(in thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Revenue
Patient service revenue S 14,127,471 S 12,987,089
Capitation revenue 1,185,242 1,206,918
Other revenue 1,530,804 1,559,047
Total revenue 16,843,517 15,753,054

Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits 9,538,896 8,975,567
Supplies and drugs 3,419,075 3,063,799
Purchased services and other 2,316,500 2,359,535
Contracted medical services 502,220 542,880
Depreciation and amortization 558,606 614,084
Interest 121,293 125,568
Total expenses 16,456,590 15,681,433
Operating income 386,927 71,621

Nonoperating income

Investment income, net 1,322,601 819,180
Other nonoperating loss, net (432,807) (57,951)
Total nonoperating income, net 889,794 761,229

Revenue in excess of expenses 1,276,721 832,850
Less income attributable to noncontrolling interests (68,801) (58,518)
Revenue in excess of expenses - attributable to controlling interest S 1,207,920 S 774,332
(Continued)



ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

(in thousands)

Net assets without donor restrictions, controlling interest
Revenue in excess of expenses - attributable to controlling interest
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension costs
Net assets released from restrictions for purchase of property and equipment
Other, net

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions, controlling interest

Net assets without donor restrictions, noncontrolling interests
Revenues in excess of expenses
Distributions to noncontrolling interests

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions, noncontrolling interests

Net assets with donor restrictions
Contributions
Investment income, net
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for purchase of property and equipment
Other, net
Increase in net assets with donor restrictions

Increase in net assets

Net assets at beginning of period
Net assets at end of period

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
S 1,207,920 S 774,332
56,068 9,311

4,830 7,319
(2,917) (5,521)

1,265,901 785,441

68,801 58,518
(57,030) (38,727)

11,771 19,791

22,962 17,861

8,032 8,737
(13,183) (13,060)
(4,830) (7,319)

(1,330) 56

11,651 6,275

1,289,323 811,507
14,259,054 13,447,547
15,548,377 $ 14,259,054




ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets S 1,289,323 §$ 811,507
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 547,503 603,847
Noncash lease expense 65,417 59,697
Gain on sale of disposal group (88,163) —
Pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost (56,068) (9,311)
Distribution to noncontrolling interests 54,483 37,539
Distribution from unconsolidated entities 8,727 11,265
Other 14,324 588
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Trading securities, net (9,690,474) (469,458)
Patient accounts receivable (103,047) (110,248)
Third-party payors receivables and payables, net 82,492 (30,238)
Due to related party 7,881,787 (6,766)
Other assets and liabilities, net 469,125 213,526
Net cash provided by operating activities 475,429 1,111,948
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures (681,508) (521,414)
Cash received from sale of disposal group 184,298 —
Investments in unconsolidated entities, net (11,009) (18,504)
Purchases of investments designated as non-trading (46,766) (51,331)
Sales of investments designated as non-trading 46,896 51,239
Other 87 (105)
Net cash used in investing activities (508,002) (540,115)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of long-term debt, net (124,403) (51,000)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 70,006 —
Distribution to noncontrolling interests (54,483) (37,539)
Proceeds from restricted contributions and income on investments 360 1,407
Net cash used in financing activities (108,520) (87,132)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (141,093) 484,701
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 857,599 372,898
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period S 716,506 S 857,599
Supplemental disclosures of noncash information
Operating lease right-of-use assets in exchange for new operating lease liabilities S 44,510 S 59,500

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

(dollars in thousands)

ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Description of Business

Advocate Aurora Health, Inc., a Delaware nonprofit nonstock corporation (the “Parent Corporation”),
owns and operates primarily not-for-profit healthcare facilities in lllinois and Wisconsin. The Parent
Corporation is the sole corporate member of Advocate Health Care Network, an lllinois not-for-profit
corporation (“Advocate”) and Aurora Health Care, Inc., a Wisconsin nonstock not-for-profit corporation
(“Aurora”). The Parent Corporation, Advocate, Aurora and their controlled subsidiaries are collectively
referred to herein as the “System.” The System was formed in furtherance of the parties’ common and
unifying charitable health care mission to promote and improve the quality and expand the scope and
accessibility of affordable health care and health care-related services for the communities they serve.

The System and Atrium Health, Inc., a North Carolina not-for-profit corporation, ("AHI") entered into a
joint operating agreement pursuant to which they created Advocate Health, Inc. ("Advocate Health"), a
Delaware nonprofit nonstock corporation, to manage and oversee an integrated health care delivery
and academic system which focuses on meeting patients’ needs by redefining how, when and where
care is delivered. The System and AHI are the two corporate members of Advocate Health. The System
maintains its separate legal existence and no sale, transfer or other conveyance of assets or assumption
of debt and liabilities occurred in connection with the formation of Advocate Health.

The System provides a continuum of care through its 25 acute care hospitals, an integrated children’s
hospital, a psychiatric hospital, primary and specialty physician services, outpatient centers, physician
office buildings, pharmacies, rehabilitation and home health and hospice care in northern lllinois and
eastern Wisconsin.

Principles of Consolidation

Included in the System’s consolidated financial statements are all of its wholly owned or controlled
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

On December 15, 2023, the System approved the sale of SH Corporate Company, Inc. and SHF
Acquisition Company, Inc. (collectively "Senior Helpers") and MobileHelp Group Holdings, LLC
(“MobileHelp”) as they no longer fit the strategic priorities of Advocate Health. As of December 31,
2023, the related disposal group for Senior Helpers and MobileHelp was reclassified to held for sale. A
majority of the disposal group consisted of goodwill and intangible assets, $192,323 and $161,497,
respectively. The System recorded an impairment of $150,000 related to the expected sale that is
included in purchased services and other expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2023. The sales of Senior
Helpers and MobileHelp closed in 2024, which resulted in a gain, net of transaction costs, of $88,163
recorded in purchased services and other expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2024.



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates,
assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and amounts
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Although estimates are considered to be fairly stated at the time made, actual results could
differ materially from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

The System considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased, other than those included in the investment portfolio, to be cash equivalents.

Investments

The System has designated substantially all its investments as trading. Investments in debt and equity
securities with readily determinable fair values are measured at fair value using quoted market prices
or otherwise observable inputs. Investments in private equity limited partnerships and derivative
products (hedge funds) are reported at fair value using net asset value as a practical expedient.
Commingled funds are carried at fair value based on other observable inputs. Investment income or
loss (including realized gains and losses, interest, dividends and unrealized gains and losses) is included
in the nonoperating section of the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets, unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law or is related to assets designated for
self-insurance programs. Investment income on self-insurance trust funds is reported in other revenue
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. Investment
income or loss that is restricted by donor or law is reported as a change in net assets with donor
restrictions.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use consist of investments set aside by the System for future capital improvements
and certain medical education and other health care programs. The System retains control of these
investments and may, at its discretion, subsequently use them for other purposes. Additionally, assets
limited as to use include investments held by trustees or in trust under debt agreements, self-insurance
trusts, retirement plan assets, assets held in reinsurance trust accounts and donor-restricted funds.

Patient Service Revenue and Accounts Receivable

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the System
expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients,
third-party payors (including managed care payors and government programs and excludes revenues
for services provided to patients under capitated arrangements) and others and include variable
consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews and
investigations.

Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are identified

based on the nature of the services provided. Revenue associated with performance obligations
satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges incurred in relation to total expected (or
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actual) charges. Performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients receiving inpatient acute
care services. The System measures the performance obligation from admission into the hospital to the
point when there are no further services required for the patient, which is generally the time of
discharge. For outpatient services, the performance obligation is satisfied as the patient simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided as the services are performed. Management believes this
method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of services over the term of performance
obligations based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligations.

As the System's performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration of less than one year, the
System has applied the optional exemption provided in the guidance and, therefore, is not required to
disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied performance obligations are primarily related to inpatient acute care services at the end of
the reporting period. The performance obligations for these contracts are generally completed when
the patients are discharged, which typically occurs within days or weeks of the end of the reporting
period.

The System uses a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a collective
group rather than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The portfolios consist of major
payor classes for inpatient revenue and major payor classes and types of services provided for
outpatient revenue. Based on the historical collection trends and other analyses, the System believes
revenue recognized by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the revenue that would have been
recognized if an individual contract approach were used.

The System determines the transaction price, which involves significant estimates and judgment, based
on standard charges for goods and services provided, reduced by explicit and implicit price concessions,
including contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, discounts provided to uninsured and
underinsured patients in accordance with policy and/or implicit price concessions based on the
historical collection experience of patient accounts. The System determines the transaction price
associated with services provided to patients who have third-party payor coverage based on
reimbursement terms per contractual agreements, discount policies and historical experience. For
uninsured patients who do not qualify for charity care, the System determines the transaction price
associated with services based on charges reduced by implicit price concessions. Implicit price
concessions included in the estimate of the transaction price are based on historical collection
experience for applicable patient portfolios. Patients who meet the System's criteria for charity care are
provided care without charge; such amounts are not reported as revenue. Subsequent changes to the
estimate of the transaction price are generally recorded as adjustments to patient service revenue in
the period of the change.

The System does not incur significant incremental costs in obtaining contracts with patients. Any costs
incurred are expensed in the period of occurrence, as the amortization period of any asset that the
System would have recognized is one year or less in duration.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews
or investigations are considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the
estimated transaction price for providing patient care using the most likely outcome method. These
settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreements with the payor,
correspondence from the payor and historical settlement activity, including an assessment to ensure it
is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated
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settlements are adjusted in future periods as new information becomes available or as years are settled
or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews and investigations. As a result, there is a possibility that
recorded estimates will change by a material amount.

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, changes in the System’s estimates of implicit price
concessions, discounts and contractual adjustments or other changes to expected payments for
performance obligations related to prior years were not significant.

In the normal course of business, the System does receive payments in advance for certain services
provided and would consider these amounts to represent contract liabilities. The contract liabilities
received in the normal course of business at December 31, 2024 and 2023 were not material.

The System does not adjust the promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payors
for the effects of a significant financing component, due to the expectation that the period between
the time the service is provided to a patient and the time that the patient or a third-party payor pays
for that service will be one year or less.

The System has entered into payment arrangements with patients that allow for payments over a term
in excess of one year. The System has evaluated historical collections in excess of one year and current
market interest rates to determine whether a significant financing component exists that would require
an adjustment to the promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payors. The
System has determined that the impact of implicit financing arrangements for payment agreements in
excess of one year is insignificant to the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets.

Inventories

Inventories, consisting primarily of medical supplies, pharmaceuticals and durable medical equipment,
are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventories are included in other current assets in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Reinsurance Receivables

Reinsurance receivables are recognized in a manner consistent with the liabilities relating to the
underlying reinsured contracts. Reinsurance receivables are included in other current assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Asset Impairment

The System considers whether indicators of impairment are present and, if indicators are present,
performs the necessary tests to determine if the carrying value of an asset is recoverable. Impairment
write-downs are recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets as a component of operating expense at the time the impairment is identified. As described
in Note 2. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS, for the year ended December 31, 2023, an impairment of $150,000
related to the disposal group classified as held for sale was included in purchased services and other
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and change in net assets. There
were no material impairment charges recorded for the year ended December 31, 2024.

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are reported at cost or, if donated, at fair value at the date of the gift. Costs of
computer software developed or obtained for internal use, including external and internal direct costs
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of materials and labor directly associated with internal-use software development projects, are
capitalized during the application development stage and included in property and equipment. Internal
labor and interest expense incurred during the period of construction of significant capital projects are
capitalized as a component of the costs of the asset.

Property and equipment capitalized under direct financing leases are recorded at the present value of
future lease payments, adding initial direct costs and prepaid lease payments, reduced by any lease
incentives. Property and equipment capitalized under direct financing leases are amortized using the
straight-line method over the related lease term. Amortization of property and equipment under
financing leases is included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net assets in depreciation and amortization expense.

Property and equipment assets are depreciated on the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Useful Life in
Years
Land improvements 2-25
Buildings and other improvements 2-80
Fixed and movable equipment 2-25

Operating Lease Right-of-use Assets

The System records an operating lease right-of-use asset (an asset that represents the System's right to
use the leased asset for the lease term) for leases that do not meet the criteria as a sales-type lease or
a direct financing lease.

The System records operating lease right-of-use assets at the present value of future lease payments,
adding initial direct costs and prepaid lease payments, reduced by any lease incentives. Operating lease
right-of-use assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the related lease term.
Amortization of operating lease right-of-use assets is included in purchased services and other expense
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net

Goodwill of $36,543 and $44,096 and intangible assets of $13,012 and $12,842 are included in other
noncurrent assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively. The System has elected to amortize goodwill using the straight-line method over a
10-year period. Intangible assets with expected useful lives are amortized over that period.
Amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets. Amortization expense was $8,636 and $55,591 for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Investments in Unconsolidated Entities

Investments in unconsolidated entities are included in other noncurrent assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets and are accounted for using the equity method or as an equity security
without a readily determinable fair value. The System applies the equity method of accounting for
investments in unconsolidated entities when its ownership or membership interest is 50% or less and
the System has the ability to exercise significant influence over the operating and financial policies of
the investee. The income (loss) on health-related unconsolidated entities is included in other revenue
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in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. The income
(loss) on non-health-related unconsolidated entities is included in other nonoperating loss, net in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. All other
unconsolidated entities are accounted for as an equity security without a readily determinable fair
value. These unconsolidated entities are initially recorded at cost, tested for impairment at least
annually and adjusted as market transactions occur that would indicate a fair value adjustment is
needed. The income (loss) on these unconsolidated entities is included in other nonoperating loss, net
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The System enters into transactions to manage its interest rate, credit and market risks. Derivative
financial instruments, including exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts and
interest rate swaps, are recorded as either assets or liabilities at fair value. Subsequent changes in a
derivative's fair value are recognized in other nonoperating loss, net in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Bond Issuance Costs, Discounts and Premiums

Bond issuance costs, discounts and premiums are amortized over the term of the bonds using the
effective interest method and are included in long-term debt, less current portion in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

General and Professional Liability Risks

The provision for self-insured general and professional liability claims includes estimates of the ultimate
costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. The System measures the cost of
its unfunded obligations under such programs based upon actuarial calculations and records a liability
on a discounted basis.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are those assets whose use by the System has been limited by donors
to a specific time period or purpose or consist of gifts with corpus values that have been restricted by
donors to be maintained in perpetuity. Net assets with donor restrictions are used in accordance with
the donor's wishes primarily to purchase property and equipment, to fund medical education or to
fund health programs.

Assets released from restrictions to fund purchases of property and equipment are reported as
increases to net assets without donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets. Those assets released from restriction for operating purposes are
reported in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as
other revenue. When restricted, earnings are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions until
amounts are expended in accordance with the donor's specifications.

Capitation Revenue
The System has agreements with various managed care organizations under which the System provides
or arranges for medical care to members of the organizations in return for a monthly payment per

member. Revenue is earned each month as a result of the System agreeing to provide or arrange for
their medical care.
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Other Revenue

Other revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the System expects
to be entitled in exchange for providing goods and services. The amounts recognized reflect
consideration due from customers, third-party payors and others. Primary categories of other revenue
include retail pharmacy revenue, clinical integration revenue, managed care risk/quality shared savings
revenue and other miscellaneous revenue.

Other Nonoperating Loss, Net

Revenues and expenses related to the delivery of health care services are reported in operations.
Income and losses that arise from transactions that are peripheral or incidental to the System's main
purpose are included in other nonoperating loss, net. Other nonoperating loss, net includes an offset to
investment income representing AHI's share of the change in fair value of the investment pool (see
Note 6. INVESTMENTS), fund-raising expenses, income taxes, unrealized changes in fair value of swaps
and the net non-service components of the periodic benefit expense of the System's pension plans.

Revenue in Excess of Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

The accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets includes the
revenue in excess of expenses as the performance indicator. Changes in net assets without donor
restrictions, which are excluded from revenue in excess of expenses, primarily include contributions of
long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions, which by donor restriction were to be
used for the purposes of acquiring such assets), pension-related changes other than net periodic
pension costs and distributions to noncontrolling interests.

Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

In March 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
("ASU") 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate
Reform on Financial Reporting. This guidance provides optional expedients and exceptions for applying
current GAAP to contracts, hedging relationships and other transactions affected by the transition from
the use of London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) to an alternative reference rate. In January 2021,
the FASB issued ASU 2021-01, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Scope, which adds implementation
guidance to ASU 2020-04 to clarify certain optional expedients in Topic 848. In December 2022, the
FASB issued ASU 2022-06, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Deferral of the Sunset Date of Topic 848,
which deferred the sunset date of Topic 848 to December 31, 2024. The System adopted these
standards for the year ended December 31, 2024. The guidance did not have a material impact on the
System's accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications in the Consolidated Financial Statements

Certain reclassifications were made to the 2023 consolidated financial statements to conform to the
classifications used in 2024. There was no impact on previously reported 2023 net assets or revenues
in excess of expenses.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT

The System provides health care services without charge or at discounted rates to patients who meet
the criteria of its financial assistance policies. Charity care services are not reported as patient service
revenue, because payment is not anticipated while the related costs to provide the health care are
included in operating expenses. Qualifying patients can receive up to 100% discounts from charges and
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5.

extended payment plans. The System’s cost of providing charity care was approximately $160,000 and
$110,000 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, as determined using total
cost to charge ratios.

In addition to the provision of charity care, the System provides significant financial support to its
communities to sustain and improve health care services.

These activities include:

e The unreimbursed cost of providing care to patients covered by the Medicare and Medicaid
programs.

¢ The cost of providing services that are not self-sustaining, for which patient service revenues are
less than the costs required to provide the services. Such services benefit uninsured and low-
income patients, as well as the broader community, but are not expected to be financially self-
supporting.

e Other community benefits, which include the unreimbursed costs of community benefits
programs and services for the general community, not solely for those demonstrating financial
need, including the unreimbursed cost of medical education, health education, immunizations
for children, support groups, health screenings and fairs.

REVENUE AND RECEIVABLES
Patient service revenue

The composition of patient service revenue by payor is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023
Managed care S 7,525,366 53% S 6,738,790 52 %
Medicare 4,513,293 32% 4,197,545 32%
Medicaid 1,720,313 12 % 1,668,531 13 %
Self-pay and other 368,499 3% 382,223 3%
S 14,127,471 100% $ 12,987,089 100 %

Deductibles, copayments and coinsurance under third-party payment programs which are the patient's
responsibility are included within the primary payor category in the table above.

Revenue disaggregated by state and service line is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Illinois $ 6,459,073 ¢ 5,920,220
Wisconsin 7,668,398 7,066,869
Total patient service revenue S 14,127,471 S 12,987,089
Hospital $ 10,545,547 ¢ 9,772,918
Clinic 3,240,291 2,914,123
Other 341,633 300,048
Total patient service revenue S 14,127,471 S 12,987,089

Currently, the State of Illlinois utilizes supplemental reimbursement programs to increase
reimbursement to providers to offset a portion of the cost of providing care to Medicaid and indigent
patients. These programs are designed with input from the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
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and are funded with a combination of state and federal resources, including assessments levied on the
providers. Under these supplemental programs, the System recognizes revenue and related expenses
in the period in which amounts are estimable and collection is reasonably assured. Reimbursement and
the assessment under these programs are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations and changes in net assets as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
Classification December 31,2024 December 31, 2023
Reimbursement Patient service revenue S 381,290 $ 410,119
Assessment Purchased services and other 217,317 216,793

The State of Wisconsin assesses a fee or tax on gross patient service revenue. The revenues from this
assessment are used to increase payments made to hospitals for services provided to Medicaid and
other medically indigent patients. The System’s patient service revenue reflects this increase in
payment for services to Medicaid and other medically indigent patients and hospital tax assessment
expense reflects the fees assessed by the State. Reimbursement and the assessment under these
programs are reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
Classification December 31,2024 December 31, 2023
Reimbursement Patient service revenue S 130,586 $ 120,033
Assessment Purchased services and other 101,736 100,668

There are no assurances regarding future reimbursement related to these Medicaid supplemental
programs as they are subject to annual legislative and regulatory approvals that could be materially
modified in the future.

Patient accounts receivable

The composition of patient accounts receivable is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Managed care S 907,753 45% S 877,778 46 %
Medicare 537,627 27 % 475,482 25 %
Medicaid 165,931 8% 164,872 9%
Self-pay and other 398,483 20% 388,615 20%
S 2,009,794 100% S 1,906,747 100 %

The self-pay patient accounts receivable above includes amounts due from patients for co-insurance,
deductibles, installment payment plans and amounts due from patients without insurance.

INVESTMENTS

The System has a pooled investment fund ("pool") where all of the pool investments are owned by a
subsidiary of the System. Each participant in the pool is an affiliate of the subsidiary. Per the
Investment Agreement, each participant in the pool has no ownership interest in the pool's investment
assets. The participant receives a commensurate value in units of the pool, which is adjusted each
month to the current market value. If redemption is sought under the terms of the agreement, the
participant is only entitled to receive the fair market value of its units in cash. In April 2024, AHI
became a participant in the pool. At December 31, 2024, AHI's interest in the pool is $7,945,909, which
is included in the consolidated balance sheets as due to related party- investment pool. The change in
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fair value of the entire investment pool for the year ended December 31, 2024 is included in
investment income, net in the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets. The
change in fair value attributable to AHI's interest in the investment pool for the same period of
$411,408 is recorded as an offset in other nonoperating loss, net.

The pool invests in a diversified portfolio of investments, including alternative investments, such as real
asset funds, equity funds, hedge funds and private equity limited partnerships, whose fair value was
$10,873,558 and $6,309,366 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Collectively, these funds
have liquidity terms ranging from daily to annual with notice periods typically ranging from 1 to 90
days. Certain of these investments have redemption restrictions that may restrict redemption for up to
15 years. However, the potential for the System to sell its interest in these funds in a secondary market
prior to the end of the fund term does exist for prices at or other than the carrying value.

At December 31, 2024, the System had additional commitments to fund alternative investments,
including recallable distributions of $2,771,805 over the next seven years.

In the normal course of operations and within established investment policy guidelines, the System
may enter into various exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts for trading
purposes, including futures, options and forward contracts. These instruments are used primarily to
maintain the System’s strategic asset allocation and hedge security price movements. These
instruments require the System to deposit cash or securities collateral with the broker or custodian.
Collateral provided was $5,933 and $17,089 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The gross
notional value of the derivatives outstanding was $149,464 and $220,940 at December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

By using derivative financial instruments, the System exposes itself to credit and market risk. Credit risk
is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair
value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the System, which creates credit risk
for the System. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the System owes the
counterparty and, therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The System minimizes the credit risk in
derivative instruments by entering into transactions that may require the counterparty to post
collateral for the benefit of the System based on the credit rating of the counterparty and the fair value
of the derivative contract. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that
results from a change in the underlying reference security. The market risk associated with market
changes is managed by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of
market risk that may be undertaken.

Receivables and payables for investment trades not settled are presented within other current assets
and accounts payable and other accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
Unsettled sales resulted in receivables due from brokers of $6,119 and $61,462 at December 31, 2024
and 2023, respectively. Unsettled purchases resulted in payables due to brokers of $28,198 and
$102,517 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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Investment returns for assets limited as to use and cash and cash equivalents are composed of the
following:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Interest income and dividends S 300,541 $ 162,493
Income from alternative investments 458,052 260,904
Net realized gains (losses) 187,913 (22,992)
Net unrealized gains 427,528 474,143
Total S 1,374,034 S 874,548

Investment returns are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Other revenue S 43,401 S 46,631
Investment income, net 1,322,601 819,180
Net assets with donor restrictions 8,032 8,737
Total $ 1,374,034 $ 874,548

The assets limited as to use presented within the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are
comprised of the following:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Internally designated for capital and other S 20,545,013 S 10,822,009
Held for self-insurance 554,835 687,997
Donor restricted 111,146 106,325
Funds held under retirement plans 502,965 412,776
Investments under securities lending program 18,958 13,700
Total assets limited as to use 21,732,917 12,042,807
Assets limited as to use, current 179,057 179,288
Assets limited as to use, noncurrent S 21,553,860 S 11,863,519

As part of the management of the investment portfolio, the System has entered into an arrangement
whereby securities owned by the System are loaned primarily to brokers and investment banks. The
loans are arranged through a bank. Borrowers are required to post collateral for securities borrowed
equal to no less than 102% of the value of the security on a daily basis, at a minimum. The bank is
responsible for reviewing the creditworthiness of the borrowers. The System has also entered into an
arrangement whereby the bank is responsible for the risk of borrower bankruptcy and default. At
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the System loaned $18,958 and $13,700, respectively, in securities and
accepted collateral for these loans in the amount $19,964 and $14,557, respectively, which represents
cash and governmental securities, and are included in other current liabilities and other current assets
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

FAIR VALUE

The System accounts for certain assets and liabilities at fair value and categorizes assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the accompanying consolidated financial statements based upon whether the
inputs used to determine their fair values are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs
that are based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity.
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Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about pricing the
asset or liability, based on the best information available under the circumstances.

The fair value of all assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value are classified based on the
lowest level of significant inputs. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value are disclosed and
classified in one of the three categories. Category inputs are defined as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities on the reporting
date.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, a
Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability for which there is little or no market
data.

The following section describes the valuation methodologies used by the System to measure financial
assets and liabilities at fair value. In general, where applicable, the System uses quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities to determine fair value. This pricing methodology applies to
Level 1 investments, such as domestic and international equities, exchange-traded funds and agency
securities.

If quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities are not available to determine the
fair value, then quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities or inputs other than quoted prices that
are observable either directly or indirectly are used. These investments are included in Level 2 and
consist primarily of corporate notes and bonds, foreign government bonds, mortgage-backed
securities, fixed-income securities, including fixed-income government obligations, commercial paper
and certain agency, United States and international equities, which are not traded on an active
exchange. The fair value for the obligations under swap agreements included in Level 2 is estimated
using industry-standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and discount the
future amounts to a present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest rate curves.
The fair values of the obligation under swap agreements include adjustments related to the System’s
credit risk.

Investments owned by the System are exposed to various kinds and levels of risk. Equity securities and
equity funds expose the System to market risk, performance risk and liquidity risk for both domestic
and international investments. Market risk is the risk associated with major movements of the equity
markets. Performance risk is the risk associated with a company’s operating performance. Fixed-
income securities and fixed-income mutual funds expose the System to interest rate risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. As interest rates change, the value of many fixed-income securities is affected, including
those with fixed interest rates. Credit risk is the risk that the obligor of the security will not fulfill its
obligations. Liquidity risk is affected by the willingness of market participants to buy and sell particular
securities. Liquidity risk tends to be higher for equities related to small capitalization companies and
certain alternative investments. Due to the volatility in the capital markets, there is a reasonable
possibility of subsequent changes in fair value, resulting in additional gains and losses in the near term.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, other current assets

and accrued liabilities are reasonable estimates of their fair values, due to the short-term nature of
these financial instruments.
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The fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are as
follows:

Quoted Prices Other
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2024 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets
Cash and short-term investments S 257,884 $ 234,216 $ 23,668 S —
Corporate bonds and other debt securities 1,498,905 — 1,498,905 —
United States government bonds 1,266,608 — 1,266,608 —
Bond and other debt security funds 125,104 117,399 7,705 —
Non-government fixed-income obligations 63,140 - 63,140 -
Equity securities 1,846,361 1,831,700 14,661 —
Equity funds 5,274,833 2,362,328 2,912,505 -
Funds held under retirement plans 502,965 101,981 400,984 —

10,835,800 $ 4,647,624 $ 6,188,176 $ —
Investments at net asset value
Alternative investments 10,897,117
Total investments S 21,732,917
Collateral proceeds received under securities lending
program S 19,964 S 19,964
Liabilities
Obligations under swap agreements S (19,566) S (19,566)
Liabilities under retirement and benefit plans S (502,965) S (502,965)
Obligations to return capital under securities lending
program S (19,964) S (19,964)
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Quoted Prices Other

in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2023 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets
Investments
Cash and short-term investments S 255,203 $ 240,517 $ 14,686 $ —
Corporate bonds and other debt securities 719,092 — 719,092 —
United States government bonds 652,278 — 652,278 —
Bond and other debt security funds * 116,796 109,367 7,429 —
Non-government fixed-income obligations 31,706 — 31,706 —
Equity securities 819,568 804,152 15,416 —
Equity funds * 924,961 140,723 784,238 -
Funds held under retirement plans 412,776 85,091 327,685 —

3,932,380 $ 1,379,850 $ 2,552,530 $ —
Investments at net asset value
Alternative investments 8,110,427
Total investments S 12,042,807
Collateral proceeds received under securities lending
program S 14,557 S 14,557
Liabilities
Obligations under swap agreements S (31,681) S (31,681)
Liabilities under retirement and benefit plans S (412,776) S (412,776)
Obligations to return capital under securities lending
program S (14,557) S (14,557)

*Leveling was updated from Level 2 to investments at net asset value based on further analysis of the investments.

8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
The components of property and equipment, net are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Land and improvements S 509,690 $ 493,107
Buildings and other improvements 8,662,172 8,467,723
Fixed and movable equipment 3,101,227 2,877,402
Construction-in-progress 575,090 391,764

12,848,179 12,229,996
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (6,768,432) (6,310,763)
Property and equipment, net S 6,079,747 S 5,919,233

During 2024, the System wrote off fully depreciated property and equipment totaling $74,717.

Property and equipment, net include assets recorded as finance leases and under other financing
arrangements. See additional disclosure in Note 9. LEASES.

Depreciation expense was $549,970 and $558,493 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.
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LEASES

The System leases office and clinical space, land and equipment. Leases with an initial term of 12
months or less are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheets. The System combines lease and
non-lease components, except for medical equipment leases.

The depreciable lives of assets are limited by the expected lease terms. Most leases include options to
renew. The majority of leases do not provide an implicit rate; therefore, the System has elected to use
its incremental borrowing rate, which is the interest rate the System would borrow on a collateralized
basis over a similar term, as the discount rate.

Operating and finance leases are classified as follows within the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets:

Leases Classification December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Assets
Operating Operating lease right-of-use assets S 280,150 S 305,114
Finance Property and equipment, net 187,955 207,232
Total lease assets S 468,105 S 512,346
Liabilities
Current
Operating Operating lease liabilities, current portion S 67,961 S 69,062
Finance Long-term debt, current portion 21,188 20,330
Noncurrent
Operating Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 249,594 273,134
Finance Long-term debt, less current portion 216,011 234,016
Total lease liabilities S 554,754 $ 596,542

Finance lease assets are recorded net of accumulated amortization of $138,538 and $114,889 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Lease costs are classified as follows within the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assets:

Lease cost Classification December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Operating lease cost Purchased services and other S 72,896 S 79,919
Short term and variable lease cost  Purchased services and other 54,747 59,573

Finance lease cost

Amortization of lease assets Depreciation and amortization 23,649 24,677
Interest on lease liabilities Interest 17,911 18,824
Sublease income Other revenue (188) (372)
Net lease cost S 169,015 S 182,621
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10.

Lease terms, discount rates and other supplemental information are as follows:
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Weighted average remaining lease term (in years)

Operating 5.8 6.0
Finance 7.9 8.7

Weighted average discount rate
Operating 2.78 % 2.65 %
Finance 8.25 % 8.22 %

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities

Operating cash flows from operating leases S 76,908 S 91,424
Operating cash flows from finance leases 17,911 18,824
Financing cash flows from finance leases 21,671 19,676

Future maturities of lease liabilities at December 31, 2024 are as follows:

Operating Leases Finance Leases Total
2025 $ 75,603 S 36,483 S 112,086
2026 70,179 39,289 109,468
2027 53,196 38,606 91,802
2028 43,622 45,543 89,165
2029 31,106 45,580 76,686
Thereafter 72,032 123,558 195,590
Future minimum lease payments 345,738 329,059 674,797
Less remaining imputed interest 28,183 91,860 120,043
Total $ 317,555 S 237,199 S 554,754

INTEREST IN MASONIC FAMILY HEALTH FOUNDATION

The System has an interest in the net assets of the Masonic Family Health Foundation ("MFHF"), an
independent organization, under the terms of an asset purchase agreement (the "Agreement").
Substantially all of MFHF’s net assets are designated to support the operations and/or capital needs of
one of the System’s medical facilities. Additionally, 90% of MFHF’s investment yield, net of expenses,
on substantially all of MFHF’s investments is designated for the support of one of the System’s medical
facilities. MFHF must pay the System, annually, 90% of the investment yield or an agreed-upon
percentage of the beginning of the year net assets.

The interest in the net assets of MFHF amounted to $115,656 and $108,041 at December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively, and is presented within other noncurrent assets in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. The System’s interest in the investment income (loss) is reflected in the investment
income, net line in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets
and amounted to $11,762 and $17,184 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
Cash distributions of $3,445 and $4,586 were received by the System from MFHF under terms of the
Agreement during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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11.

The summarized financial position and results of operations for MFHF accounted for under the equity

method as of and for the periods ended is outlined below:

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Total revenue

Revenue in excess of expenses

LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the following:

Revenue bonds and revenue refunding bonds

Series 2008A (weighted average rate of 4.32% during 2024 and 2023), principal payable in
varying annual installments through November 2030; interest based on prevailing market
conditions at time of remarketing

Series 2008C (weighted average rate of 3.40% and 3.39% during 2024 and 2023,
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through November 2038;
interest based on prevailing market conditions at time of remarketing

Series 2011B (weighted average rate of 3.67% and 3.66% during 2024 and 2023,
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through April 2051, subject
to a put provision that provides for a cumulative seven-month notice and remarketing
period; interest tied to a market index plus a spread

Series 2011C (weighted average rate of 4.70% and 4.95% during 2024 and 2023,
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through April 2049, subject
to a put provision on September 4, 2029; interest tied to a market index plus a spread

Series 2011D (weighted average rate of 4.70% and 4.95% during 2024 and 2023,
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through April 2049, subject
to a put provision on September 4, 2029; interest tied to a market index plus a spread

Series 2013A, 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through June 2024

Series 2014, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through
August 2038

Series 2015, 4.13%, principal payable in varying annual installments through May 2045

Series 2015B, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through
May 2044

Series 2018A, 4.00% to 5.00%, principal payable in varying annual installments through
August 2044

Series 2018B (weighted average rate of 5.00% during 2024 and 2023), principal payable in
varying annual installments through August 2054; interest based on prevailing market
conditions at time of remarketing

Series 2018C (weighted average rate of 4.57% and 4.30% during 2024 and 2023,
respectively), principal payable in varying annual installments through August 2054,
interest tied to a market index plus a spread or prevailing market conditions at
remarketing

Taxable bonds

Taxable Bond Series 2018, 3.83% to 4.27%, principal payable in varying annual
installments through August 2048

Taxable Bond Series 2019, 3.39%, principal payable in October 2049

Taxable Bond Series 2020A, 2.21% to 3.01%, principal payable in varying annual
installments through June 2050
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December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
$ 120,536 $ 112,048
4,211 3,531
116,325 108,517
$ 13,180 ¢ 18,300
7,808 13,606

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
69,020 86,385

272,065 272,065

69,660 69,660

49,755 49,755

49,755 49,755

— 7,025

67,330 74,695

30,620 30,620

13,465 13,665

97,500 97,500

176,730 181,160

182,255 186,845

1,078,155 1,119,130

799,510 799,510

443,180 443,180

700,000 700,000

1,942,690 1,942,690



December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Finance lease obligations and financing arrangements 240,773 258,553
Commercial paper, weighted average interest rate of 5.13% and 5.14% during 2024 and
2023, respectively 120,000 50,000
Taxable Term Loan, (weighted average rate of 2.68% during 2024 and 2023), principal
payable in varying annual installments through September 2024 — 69,895
3,381,618 3,440,268
Net unamortized premiums and unamortized bond issuance costs 23,876 26,432
3,405,494 3,466,700
Less amounts classified as current
Long-term debt, current portion (343,589) (527,479)
(343,589) (527,479)
$ 3,061,905 $ 2,939,221

Maturities of long-term debt, finance leases, and sinking fund requirements, assuming remarketing of
the variable rate demand revenue refunding bonds, for the five years ending December 31, 2029, are as
follows:

2025 S 46,984
2026 43,152
2027 44,680
2028 445,285
2029 64,667

The System's outstanding bonds are secured by obligations issued under the Second Amended and
Restated Master Trust Indenture dated as of August 1, 2018, as the same may be amended from time
to time, between Advocate Aurora Health, Inc., the other affiliates identified therein as the Members of
the Obligated Group and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as master trustee ("the
System Master Indenture"). Under the terms of the bond indentures and other arrangements, various
amounts are to be on deposit with trustees, and certain specified payments are required for bond
redemption and interest payments. The System Master Indenture and other debt agreements,
including bank agreements, also place restrictions on the System and require the System to maintain
certain financial ratios.

The System's unsecured variable rate revenue bonds, Series 2011B of $69,660 and Series 2018B-4 of
$49,420, while subject to a long-term amortization period, may be put to the System at the option of
the bondholders in connection with certain remarketing dates. To the extent that bondholders may,
under the terms of the debt, put their bonds within 12 months after December 31, 2024, the principal
amount of such bonds is included in long-term debt, current portion in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. Management believes the likelihood of a material amount of bonds being put to the
System is remote. However, to address this possibility, the System has taken steps to provide various
sources of liquidity, including assessing alternate sources of financing, including lines of credit and/or
net assets without donor restrictions as a source of self-liquidity.

The System has standby bond purchase agreements with banks to provide liquidity support for the
Series 2008C Bonds. In the event of a failed remarketing of a Series 2008C Bond upon its tender by an
existing holder and subject to compliance with the terms of the standby bond purchase agreement, the
standby bank would provide the funds for the purchase of such tendered bonds, and the System would
be obligated to repay the bank for the funds it provided for such bond purchase (if such bond is not
subsequently remarketed), with the first installment of such repayment commencing on the date one
year and one day after the bank purchases the bond. As of December 31, 2024, there were no bank-
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12.

purchased bonds outstanding. To the extent that the standby bond purchase agreement expiration
date is within 12 months after December 31, 2024, the principal amount of such bonds would be
classified as a current obligation in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The standby bond
purchase agreements expire as follows: $58,225 in September 2025, $129,456 in January 2026 and
$87,694 in August 2029.

In January 2024, $44,130 of the Series 2018B-3 Bonds were remarketed for a new long-term rate
period and will next be subject to mandatory purchase on June 22, 2029. In connection with the
remarketing, $4,430 of the Series 2018B-3 Bonds were redeemed and a loss on refinancing was
recorded in the amount of $25.

In January 2024, $45,760 of the Series 2018C-4 Bonds were remarketed for a new long-term rate period
and will next be subject to mandatory purchase on June 22, 2029. In connection with the remarketing,
$4,590 of the Series 2018C-4 Bonds were redeemed and a loss on refinancing was recorded in the
amount of $26.

As of December 31, 2024, the System has authorized the issuance of up to $1,000,000 in commercial
paper aggregate principal outstanding. As of December 31, 2024, $120,000 of commercial paper notes
was outstanding, with maturities ranging from 21 to 62 days. As of December 31, 2023, $50,000 of
commercial paper was outstanding, with maturities ranging from 5 to 43 days.

At December 31, 2024, the System had lines of credit with banks aggregating to $1,100,000 in available
commitments. These lines of credit provide for various interest rates and payment terms and as of
December 31, 2024 expire as follows: $150,000 in August 2025, $325,000 in December 2025, $300,000
in December 2026 and $325,000 in December 2027. These lines of credit may be used to redeem
bonded indebtedness, to pay costs related to such redemptions, for capital expenditures for general
working capital purposes or to provide for certain letters of credit. At December 31, 2024, letters of
credit totaling $72,820 have been issued under one of these lines. At December 31, 2024, no amounts
were outstanding on these lines or letters of credit.

The System maintains an interest rate swap program on certain of its variable rate debt, as described in
Note 12. INTEREST RATE SWAP PROGRAM.

The System’s interest paid amount encompasses all debt agreements including revenue bonds and
revenue refunding bonds, taxable bonds, finance lease obligations, financing arrangements and interest
rate swaps. The System's interest paid, net of capitalized interest, amounted to $127,442 and $132,830
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The System capitalized interest of
$6,864 and $4,526 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

INTEREST RATE SWAP PROGRAM

The System has interest rate-related derivative instruments to manage the exposure of its variable rate
debt instruments. By using derivative financial instruments to manage the risk of changes in interest
rates, the System exposes itself to credit risk and market risk as described in Note 6. INVESTMENTS .

The System maintains an interest rate swap program on its Series 2008C variable rate demand revenue
bonds. These bonds expose the System to variability in interest payments due to changes in interest
rates. To limit the variability of its interest payments and to take advantage of low interest rates, the
System entered into various interest rate swap agreements to manage fluctuations in cash flows
resulting from interest rate risk. These swaps convert the variable rate cash flow exposure on the
variable rate demand revenue bonds to synthetically fixed cash flows. The notional amount under each
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13,

interest rate swap agreement is reduced over the term of the respective agreement to correspond with
reductions in the principal outstanding under various bond series.

The System has two swaps that are being held as a swap portfolio as the related debt is no longer
outstanding.

The following is a summary of the outstanding positions under these interest rate swap agreements at
December 31, 2024:

Bond Series Notional Amount Maturity Date Rate Received Rate Paid

2008C-1 S 129,900 November 1, 2038 61.7% of SOFR + 26bps 3.605 %
2008C-2B 58,425 November 1, 2038 61.7% of SOFR + 26bps 3.605 %
2008C-3A 88,000 November 1, 2038 61.7% of SOFR + 26bps 3.605 %
Swap portfolio 50,000 November 1, 2038 61.7% of SOFR + 26bps 3.605 %
Swap portfolio 22,090 February 1, 2038 70.0% of SOFR 3314 %

The swaps are not designated as hedging instruments and, therefore, hedge accounting has not been
applied. As such, unrealized changes in fair value of the swaps are classified as other nonoperating loss,
net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. The net cash
settlement payments, representing the realized changes in fair value of the swaps, are included as
interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was a liability of $19,566 and $31,681 as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. No collateral was posted under these swap agreements as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Amounts recorded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Net cash payments on interest rate swap agreements (interest expense) S (115) $ 572
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps (other nonoperating loss, net) S 12,115 §$ (2,167)

The interest rate swap instruments contain provisions that require the System to maintain an
investment grade credit rating on its bonds from certain major credit rating agencies. If the System's
bonds were to fall below investment grade, it would be in violation of these provisions and the
counterparties to the swap instruments could request immediate payment or demand immediate and
ongoing full overnight collateralization on interest rate swap instruments in net liability positions.

RETIREMENT PLANS

The System maintains various employee retirement benefit plans available to qualifying employees and
retirees.

The Advocate Health Care Network Pension Plan (“Advocate Plan”) was frozen effective December 31,
2019 to new participants and participants ceased accruing additional pension benefits. The net pension
benefit obligation of $100,078 and $161,376 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, for the
Advocate Plan is included in other noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.
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The Advocate Aurora Health Pension Plan (“AAH Plan”) was created through a merger of the Condell
Health Network Retirement Plan (frozen effective December 31, 2007) and the Aurora Health Care, Inc.
Pension Plan (frozen effective December 31, 2012). The net pension benefit obligation of $113,145 and
$110,675 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, is included in other noncurrent liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

A summary of changes in the plan assets, projected benefit obligation and the resulting funded status
for the year ended December 31, 2024 is as follows:

Advocate AAH Total

Change in plan assets:

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of period S 892,895 S 1,014,048 $ 1,906,943
Actual return on plan assets 64,005 (21,330) 42,675
Employer contributions 5,381 12,500 17,881
Benefits paid (55,940) (53,330) (109,270)

Plan assets at fair value at end of period S 906,341 S 951,888 §$ 1,858,229

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of period S 1,054,271 S 1,124,723  $ 2,178,994
Interest cost 50,812 55,227 106,039
Actuarial gain (42,724) (61,587) (104,311)
Benefits paid (55,940) (53,330) (109,270)

Projected benefit obligation at end of period S 1,006,419 § 1,065,033 $ 2,071,452

Plan assets less than projected benefit obligation S (100,078) S (113,145) S (213,223)
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of period S 1,006,419 § 1,065,033 $ 2,071,452
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A summary of changes in the plan assets, projected benefit obligation and the resulting funded status

for the year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows:

Advocate AAH Total
Change in plan assets:

Plan assets at fair value at beginning of period S 863,209 982,492 § 1,845,701
Actual return on plan assets 79,100 79,473 158,573
Benefits paid (49,414) (47,917) (97,331)

Plan assets at fair value at end of period S 892,895 1,014,048 S 1,906,943

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of period S 1,037,232 1,087,827 S 2,125,059
Interest cost 52,102 55,482 107,584
Actuarial loss 14,351 29,331 43,682
Benefits paid (49,414) (47,917) (97,331)

Projected benefit obligation at end of period S 1,054,271 1,124,723  §$ 2,178,994

Plan assets less than projected benefit obligation S (161,376) (110,675) S (272,051)

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of period S 1,054,271 1,124,723  §$ 2,178,994

The Advocate Plan actuarial gain of $42,724 and the AAH Plan actuarial gain of $61,587 for the year
ended December 31, 2024 were primarily driven by an increase in discount rates.

Pension plan expense is included in other nonoperating loss, net in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets is as follows for the year ended December 31, 2024:

Advocate AAH Total

Interest cost S 50,812 $ 55,227 S 106,039
Expected return on plan assets (53,839) (60,124) (113,963)
Amortization of:

Actuarial loss 5,342 4,896 10,238

Prior service cost — 3 3
Settlement loss 12,261 - 12,261
Net pension expense S 14,576 S 2 S 14,578

Pension plan expense is included in other nonoperating loss, net in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and changes in net assets is as follows for the year ended December 31, 2023:

Advocate AAH Total
Interest cost S 52,102 S 55,482 S 107,584
Expected return on plan assets (52,910) (56,606) (109,516)
Amortization of:
Actuarial loss 4,459 — 4,459
Prior service cost — 3 3
Net pension expense (income) S 3,651 S (1,121) $ 2,530
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The Advocate Plan paid lump sums totaling $51,236 and $45,541 in 2024 and 2023, respectively. The
amount in 2024 was greater than the sum of the Advocate Plan’s service cost and interest cost,
resulting in a settlement cost in the amount of $12,261.

The net change recognized in net assets without donor restrictions as a component of pension-related
changes other than net periodic pension cost was as follows for the year ended December 31, 2024:

Advocate AAH Total

Net change recognized S (70,492) S 14969 S (55,523)

The net change recognized in net assets without donor restrictions as a component of pension-related
changes other than net periodic pension cost was as follows for the year ended December 31, 2023:

Advocate AAH Total

Net change recognized S (16,298) S 6,462 S (9,836)

Included in net assets without donor restrictions at December 31, 2024 are the following amounts that
have not yet been recognized in net pension expense:

Advocate AAH Total
Unrecognized prior credit S - S 88 S 88
Unrecognized actuarial loss 240,847 411,901 652,748
S 240,847 S 411,989 S 652,836

Expected employee benefit payments to be paid from the pension plans are as follows:

Advocate AAH Total
2025 S 154,684 S 62,940 S 217,624
2026 81,807 66,447 148,254
2027 78,163 69,521 147,684
2028 72,614 71,898 144,512
2029 73,238 74,056 147,294
2030-2034 352,035 389,905 741,940
Total S 812,541 $ 734,767 S 1,547,308

Expected contributions to the pension plans are as follows:

Advocate AAH Total

2025 S 4,700 $ 12,500 S 17,200

Employer contributions are paid from employer assets. No plan assets are expected to be returned to
the employer. All benefits paid under the Advocate Plan and AAH Plan (collectively referred to as the
"Plans") were paid from the Plans' assets.

The System's asset allocation and investment strategies are designed to earn returns on plan assets
consistent with a reasonable and prudent level of risk. Investments are diversified across classes,
economic sectors and manager style to minimize the risk of loss. The de-risking portfolio is comprised
of cash and fixed-income instruments designed to hedge Plan liabilities. The System utilizes investment
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managers specializing in each asset category and, where appropriate, provides the investment manager
with specific guidelines that include allowable and/or prohibited investment types. The System
regularly monitors manager performance and compliance with investment guidelines. The investment
policy is broken out into de-risking and return seeking investments. In 2024, the investment policy was
updated to asset allocation targets being on a floating basis dependent on the funded status of the
Plan. The targets noted in the table below are based on the funded status of the Plan on December 31,
2024 and 2023:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Asset Allocation
Asset Category - Advocate Plan Target Range* Actual Target Actual
De-risking portfolio 50%-85% 71 % 70 % 68 %
Return seeking portfolio 15%-50% 29 % 30% 32%
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Asset Allocation
Asset Category - AAH Plan Target Range* Actual Target Actual
De-risking portfolio 50%-85% 79 % 85 % 81 %
Return seeking portfolio 15%-50% 21 % 15 % 19 %

*Based on a PBO Funded Status Range of 80%-100%

At December 31, 2024, the Advocate Plan had commitments to fund alternative investments, including
recallable distributions of $9,170 over the next three years.

In the normal course of operations and within established investment policy guidelines, the Plans may
enter into various exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivative contracts for trading purposes,
including futures, options and forward contracts. These instruments are used primarily to maintain the
Plans' strategic asset allocation and hedge security price movements. These instruments require the
Plans to deposit cash collateral with the broker or custodian.

Derivative contract information at December 31, 2024 are as follows:

Advocate AAH Total
Cash and security collateral provided S 16,974 §$ 5794 $ 22,768
Gross notional value S (447,743) S 356,010 $ (91,733)

Derivative contract information at December 31, 2023 are as follows:

Advocate AAH Total
Cash and security collateral provided S 17,115 S 7,307 $ 24,422
Gross notional value S (418,971) S 253,937 $ (165,034)

By using derivative financial instruments, the System exposes itself to credit risk and market risk as
described in Note 6. INVESTMENTS .

Fair value methodologies for Level 1 and Level 2 are consistent with the inputs described in Note 7.
FAIR VALUE. Real estate commingled funds for which an active market exists are included in Level 2.
The System opted to use the net asset value per share, or its equivalent, as a practical expedient for the
fair value of the Plans’ interest in hedge funds, private equity limited partnerships and real estate
commingled funds. There is inherent uncertainty in such valuations and the estimated fair values may
differ from the values that would have been used had a ready market for these investments existed.
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Private equity limited partnerships and real estate commingled funds typically have finite lives ranging
from five to ten years, at the end of which all invested capital is returned. For hedge funds, the typical
lockup period is one year, after which invested capital can be redeemed on a quarterly basis with at
least 30 days’ but no more than 90 days’ notice. The Plans’ investment assets are exposed to the same
kinds and levels of risk as described in Note 7. FAIR VALUE.

The following are the Plans’ financial instruments at December 31, 2024, measured at fair value on a
recurring basis by the valuation hierarchy defined in Note 7. FAIR VALUE:

Quoted Prices Other
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Description 2024 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and short-term investments S 51,913 $ 1,764 S 50,149 —
Corporate bonds and other debt securities 794,153 — 794,153 —
United States government obligations 566,026 — 566,026 —
Equity funds 177,146 5,831 171,315 —

1,589,238 S 7,595 $ 1,581,643 $ —
Investments at net asset value
Alternative investments 270,946
Total plan investments 1,860,184
Accruals carried at cost (1,955)
Total plan assets S 1,858,229

The following are the Plans’ financial instruments at December 31, 2023, measured at fair value on a

recurring basis by the valuation hierarchy defined in Note 7. FAIR VALUE:

Quoted Prices Other
in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Description 2023 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and short-term investments S 54,958 $ 784 S 54,174 S —
Corporate bonds and other debt securities 828,052 — 828,052 —
United States government obligations 545,538 — 545,538 —
Equity securities 14,177 14,177 —
Equity funds * 156,960 9,473 147,487 —

1,599,685 $ 24,434 S 1,575,251 $ —
Investments at net asset value
Alternative investments 310,180
Total plan investments 1,909,865
Accruals carried at cost (2,922)
Total plan assets S 1,906,943

*Leveling was updated from Level 2 to investments at net asset value based on further analysis of the investments.
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15.

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations are as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Discount rate - Advocate Plan 5.65 % 4.99 %
Discount rate - AAH Plan 5.77 % 5.04 %
Assumed rate of return on assets - Advocate Plan 5.70 % 6.30 %
Assumed rate of return on assets - AAH Plan 5.10 % 5.40 %
Interest crediting rate - Advocate Plan 413 % 413 %

Assumptions used to determine benefit cost are as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Discount rate - Advocate Plan 4.99 % 5.19 %
Discount rate - AAH Plan 5.04 % 5.23 %
Assumed rate of return on assets - Advocate Plan 6.30 % 6.00 %
Assumed rate of return on assets - AAH Plan 5.40 % 4.50 %
Interest crediting rate - Advocate Plan 4.13 % 4.10 %

The assumed rate of return on each of the Plan's assets is based on historical and projected rates of
return for asset classes in which the portfolio is invested.

The 2024 and 2023 mortality assumption for the Plans was the amounts-weighted aggregate rates from
the Pri-2012 mortality study, with white-collar adjustments projected generationally from 2012 with
Scale MP-2021.

In addition to these Plans, the System sponsors a defined contribution plan for its employees. Expense
related to the plan, which is included in salaries, wages and benefits expense in the accompanying

consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, was $357,985 and $332,918 for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Purchases of property and equipment S 16,641 S 17,171
Other health care related programs 239,461 227,280
$ 256,102 $ 244,451

FUNCTIONAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area of the System are reported as
expenses of those functional areas. Expenses other than interest expense are directly allocated to
functional departments at the time they are incurred. Interest expense that relates to debt financing is
allocated based on the use of the related funds. General and administrative expenses primarily include
legal, finance, marketing, supply chain and human resources. Fundraising costs are reported as other
nonoperating loss, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets.
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Functional operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2024 are as follows:

General and
Health care services administrative Consolidated
Salaries, wages and benefits S 8,721,590 817,306 9,538,896
Supplies and drugs 3,374,449 44,626 3,419,075
Purchased services and other 1,559,470 757,030 2,316,500
Contracted medical services 502,220 — 502,220
Depreciation and amortization 522,559 36,047 558,606
Interest 121,293 — 121,293
Total operating expenses S 14,801,581 1,655,009 16,456,590

Functional operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2023 are as follows:

General and
Health care services administrative Consolidated
Salaries, wages and benefits S 8,156,018 819,549 8,975,567
Supplies and drugs 3,009,944 53,855 3,063,799
Purchased services and other 1,709,147 650,388 2,359,535
Contracted medical services 542,880 — 542,880
Depreciation and amortization 574,943 39,141 614,084
Interest 125,568 - 125,568
Total operating expenses S 14,118,500 1,562,933 15,681,433
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17.

LIQUIDITY

The System’s financial assets available within one year of the consolidated balance sheets date for
general expenditures are as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Cash and cash equivalents S 716,506 $ 857,599
Patient accounts receivable 2,009,794 1,906,747
Third-party payors receivables 37,199 100,958
Collateral proceeds under securities lending program 19,964 14,557

Assets limited as to use

Internally designated for capital and other 20,545,013 10,822,009

Held for self-insurance 554,835 687,997

Donor restricted 111,146 106,325

Funds held under retirement plans 502,965 412,776

Investments under securities lending program 18,958 13,700
Total assets limited as to use 21,732,917 12,042,807
Total financial assets S 24,516,380 S 14,922,668
Less

Amounts unavailable for general expenditures
Alternative investments (4,342,884) (3,536,782)
Total amounts unavailable for general expenditure (4,342,884) (3,536,782)

Amounts unavailable to management without approval

Due to related party- AHI interest in the investment pool (7,945,909) —
Held for self-insurance (554,835) (687,997)
Held for employees under retirement plans (502,965) (412,776)
Donor restricted (111,146) (106,325)
Investments under securities lending program (18,958) (13,700)
Total amounts unavailable to management without approval (9,133,813) (1,220,798)
Total financial assets available to management for general expenditure within one year S 11,039,683 S 10,165,088

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Future Obligations

Aurora West Allis Medical Center has the right to operate the hospital under the terms of a lease
agreement with the City of West Allis ("the City"). In accordance with the lease agreement, the City has
title to all assets and any subsequent additions (with the exception of certain equipment used by
Aurora for laboratory services). Aurora West Allis Medical Center has an exclusive right to the use of
the assets and the obligation to maintain and replace them. The historical cost to the System of the
leased facilities is included within the System’s property and equipment, net. The agreement provides
for annual payments of less than $100 in lieu of annual lease payments and includes payment
escalations each subsequent year. The lease expires in 2063.

The System is committed to constructing additions and renovations to its medical facilities that are
expected to be completed in future years. The estimated cost of these commitments is $438,351, of
which $291,995 has been incurred as of December 31, 2024.

The System entered into agreements for information technology services provided by third parties. The

maximum amount of future payments that the System could be required to make under these
agreements is approximately $316,537 over the next five years. The System has also entered into
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various other agreements. The future commitments under these agreements are $41,258 over the next
10 years.

Litigation

From time to time, the System receives and responds to investigations and requests concerning
possible violations of reimbursement, false claims, anti-kickback and anti-referral statutes,
environmental regulations and other regulations of health care providers from federal and state
regulatory agencies. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge the
System’s compliance with these laws and regulations, and it is not possible to determine the impact, if
any, such claims, or penalties would have on the System. To foster compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, the System maintains a compliance program designed to detect and correct potential
violations of laws and regulations related to its programs.

The System also is involved in litigation such as medical malpractice and contractual disputes, as both
plaintiff and defendant, and other routine labor matters, proposed class action complaints, tax
examinations, security events resulting in potential privacy incidents, internal compliance activities and
regulatory investigations and examinations arising in the ordinary course of business.

Based on the System’s assessment of the above matters, the uncertainty of litigation, and the
preliminary stages of many of the matters, the System cannot estimate the reasonable possible loss or
range of loss that may result from these matters, except as stated in the consolidated financial
statements, including this note. Management of the System is of the opinion, however, that the
resolution of these legal actions will not have a material effect on the financial position of the System.

Two sets of plaintiffs have filed separate putative class action civil lawsuits against the Advocate Aurora
Health, Inc. ("AAH"), in 2022 and 2023, alleging violations of Federal and State antitrust law arising out
of, among other things, the System’s arrangements with certain health plans. Both matters are in the
discovery stage. The System cannot estimate the reasonable possible loss or range of loss that may
result from either of these matters and there can be no assurance that the resolution of either of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on System’s consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

GENERAL AND PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RISKS

The System is self-insured for substantially all general and professional liability risks. The self-insurance
programs combine various levels of self-insured retention with excess commercial insurance coverage.
In addition, various umbrella insurance policies have been purchased to provide coverage in excess of
the self-insured limits. Revocable trust funds, administered by a trustee and captive insurance
companies, have been established for the self-insurance programs. Actuarial consultants have been
retained to determine the estimated cost of claims, as well as to determine the amount to fund into the
irrevocable trust and captive insurance companies.

The System's hospitals, clinics, surgery centers, physicians and certified registered nurse anesthetist
providers that provide health care in Wisconsin are qualified health care providers that are fully
covered for losses in excess of statutory limits through mandatory participation in the State of
Wisconsin Injured Patients and Families Compensation Fund.

The estimated cost of claims is actuarially determined based on experience, as well as other

considerations, including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. Accrued
insurance liabilities and contributions to the trust were determined using a discount rate of 4.00% as of
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December 31, 2024 and 2023. The System's accrued professional liability costs, including estimated
claims incurred but not reported are classified as follows within the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 224,206 237,771
Other noncurrent liabilities 779,624 686,643

Total accrued insurance liabilities would have been $143,943 and $122,143 greater at December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively, had these liabilities not been discounted.

19. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As part of the Advocate Health joint operating agreement as described in Note 1. ORGANIZATION AND
BASIS OF PRESENTATION, the System and AHI share certain expenses related to the management of
Advocate Health. In 2023, shared expenses were recorded directly to the underlying expense
categories in the statements of operations and changes in net assets. In 2024, Advocate Health
implemented a management fee to allocate shared expenses between the System and AHI. The System
recorded management fees of $96,234 included in purchased services and other expenses in the
statements of operations and changes in net assets as of December 31, 2024. In certain situations, the
System pays for expenses on behalf of Advocate Health and it is subsequently reimbursed. The System
has a receivable from Advocate Health of $18,775 and $1,870 included in other current assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

In the normal course of business, the System and AHI make payments or receive payments from third
parties that require cash to be exchanged between the entities. As a result of these transactions, the
System has a receivable from AHI of $52,114 and $4,896 included in other current assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

20 INCOME TAXES AND TAX STATUS

The subsidiaries of the System are primarily tax-exempt organizations under Internal Revenue Code
Section 501(c)(3) and their related income is exempt from federal income tax. Accordingly, no income
taxes are recorded for the majority of the income in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for these entities. Unrelated business income is generated by certain of these entities
through the provision of services or other activities not directly related to the provision of patient care.

At December 31, 2024, the System had $306,973 of federal and $128,322 of state net operating loss
carryforwards with unutilized amounts of state net operating loss carryforwards expiring between 2024
and 2044. At December 31, 2023, the System had $160,318 of federal and $150,532 of state net
operating loss carryforwards with unutilized amounts of state net operating loss carryforwards expiring
between 2023 and 2039. As a result of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, net operating losses
generated after 2017 do not expire for federal purposes. Of the $306,973 of federal net operating loss
carryforwards at December 31, 2024, $296,622 was generated after 2017.

The System calculated income taxes for its taxable subsidiaries. Taxable income differs from pretax
book income primarily due to certain income and deductions for tax purposes being recorded in the
consolidated financial statements in different periods. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recorded for the tax effect of these differences using enacted tax rates for the years in which the
differences are expected to reverse.
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In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the
periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.

The System had deferred tax assets and liabilities as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Other deferred tax assets S 8,497 S 14,811
Net operating loss carryforwards 72,078 45,781
Valuation allowances (61,497) (45,024)
Net deferred tax assets 19,078 15,568
Deferred tax liabilities (1,785) (15,660)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) S 17,293 § (92)

(Credits) provisions for federal, state and deferred income taxes are included in other nonoperating
loss, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets as

follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Federal S 1,152 $ 13,270
State 1,062 -
Deferred (4,825) 709
$ (2,611) $ 13,979

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The System evaluated events and transactions subsequent to December 31, 2024 through April 9,
2025, the date of consolidated financial statement issuance.

In January 2025, $49,420 of the Series 2018B-4 Bonds were converted to a new long-term interest rate
period and sold to a single institutional investor. The new long-term interest rate period will end on

June 25, 2026.
skskskk
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Ernst & Young LLP Tel: +1 312 879 2000
155 North Wacker Drive Fax: +1 312 879 4000
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Shape the future
with confidence

Report of Independent Auditors on Supplementary Information

The Board of Directors
Advocate Health, Inc.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheet and consolidating statement of operations
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a

whole.
St ¥ MLLP

April 9, 2025

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2024

(in thousands)

Noncredit
Credit Group Group Eliminations  Consolidated
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 907,290 $ (190,784) S ) 716,506
Assets limited as to use 169,186 9,871 — 179,057
Patient accounts receivable 1,803,159 221,789 (15,154) 2,009,794
Receivable from subsidiaries 16,000 — (16,000) —
Other current assets 915,370 169,966 - 1,085,336
Total current assets 3,811,005 210,842 (31,154) 3,990,693
Assets limited as to use 21,452,547 363,819 (262,506) 21,553,860
Note receivable from subsidiaries 11,905 — (11,905) —
Property and equipment, net 5,688,742 391,005 - 6,079,747
Noncurrent assets
Investments in subsidiaries 791,721 — (791,721) —
Operating lease right-of-use assets 202,172 77,978 — 280,150
Other noncurrent assets 516,959 45,121 - 562,080
Total other assets 1,510,852 123,099 (791,721) 842,230
Total assets $ 32,475,051 $ 1,088,765 $ (1,097,286) $ 32,466,530
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2024

(in thousands)

Noncredit
Credit Group Group Eliminations  Consolidated
Current liabilities
Long-term debt, current portion S 342,893 §$ 696 $ — S 343,589
Operating lease liabilities, current portion 56,272 11,689 — 67,961
Accrued salaries and employee benefits 1,338,674 61,990 — 1,400,664
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,206,939 344,826 (15,154) 1,536,611
Third-party payors payables 420,166 3,064 — 423,230
Accounts payable to subsidiaries — 16,000 (16,000) —
Total current liabilities 3,364,944 438,265 (31,154) 3,772,055
Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion 3,054,636 19,174 (11,905) 3,061,905
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 180,589 69,005 — 249,594
Obligations under swap agreements 19,566 — — 19,566
Due to subsidiaries 262,506 — (262,506) —
Due to related party 7,945,909 — — 7,945,909
Other noncurrent liabilities 1,814,148 54,976 — 1,869,124
Total noncurrent liabilities 13,277,354 143,155 (274,411) 13,146,098
Total liabilities 16,642,298 581,420 (305,565) 16,918,153
Net assets
Without donor restrictions
Controlling interest 15,652,865 (91,663) (472,280) 15,088,922
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries — 522,794 (319,441) 203,353
Total net assets without donor restrictions 15,652,865 431,131 (791,721) 15,292,275
With donor restrictions 179,888 76,214 — 256,102
Total net assets 15,832,753 507,345 (791,721) 15,548,377
Total liabilities and net assets $ 32,475,051 $ 1,088,765 $ (1,097,286) $ 32,466,530
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ADVOCATE AURORA HEALTH, INC.
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December

(in thousands)

31, 2024

Revenue
Patient service revenue
Capitation revenue
Other revenue

Total revenue

Expenses
Salaries, wages and benefits
Supplies and drugs
Purchased services and other
Contracted medical services
Depreciation and amortization
Interest

Total expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating income
Investment income, net

Other nonoperating (loss) income, net
Total nonoperating income, net

Revenue in excess of expenses

Less income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Revenue in excess of expenses- attributable to controlling interests

Noncredit
Credit Group Group Eliminations  Consolidated
$ 12,786,249 $ 1,708,137 $  (366,915) $ 14,127,471
650,839 538,314 (3,911) 1,185,242
779,576 1,036,078 (284,850) 1,530,804
14,216,664 3,282,529 (655,676) 16,843,517
8,530,459 1,021,034 (12,597) 9,538,896
2,593,810 825,265 — 3,419,075
1,939,398 544,487 (167,385) 2,316,500
230,987 642,059 (370,826) 502,220
515,117 43,489 — 558,606
117,220 7,964 (3,891) 121,293
13,926,991 3,084,298 (554,699) 16,456,590
289,673 198,231 (100,977) 386,927
1,270,964 51,637 — 1,322,601
(430,568) (2,252) 13 (432,807)
840,396 49,385 13 889,794
1,130,069 247,616 (100,964) 1,276,721
— (169,765) 100,964 (68,801)
$ 1,130,069 $ 77,851 $ — $ 1,207,920

44



Notes to Supplementary Information
1. Credit Group

The supplementary financial information for the Credit Group is in accordance with the Second
Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture dated as of August 1, 2018 between Advocate Aurora
Health, Inc, the other affiliates identified therein as the Members of the Obligated Group, the
Restricted Affiliates, and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as master trustee ("the
System Master Indenture").

2. Credit Group Members

The Credit Group is comprised of the Obligated Group in combination with the Restricted Affiliates. The
Obligated Group includes Advocate Aurora Health, Inc.; Advocate Health Care Network; Advocate
Health and Hospitals Corporation; Advocate North Side Health Network; Advocate Condell Medical
Center; Advocate Sherman Hospital; Aurora Health Care, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Metro, Inc.; Aurora
Health Care Southern Lakes, Inc.; Aurora Health Care Central, Inc. d/b/a Aurora Sheboygan Memorial
Medical Center; Aurora Medical Center of Washington County, Inc.; Aurora Health Care North, Inc. d/b/
a Aurora Medical Center Manitowoc County; Aurora Medical Center of Oshkosh, Inc.; Aurora Medical
Group, Inc.; Aurora Medical Center Grafton LLC; and Aurora Medical Center Bay Area, Inc. The
Restricted Affiliates include Advocate Charitable Foundation; Advocate Home Care Products, Inc.; EHS
Home Health Care Services, Inc.; Evangelical Services Corporation, d/b/a Advocate Network Services,
Inc.; High Technology, Inc.; Meridian Hospice; and West Allis Memorial Hospital Inc. d/b/a Aurora West
Allis Medical Center. The Credit Group is with U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as master
trustee ("the System Master Indenture").
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Despite Market Pressures, Non-Residential Construction
Outlook Holds Steady with Modest Cost Increases

Nonresidential construction conditions remained steady through the third quarter, with For a more specific update or
mar!(et sentiment ger'lerally'stgble dggplte broader economic grosscurrents. pontragtors questions regarding this report,
continue to report consistent bidding activity, while owners are showing greater confidence in
advancing projects that were previously delayed or under review. Supply chains continue to please contact:
stabilize, and pricing volatility has eased across most major trades, helping keep overall cost
escalation contained.

k ’ Dennis McGreal
Q, t‘.

Broader market indicators reflect a cautious but tentatively more hopeful environment. \% { Director of Preconstruction
. . . L W 847.472.8114
The Dodge Momentum Index advanced sharply during the quarter, reflecting renewed planning ( denni
L . T . . ennis.mcgreal@mortenson.com
activity across commercial and institutional sectors. Total construction starts also improved
modestly in September, suggesting that underlying demand remains intact even as developers
proceed cautiously amid policy and financing uncertainties.

Sheryl Van Anne

Vice President General Manager
847.472.8131
sheryl.vananne@mortenson.com

Nationally, nonresidential construction costs tracked by the Mortenson Quarterly Cost
Index for the third quarter of 2025 rose by +1.16% over the past quarter and +6.60% over
the previous twelve months. All Mortenson regional offices reported modest cost increases this
quarter. Portland and Chicago recorded the smallest quarterly changes, both at +0.78%. The
remaining offices reported slightly elevated costs: Seattle (+0.88%), Milwaukee (+1.33%),
Denver (+1.34%), Minneapolis (+1.38%), Phoenix (+1.42%), and Salt Lake City (+1.65%).

Material and labor costs increased nominally this quarter. Tracked construction materials
edged up slightly by +1.16%, nudging the year-over-year figure to +7.0%, while trade
partner work increased +1.22% in Q3 and +6.3% annually. Self-performed labor increased
ata slower pace, two basis points lower compared to the previous quarter and 1.4% lower year
OVer year.

Trucking and ocean freight markets are both expected to see relatively stable or
declining prices in 2026 due to weak demand and ample capacity. In trucking, rates will
likely remain low as warehouse prices fall amid strong inventory levels, though factors like driver
shortages and rising container fees could create upward pressure.

Similarly, ocean freight rates are projected to decrease into early 2026 because of eased
tariff front-loading, increased shipping capacity, and reduced congestion through the
Panama Canal. While tariffs may briefly elevate prices in late 2025, freight costs are anticipated

to stay low overall, with accasional temporary spikes caused by tariff pass-throughs and trade /
route changes.

Continued on next page
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Continued from previous page

Cost movement this quarter was primarily driven by select material and installation
scopes, particularly those tied to steel and mechanical systems. Top scope packages
showing quarterly cost increases include reinforcing steel material (+8.1%), installation of
reinforcing material (+2.8%), steel framing erection (+4.0%), conveying systems (+2.0%), and
plumbing systems (+2.5%).

Across regional markets, activity remained steady with increasing trade partner competition and
continued aggressive pricing. Minneapolis and other upper Midwest markets reported a gradual
improvement in project awards and a more optimistic outlook, while labor availability
remained stable nationwide.

The Dodge Momentum Index, a leading indicator of nonresidential construction planning,
continued its upward trajectory through the third quarter. The index surged 20.8% in July,
followed by additional gains of 8% in August and 3% in September, signaling renewed confidence
in both commercial and institutional sectors. Total construction starts also improved, rising
3.1% in September with nonresidential building up 11.9% for the month.

"After months of wait-and-see due to tariff uncertainty, owners and developers have
begun to move forward with projects and assumed higher costs for them," said Sarah
Martin, associate director of forecasting at Dodge Construction Netwark. “While the recent uptick
points to strengthening planning activity, Dodge notes that overall momentum remains tempered
by broader economic headwinds.”

Despite cost stability, the design pipeline remains under pressure. The AlA/Deltek Architecture
Billings Index fell to 43.3 in September, indicating billings at architecture firms continue to
decline. As a forward-looking indicator for nonresidential construction activity, this
softness suggests future project starts may continue at a measured pace, even as cost
pressures stay contained.

The Mortenson Construction Cost Index reflects slightly elevated costs for the third
quarter of 2025. Looking ahead, overall construction conditions are expected to remain steady
through the remainder of 2025. Input cost volatility has eased, and lead times are
improving, though certain commodities and global supply chains still face elevated
uncertainty. Labor availability continues to vary by region and trade, though wage growth has
moderated from earlier peaks. Competitive bidding persists in several markets, helping to keep
escalation in check. While select sectors such as manufacturing and data centers continue to
drive demand, most markets are tracking at a consistent pace. Barring major policy or supply
disruptions, the outlook for nonresidential construction remains broadly stable.

=Sl

Mortenson

Martenson tracks and reports on eight
metropolitan areas in the U.S. including Chicago,
Denver, Milwaukee, Minneapolis, Phoenix,
Portland, Salt Lake City and Seattle. The Mortenson
Construction Cost Index is calculated quarterly by
pricing representative non-residential
construction projects in various metropolitan
areas. Itis part of a portfolio of industry insights
and market studies provided by Mortenson.

For nationwide construction cost index data visit;
Martensan.com/Cost-Index.
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CONSTRUCTION COST INDEX
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CHICAGO CONSTRUCTION EMPLOYMENT
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MATERIAL PRICING CHANGES
(National Average - Cumulative @3 2023 to Q3 2025)

B Copper Pipe +24%
25%
Lumber +22%

Structural Steel +9%

15%
5% Plywood +7%
5%
Reinforcing Material -1%
15% Steel Pipe -2%

25% PVC Plpe -11%
2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
a3 Q4 a1 02 a3 Q4 a1 02 a3

Nationally, the Mortenson Cost Index went
up 1.2% in the third quarter of 2025 and is
up 6.6% compared to a year ago.

In Chicago, costs rose 0.8% this quarter
and 6.6% over the last twelve months.

Building construction employment in the
Chicago metro averaged 28,100 workers
per month in the first nine months of
2025-a 2% decline compared to the
same period in 2024. Labor availability

remains stable, though the federal
shutdown left September data
unavailable, limiting late-Q3 visibility.

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics
Chicago-Naperville-Schaumburg, IL - Construction of Buildings

Construction material costs remain
elevated amid a gradually stabilizing
but volatile global supply chain,
affected by economic uncertainty,
tariffs, and fluctuating demand. Steel
and copper continue to experience
notable, upward price swings.
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AT A GLANCE
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A Market in Motion: Costs, Capital, and
Capacity

Construction costs are sending a mixed
message this quarter: stability on the
surface, shifts underneath. While national
averages point to moderation, local
dynamics—from labor shortages to
mega-project demand—are reshaping the
landscape in ways owners can’t afford

to ignore. Deal-making across the AEC
industry continues at a robust pace—
private equity and strategic mergers are
holding steady in 2025, even amid policy
uncertainty. Additionally, if federal interest
rates become more attractive, private
investors will be willing to take on loans,
creating new momentum for projects that
have been on hold. Valuations remain
strong, signaling that investors still have
confidence in the sector’s fundamentals.
For owners, this is more than a headline;
it’s a call to examine whether strategic
partnerships, recapitalization, or joint
ventures might unlock new avenues of
growth, innovation, or resilience.

Labor and the Scale of Projects

While employment levels and output are
strong, labor shortages persist, especially
as mega-projects in infrastructure and
advanced manufacturing place new strains
on the workforce. These large-scale efforts
demand more than labor—they require
effective collaboration platforms, shared
data standards, and targeted training
initiatives. Owners who invest in workforce
development today will find themselves
better positioned to deliver projects
efficiently tomorrow.

Paul Brussow
President
North America

Building Financial Resilience

If one theme defines the current market,

it is change. Tariff uncertainty, global
supply chain disruption, and shifting labor
dynamics all contribute to cost swings that
static budgets cannot absorb. Owners who
continue to rely on fixed assumptions risk
exposure. Instead, cost certainty comes
from flexibility: rolling forecasts, scenario
planning, and early procurement strategies.
At RLB, desired outcome is to create living
budgets that adapt with market conditions,
ensuring resilience over the full lifecycle of
a project.

Looking Ahead: Future-Proofing

Investments

Owners today face an AEC landscape

defined by rapid innovation and rising

expectations. The rapid expansion of

advanced technology sectors—such

as data centers and semiconductor

manufacturing—underscores how critical

it is to build with speed, precision, and

adaptability in today’s global economy. The

projects that thrive will be those designed

not only for delivery but for endurance—

built to remain resilient, efficient, and

valuable for decades. My recommendation

for our readers is to:

. Treat budgets as dynamic frameworks,
not static documents.

. Apply consistent project delivery
standards across entire portfolios.

. Link sustainability and technology
decisions directly to long-term ROI.

By moving beyond reaction and into
preparation, our industry can turn today’s
uncertainty into tomorrow’s opportunity.



NATIONAL CONSTRUCTION COST INDEX

Welcome to the third quarter 2025 issue of the RLB Quarterly
Cost Report! This issue contains data current to mid-Q3 2025.
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Q3 2022 239.68
Q4 2022 24419
Q12023 247.49
Q2 2023 251.34
20929 Q32023 255.24
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Q12024 262.00
Q2 2024 26494
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Q4 2024 270.75
Q12025 273.41
Q2 2025 276.51
Q3 2025 279.82
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— RLBIndex — ENRBCI — CPI @ Q3

According to the U.S. Department of Commerce,

$2,139.1 construction-put-in-place during July 2025 was
billion estimated at a seasonally adjusted annual rate of

$2,139.1 billion, which is

0.1 % the revised June estimate of
below $2,140.5 billion, and
2.8%

the July 2024 estimate of $2,200.7 billion.
below

The National Construction Cost Index shows the changing cost of construction between July 2022 and July 2025, relative
to a base of 100 in April 2001. Index recalibrated as of April 2011.
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PHOENIX,
ARIZONA

The Phoenix Police Headquarters stands as a vital pillar of public safety and innovation in the heart of
downtown. This 27-story facility has been thoughtfully renovated to support modern law enforcement needs.
Designed to enhance operational efficiency and community engagement, the headquarters redefines the
standard for urban police infrastructure.

RLB has been an invaluable partner to the City of Phoenix on the 100 W Washington project. Our team has
provided expertise in Project Management and Cost Management throughout the project’s lifecycle. From
the initial programming phase, RLB has been actively involved in guiding the client through the complexities
of transforming an older building to meet the needs of its end users. This has included updating outdated
systems and ensuring compliance with Fire and Life Safety requirements. In addition, our team has served
as the client’s go-to resource for abatement coordination, construction management, furniture relocation,
AV, security and access control coordination, and move-in logistics. RLB’s close collaboration with Arrington
Watkins Architects, Richard Kennedy Architects, Okland Construction, the City of Phoenix Public Works
Department, and numerous other city entities has been key to ensuring the project’s success.

Our team worked diligently to address the unique and complex needs of the Phoenix Police Department
through continuous communication and coordination with the project team.

“One of the most significant highlights of this project was obtaining the Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for
floors 23, 24, and 25, which allowed us to provide a new home for the Communications Bureau (911). The biggest
challenge was moving the cutover date up by a month and securing all the necessary inspectors’ signoffs, all
while coordinating with their own vendors to get their technology upand running.

It was a tremendous effort from everyone involved. After countless long shifts and multiple tests of the Fire and
Life Safety systems, we came together and successfully met the new cutover date. The transition went smoothly,
and the client was extremely happy.”

Melissa Araque, Project Manager

Rider Levett Bucknall

Photos courtesy of Larry Kantor Photography and David Schacher Pho
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GDP represented in percent change from the preceding quarter, seasonally adjusted at annual rates. CPI figures
represent the monthly value at the end of the quarter. ABI is derived from a monthly American Institute of Architects
survey of architectural firms of their work on the boards, reported at the end of the period. Construction Put-in-Place
figures represent total value of construction dollars in billions spent at a seasonally adjusted annual rate taken at the
end of each quarter. General Unemployment rates are based on the total population 16 years and older. Construction
Unemployment rates represent only the percent of experienced private wage and salary workers in the construction
industry 16 years and older. National unemployment rates are seasonally adjusted, reflecting the average of a three-

month period.

* Adjustments made to GDP based on amended changes from the Bureau of Economic Analysis.
Sources: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Bureau of Economic Analysis, American Institute of Architects



COMPARATIVE COST INDEX
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City July October January April July Annual %
2024 2024 2025 2025 2025 Change
Austin 19,443 19,202 19,353 19,560 19,901 2.36%
Boston 31,309 31,672 32,000 32,346 32,619 418%
Chicago 32,130 32,670 33,151 33,697 33,870 5.41%
Dallas 19,375 19,315 19,794 19,922 20,207 4.30%
Denver 19,656 19,852 20,036 20,274 20,549 4.54%
Honolulu 31,471 31,906 32,356 32,798 33,170 5.40%
Las Vegas 19,391 19,619 19,806 20,069 20,331 4.85%
Los Angeles 28,532 28,731 28,942 29,265 29,640 3.88%
Miami 19,647 19,774 19,904 20,121 20,475 4.21%
Minneapolis rew: 23,072 23,255 23,383 23,566 23,881 3.50%
Nashville 19,483 19,617 19,773 19,999 20,286 412%
New York 36,079 36,366 36,721 37,085 37,428 3.74%
Phoenix 20,260 20,518 20,700 20,942 21,232 4.80%
Portland 22,844 23,091 23,330 23,589 23,837 4.35%
San Francisco 35,822 36,076 36,378 36,916 37,223 3.91%
Seattle 25,861 26,162 26,442 26,703 27,030 4.52%

Washington, DC 28,934 29,293 29,576 29,796 30,029 3.78%

Comparative Cost Map Indicates percentage change between July 2024 to July 2025.
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Cit July October January April July Annual
y 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025 % Change

® Calgary 26,876 27163 27,474 27,882 28,178 4.84%

* Toronto 35,573 35,952 36,413 36,995 37,379 5.08%

Alberta offers strong investment potential, driven by recent project approvals and rich natural resources. The
province currently hosts 111 active and potential natural resource projects totaling $148 billion, part of a broader
$633 billion federal pipeline. These projects primarily target the energy sector—oil and gas, carbon capture and
storage, power generation and transmission, and downstream processing.

By the end of Q2 2025, Alberta municipalities issued $2.1 billion in building permits, a 48.4% increase year-
over-year. Non-residential construction remained stable despite a slight 0.2% monthly decline, with YTD
investment up 9.7%. Institutional and governmental spending surged 54%, and industrial spending rose 36%.
Non-residential construction intentions hit a record high, fueled by a 192% increase in institutional/governmental
permits and a 38% rise in total permit value. Residential investment grew 4.6% in Q2 to $2.0 billion, supported
by strong renovation and conversion activity, though YTD investment declined 2.9%.

Ontario is advancing its largest infrastructure investment to date, with over $200 billion earmarked for public
assets like transit, highways, and hospitals. Infrastructure Ontario reports 28 projects in pre-procurement or
active procurement stages, with a combined design and construction value exceeding $30 billion. In the first
half of 2025, ICI permit values rose 6% YTD, driven by a 29% increase in institutional sector activity—particularly
in hospitals and medical facilities.

Toronto is prioritizing housing development, aiming to create 20,000 new rental units through a multi-million
dollar incentive program. To revive stalled projects, the city is deferring property taxes, development charges,
and other fees. The first phase targets over 8,000 units, contingent on additional funding from federal and
provincial governments.
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INDICATIVE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

OFFICES RETAIL SHOPPING HOTELS HOSPITAL
PRIME SECONDARY CENTER STRIP 5 STAR 3 STAR GENERAL

LOCATION LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH
USA

Austin 250 420 165 225 200 330 190 255 425 580 300 445 475

Boston 455 705 270 405 250 405 175 280 475 805 330 555 605 mo
Chicago 345 570 215 350 215 460 170 280 520 800 380 510 450 920
Dallas 255 430 160 230 205 340 190 260 435 595 305 450 480 685
Denver 350 575 250 350 200 360 200 275 460 665 320 475 700 1000
Honolulu 385 645 245 375 305 615 285 465 735 880 420 665 565 950
Las Vegas 280 495 200 265 175 670 160 360 440 810 260 445 555 665
Los Angeles 270 410 210 300 190 400 160 230 435 675 310 415 695 1055
Miami 255 435 165 235 210 345 180 280 460 620 320 420 495 700
Minneapolis 420 685 295 420 240 420 240 325 545 745 385 565 830 1190
Nashville 360 595 260 360 210 360 195 285 470 645 330 435 710 980
New York 415 960 240 595 355 715 375 755 515 VS S SS1S 640 €75
Phoenix 265 455 175 240 215 360 125 210 425 660 225 340 515 725
Portland 325 425 305 400 325 425 300 375 550 725 425 550 1000 1300
San Francisco 460 800 360 580 320 550 275 500 580 1020 430 660 750 1500
Seattle 370 660 245 340 275 445 210 335 485 735 340 485 650 920

Washington, D.C. 340 565 235 370 185 330 150 250 435 675 285 445 520 930
CANADA

Calgary 295 440 250 300 245 335 145 215 320 495 240 275 715 970
Toronto 310 505 260 360 235 490 190 245 440 815 270 320 645 1005

AT A GLANCE CONSTRUCTION COST CHANGE

As construction costs across the country continue to increase, RLB takes a historical view of
the percentage change of year-on-year construction costs, dating back ten years.

Percentage Change

0%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025



The data in the chart below represents estimates of current building costs in each respective market. Costs may vary
as a consequence of factors such as site conditions, climatic conditions, standards of specification, market conditions,
etc. Values of U.S. locations represent hard construction costs based on U.S. dollars per square foot of gross floor

area, while values of Canadian locations represent hard construction costs based on Canadian dollars per square foot

INDUSTRIAL PARKING RESIDENTIAL EDUCATION
WAREHOUSE GROUND BASEMENT MULTI-FAMILY  SINGLE-FAMILY ELEMENTARY HIGH SCHOOL UNIVERSITY
LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW  HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH
|
75 150 S 190 165 260 180 270 190 515 275 390 310 475 420 645
130 220 110 165 140 190 285 390 305 430 595 675 625 800 650 900
150 240 100 150 165 285 210 480 285 570 320 480 370 510 450 910
75 150 S 190 165 265 185 275 €5 520 280 400 315 480 430 660
130 205 125 200 175 280 210 375 240 475 375 500 400 610 650 900
145 290 180 235 205 315 300 505 335 625 565 930 585 790 725 1060
80 170 80 no 105 200 210 500 245 495 455 565 540 740 705 930
145 220 120 150 165 225 265 435 235 415 415 540 355 625 515 705
80 150 125 195 170 285 185 285 195 530 290 410 320 495 435 675
150 235 150 240 210 330 240 425 275 555 390 565 475 725 775 1070
130 205 130 210 185 290 210 365 240 475 335 485 410 630 645 725
145 240 115 210 170 250 250 490 55 715 550 695 595 765 585 840
85 160 60 S €5 170 195 290 205 555 295 425 335 515 455 695
275 350 275 325 300 375 @325 415 305 450 600 750 750 1000 750 1000
150 255 130 205 250 350 400 640 330 580 650 950 700 1NOO 750 1200
185 255 140 205 215 310 285 485 265 410 450 675 385 675 | 555 810
130 215 75 100 90 155 215 360 270 95 390 595 405 610 490 740

n5 175 5 130 100 155 215 300 325 470 270 370 275 380 355
140 200 130 175 170 235 265 335 330 650 285 350 285 375 325 580
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If you have questions or for more information, please contact us.

AUSTIN
Phone: +1 817 8219624
E-mail: INUSICVEN ] eXelolng}
Contact: Melissa Jones
BOSTON
Phone: +1 617 737 9339
E-mail: BOS@us.rlb.com
Contact: Michael O’Reilly
CALGARY
Phone: +1 403 571 0505
E-mail: YYC@ca.rlb.com
Contact: Himanshu Bhagat
CHARLOTTE
Phone: +1 336 926 2550
E-mail: CLT@us.rlb.com
Contact: Johnnie Sheppard
CHICAGO
Phone: +1 312 819 4250
E-mail: ORD@us.rlb.com
Contact: Warren Todd
DALLAS
Phone: +1 945 527 1544
E-mail: DFW@us.rlb.com
Contact: Sandra Akmansoy
DENVER
Phone: +1 720 904 1480
E-mail: DEN@us.rlb.com
Contact: Jordan Miller
HILO
Phone: +1 808 934 7953
E-mail: ITO@us.rlb.com
Contact: Erin Kirihara
HONOLULU
Phone: +1 808 521 2641
E-mail: HNL@us.rlb.com
Contact: Erin Kirihara
Cassie Idehara
KANSAS
Phone: 1808 383 5244
E-mail: MCl@us.rlb.com
Contact: Paul Brussow
LAS VEGAS
Phone: +1 702 227 8818
E-mail: LAS@us.rlb.com
Contact: Kevin Mitchell

LOS ANGELES

Phone: +1 213 689 1103
E-mail: LAX@us.rlb.com
Contact: TJ McNulty
MAUI

Phone: +1 808 875 1945
E-mail: OGG@us.rlb.com
Contact: Paul Belshoff
MIAMI

Phone: +1 305 924 6531
E-mail: MIA@us.rlb.com
Contact: Charles O’Loughlin

MINNEAPOLIS

Phone: +1 480 349 1280
E-mail: MSP@us.rlb.com
Contact: Jesse Zunke
NASHVILLE
Phone: +1 615 739 2254
E-mail: BNA@us.rlb.com
Contact: Chris Willis
NEW YORK
Phone: +1 646 821 4788
E-mail: NYC@us.rlb.com
Contact: David Eivers
PHOENIX
Phone: +1 602 443 4848
E-mail: PHX@us.rlb.com
Contact: Paul Brussow
Scott Macpherson
John Jozwick
Scott Sumners
Joel Brown
PORTLAND
Phone: +1 503 226 2730
E-mail: PDX@us.rlb.com
Contact: Daniel Junge

SAN FRANCISCO

Phone: +1 415 362 2613
E-mail: SFO@us.rlb.com
Contact: Brian Schroth
SAN JOSE

Phone: +1 650 943 2317
E-mail: SJC@us.rlb.com
Contact: Brian Schroth
SEATTLE

Phone: +1206 4418872
E-mail: SEA@us.rlb.com
Contact: Scott Macpherson

ST. LUCIA

Phone: +1 758 452 2125

E-mail: UVF@us.rlb.com

Contact: David Piper

TORONTO

Phone: +1 905 827 8218

E-mail: YYZ@us.rlb.com

Contact: Himanshu Bhagat
Franco Lora

TUCSON

Phone: +1 520 777 7581

E-mail: TUS@us.rlb.com

Contact: Josh Marks

WAIMEA (KAMUELA)

Phone: +1 808 883 3379
E-mail: KOA@us.rlb.com
Contact: Wrindy Damo

WASHINGTON, DC

Phone: +1 410 740 1671
E-mail: DCA@us.rlb.com
Contact: Paraic Morrissey

AMERICAS ALLIANCE
BOGOTA, COLOMBIA

Phone: +1 602 443 4848
E-mail: info@us.rlb.com
Contact: Charles O’Loughlin

MEXICO CITY, MEXICO

Phone: +1 602 443 4848
E-mail: info@us.rlb.com
Contact: Charles O’Loughlin

VITORIA, BRAZIL

Phone: +1 602 443 4848
E-mail: info@us.rlb.com
Contact: Charles O’Loughlin

RLB.com





